Annual report and
accounts 2009/10

York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

2

Presented to parliament pursuant to schedule 7, paragraph 25(4) of
the National Health Service Act 2006

York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Report and Accounts 2009/10

3

4

Index

Page

STRATEGIC DIRECTION

9

Statement of the Chairman and Chief Executive

10

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors of the Trust
The principal activities of the year
Fair view of the Trust
Accounting policies
Income from activities
Income generated from non-healthcare activities
Cash
Borrowing limit
Monitor risk rating
Capital investment activity
Planned capital investment
Land interests
Investments
Private patient income
Value for money
Going concern
Political and charitable donations
Accounting policies for pensions and other retirement benefits
Significant events since balance sheet date
Directors’ statement
The development and performance of the Trust during the year
Main trends and factors likely to affect the future development, performance
and position of the business
2010/11 financial outlook and principal risks
Charitable funds
Environmental issues
Our staff
Staff sickness
Significant activities in the field of research and development
External auditors
External auditors’ remuneration
Equality and diversity
Policies for disabled employees and equal opportunities
Policy applied for the continuing employment of disabled persons
Policy applied for career development of disabled persons
Providing information to employees
Action taken to encourage involvement of employees in the Foundation Trust
Counter fraud services
Information risks and data losses in 2009/10

13
13
13
14
14
14
15
15
15
15
16
16
16
16
17
17
17
17
17
17
17
18
19
20
20
21
22
22
23
24
24
24
24
24
25
25
25
25
26

5

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Our history

27
27

OPERATING FRAMEWORK
Information for patients and carers
Local Involvement Networks (LINks)
Information on handling complaints
Category of complaints received
Complaints referred to the Health Service Ombudsman
Positive patient feedback
Resource management in the Trust

28
28
28
29
29
29
30
30

CORPORATE LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT
Applied learning and research
Resuscitation team
Clinical development team
HYMS clinical skills
Organisational development and improvement learning team
York hospital health library and information service
Corporate learning and development (CLAD)
Hull York Medical School (HYMS) team
Postgraduate medical education
North East Yorkshire and North Lincolnshire comprehensive local research
network
Research and development
Occupational health – pandemic influenza

31
31
31
31
31
31
32
33
33
34
35

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board of Directors (April 2009-March 2010)
Directors’ biographies
Attendance at Board and sub-committee meetings
Register of directors’ interests
Board sub-committees
Code of governance declaration
Resolutions of disputes between the Council of Governors and the Board of
Directors
Board balance, completeness and appropriateness
Statement of the division of responsibility between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive
The operation of the Board of Directors and Council of Governors including
high-level statement of decisions taken by each

38
38
39
45
47
49
52
55

COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS
Elections
The Council of Governors
Appointment of lead governor
Amendment to the constitution

35
36

56
57
58
59
59
61
61
61

6

Attendance at the Council of Governors meetings during the year April 2009March 2010
Register of governors’ interests
Governors’ expenses
Related party transactions
Council of Governors sub-committees

65
67
69
69
69

MEMBERSHIP
Foundation Trust membership
Community membership (2009-2010)
Co-terminosity
Total public/patient/carer membership size and movement during 2009/10
Total staff membership size and movement during 2009/10
Public membership breakdown at 31 March 2010
Age representation at 31 March 2010
Eligible population by age in each constituency at 31 March 2010
Gender report at 31 March 2010
Ethnicity report at 31 March 2010
Socio-economic report of membership at 31 March 2010
Membership strategy
Membership management
Elections 2009/10

75
75
75
76
76
73
77
77
78
78
78
79
80
81
82

QUALITY REPORT
Statement on quality from the Chief Executive
Priorities for improvement and statement of assurance from the Board
Performance of the Trust against selected measures
Statement of assurance from the Board
Other information
Statement from NHS North Yorkshire and York (NHS NYY), LINKs and
Overview and Scrutiny Committees
Quality priorities for 2010/11
Response to LINks and to feedback from members and governors

83
83
84
84
92
95
100

SUSTAINABILITY/ CLIMATE CHANGE
Summary performance
Future priorities and targets

103
103
104

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
Summary of workforce statistics
Priorities and targets going forward

105
105
106

STAFF SURVEY REPORT
Summary of performance
Future priorities and targets

107
107
108

REGULATORY RATINGS REPORT

109

101
101

7

PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURES
Restorative dentistry service
Stroke user group
Patient safety
Patient advice and liaison service (PALS)
Service user involvement groups
Patient surveys within the Trust
Health and safety
Counter fraud and corruption

110
110
110
111
112
113
113
114
115

REMUNERATION REPORT
The remuneration committee
Remuneration of the Chairman and non-executive directors
Remuneration of the Chief Executive and executive directors
Remuneration policy
Salaries and pension entitlements of senior managers

116
116
116
116
116
117

Statement on Internal Control

120

Statement on Internal Control

120

8

STRATEGIC STATEMENT
The Trust’s strategic direction comprises a number of key drivers that will ensure it provides
21st century healthcare for the community it serves.
The Trust has identified four strategic ‘frames’ that will ensure a focus for its emerging
priorities and objectives and assist in their communication to staff, patients and other
stakeholders. The four strategic ‘frames’ are:





improving quality and safety
improving our effectiveness: capacity and capability
Develop stronger citizenship through our work with partners and the broader
community
improve our facilities and protect the environment.

The national agenda continues to advocate increased patient choice, better access times,
safer, cleaner hospitals and improved patient satisfaction and outcomes. In this context
these are the priorities for York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and we will work, with
commissioner PCT support, to meet all targets and develop services that are appropriate for
the local community. The Trust will continue to take part in and learn from national initiatives
such as the safer patient initiative, choose and book, agenda for change, the productive
ward, the rollout of patient-reported outcome measures and the strategic development of
the local health community.
The situation locally in North Yorkshire continues to be one of a financially challenged
commissioner working to both reconfigure services and improve clinical pathways to provide
the most effective services it can within the resources available. The Foundation Trust is
actively supporting this agenda and full recognises the part it plays in delivering the highest
quality healthcare services it can for the residents of North Yorkshire and beyond.
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STATEMENT OF THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Welcome to the annual report for York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust for 2009/10.
Despite the difficult environment in which we are operating we have achieved the best
performance indicators that this organisation has ever seen, and we are proud of this
achievement.
All cancer targets were met, and we saw 98.2% of patients in the emergency department
within four hours, against a target of 98%. The 18 week targets were met, with the Trust
achieving 93.4% against a target of 90% for admitted patients and 98.1% against a target
of 95% for non-admitted patients. Our infection control performance was also impressive,
with four MRSA bacteraemia against a threshold target of 12, and 28 Clostridium Difficile
cases against a threshold target of 110.
We were assessed as ‘excellent’ for quality of financial management and ‘good’ for
quality of services in the 2008/09 Care Quality Commission’s Annual Health Check.
This is a good result for the trust and is a product of the hard work and commitment of all
our staff to delivering a high standard of care.
We are a high performing Trust, with areas for improvement identified in only five of the
64 measures. This performance depends on the contribution of every member of our
staff.
We must ensure that we continue to build on this good performance by continually
focussing on getting the basics right and ensuring our patients have the best care
possible.
Our Care Quality Commission staff survey results were encouraging. Compared to last
year’s survey, there has been an improvement in 15 of the key findings, which is really
pleasing to see. Equally pleasing is that no scores have deteriorated in comparison to the
2008 survey. We will continue to strive to improve even further, and will listen to staff to
identify where we might best focus our attention. Our results this year have shown that
we can make change happen based on what staff tell us, and that the survey really is an
opportunity for staff to have their views heard.
We have begun to focus more on recognising and rewarding staff, both for long service
and for individual and team achievements. Our annual celebration of achievement
awards and monthly star performer awards are starting to recognise staff and celebrate
the fantastic things they do every day. We also held our second open event, throwing
open our doors to Foundation Trust members and the public and inviting them to find out
more about who we are and what we do.
For 2009/10 the Trust is reporting an underlying income and expenditure deficit of £140k.
Against the Trust's annual spend of £235m this is a broadly balanced position. However,
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you will see in this report that the overall reported position is a £5.5m deficit. This
includes a small number of technical adjustments that have been agreed with external
auditors.
Stripping away these technical issues the underlying balanced position is disappointing
given the Trust's expectations of creating a £1m surplus to supplement our capital
programme. We now face further pressure on the capital programme as a direct result of
not delivering the surplus. This will prove very challenging given the many and varied
calls on the Trust's capital programme.
In addition to living within our means it is vital that at all levels decisions are taken with
our core values in mind. These centre on the needs of the patient, the safety and quality
of our services and the support that staff require in delivering essential services to the
community.
We must always recognise and reinforce the importance of managing our finances
effectively and responsibly and remember that this is not counter to meetings our service
needs, it is an essential prerequisite.
We have now seen the financial and performance framework we shall be working with
next year and it is every bit as challenging as we anticipated, with the Trust facing a
collective reduction in our finances of some £10m. The only way to secure our services
and further develop these going forward is to live within our means and further develop
those means by exploiting the real income potential that many of our excellent services
offer both locally and nationally.
Given the financial situation, it is pleasing to report that several capital projects were
completed this year, including a major upgrade of the aseptic pharmacy facility, an
upgrade of the coronary care unit, and the start of a phased programme of lift upgrades.
In addition the Trust bought significant amounts of new and replacement medical and IT
equipment and plant through a combination of purchasing and lease finance. The year
ahead will see real progress being made on the construction of a new multi-storey car
park at the main hospital, which will not only improve parking services for patients and
visitors, but will also free up an area of the site for potential future development. A priority
for the trust will be the need to continue to plan the development of our estate to ensure it
is fit for purpose in the future.
We are absolutely convinced that whilst we struggle with the difficult financial
environment that is enveloping the whole public sector it is even more important that we
focus on why we do what we do and the importance of continuing to be the best hospital
we can be. Despite increasingly demanding national performance targets and reduced
levels of funding, the Board is confident that by continuing to work in partnership with our
staff, patients and governors we can continue to provide the high quality services that our
patients deserve.

Alan Maynard

Patrick Crowley
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Chairman

Chief Executive

On behalf of the Board of Directors I would like to thank Alan Maynard for his selfless
and outstanding contribution to the Trust over many years as he retires as Chairman at
the end of the year. I have known Alan for 18 years and have yet to meet anyone with
greater enthusiasm for nurturing, supporting and developing the role of the health
service overall but in particular his care and attention to the delivery of services within
our community and his admiration for the staff that provide them. I am privileged to have
worked with him, most recently as Chief Executive, and I believe we have enjoyed a
challenging and supportive partnership that hopefully got the best out of both of us.

Patrick Crowley
Chief Executive
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors of the Trust
The directors, appointed to membership of the Board of Directors, in post during the year
from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 were:
Professor Alan Maynard

Chairman, retired from the Trust in March
2010

Mr Patrick Crowley

Chief Executive

Professor John Hutton

Senior Independent Director and Nonexecutive Director

Mrs Gillian Fleming

Non-executive Director, resigned January
2010

Mr Alan Rose

Non-executive Director appointed
Chairman from 1 April 2010

Mr Philip Ashton

Non-executive Director

Ms Libby Raper

Non-executive Director from 1 August 2009

Mr Michael Sweet

Non-executive Director from 1 February
2010

Mrs Linda Palazzo

Non-executive Director

Mr Mike Proctor

Deputy Chief Executive

Mr Andrew Bertram

Director of Finance from 19 January 2009

Mrs Alison Hughes

Director of Strategy and Facilities, resigned
October 2009

Ms Elizabeth McManus

Chief Nurse

Ms Peta Hayward

Director of HR

Further details about the directors can be found on page 38 of this report.
The principal activities of the year
The principal purpose of the Trust is the provision of goods and services for the purpose
of the health service in England.
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Fair view of the Trust
The table below provides a high level summary of the Trust’s financial results for 2009/10.
Summary income and expenditure

Clinical income
Non-clinical income
Total income
Pay spend
Non-pay spend
Total spend before dividend, interest and impairments
Exceptional bad debt
Impairments
Dividend and interest
Net surplus/deficit
Financial risk rating

2009/10
Plan
£million
204.6
31.7
236.3
-150.9
-80.4
-231.3
-0.5
-3.7
0.8
3

2009/10
Actual
£million
202.9
32.6
235.5
-151.6
-80.7
-232.3
-4.0
-1.4
-3.4
-5.6
2

2009/10
Variance
£million
-1.7
0.9
-0.8
-0.7
-0.3
-1.0
4.0
-0.9
0.3
-6.4

At the end of the financial year, the Trust reported a technical income and expenditure deficit
of £5.6m, compared with a planned surplus of £0.8m. This was after impairment losses
associated with settling the Trust’s contract with NHS NYY for 2009/10 for £4m less than the
agreed liability and incurring £1.4m impairment costs associated with the writing down of
fixed assets to reflect the in-year reduction in the building replacement cost index. These
items have been treated as exceptional costs in the Trust’s accounts.
Excluding these exceptional items, the Trust achieved an underlying deficit of £0.1m
compared to a planned surplus of £1.3m.
Accounting policies
In 2009/10 the Trust adopted international financial reporting standards, (IFRS) and revised
its accounting policies accordingly. The main impact on the Trust’s accounts is in the
presentation of the information.
Income from activities
Income from clinical activities totalled £202.9m, and comprised 86.1% of total income. It
arose mainly from contracts with NHS NYY and other local Primary Care Trusts (£200.7m),
with the balance of £2.2 m from other patient-related services, including private patients and
personal injury cases.
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Income from activities 2009/10

Other clinical income
(£54.8m)
27%

Elective income
(£38.2m)
19%

Accident and emergency
(£6.0m)
3%

Private patient (£0.8m)
0%

Outpatient (£33.9m)
17%

Non elective income
(£69.2m)
34%

Income generated from non-healthcare activities
Other income totalled £32.6m and comprised 13.9% of total income. It arose from funding for
education and training, and for research and development, and from the provision of various
non-clinical services to other organisations and individuals.
Cash
The Trust had a cash balance at the end of the year of £4.6m, after managing the impact of
waiving the £4m debt owed by NHS NYY.
Borrowing limit
The Trust has a total borrowing limit of £46.6m, set by Monitor. This is the amount of money
the Trust can borrow, based upon a detailed financial risk assessment. During 2009/10, the
Trust took out the first instalment of a loan to finance the construction of the multi-storey car
park using this facility.
Monitor risk rating
The Trust achieved a risk rating of 2 in 2009/10, under the revised risk rating calculations
introduced by Monitor in 2009/10. The lower rating was primarily a reflection of the deficit
arising from the reduced settlement with NHS NYY.
Financial risk is assessed on a scale of 1 (high risk) to 5 (low risk).
The Trust is forecasting a low risk score of at least 3 for 2010/11.
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Capital investment activity
During 2009/10, the Trust spent £8.3m on capital schemes. These included:
 A major upgrade of the aseptic pharmacy facility
 The upgrade of the coronary care unit
 The start of a phased programme of lift upgrades
 The commencement of the on site multi-storey car park scheme for patients and
visitors.
In addition the Trust bought significant amounts of new and replacement medical and IT
equipment and plant through a combination of purchasing and lease finance.
At the end of the year, the Trust’s land and buildings were re-valued by the Valuation Office
Agency, on the basis of depreciated replacement cost, for a modern equivalent asset. As
national building replacement costs fell during 2009/10, the Trust’s fixed asset values
reduced at the end of the year by £10.8m, including £1.4m reported through the Trust’s
income and expenditure account.
Planned capital investment
Capital investment plans for 2010/11 include:





Building a second MRI scanning facility on the York Hospital site to increase scanning
capacity
Providing a bereavement suite to provide a centrally-located, supportive focal point for
bereaved relatives. The capital cost is partly funded by the York Hospital Charity,
other local charities and the King’s Fund
A programme of new and replacement x-ray equipment related to the expansion of
the North Yorkshire breast screening service
Further IT hardware and software developments.

Land interests
There are no significant differences between the carrying amount and the market value of
the Trust’s land holdings.
Investments
The Trust made no investments through joint ventures or subsidiary companies, and no
other financial investments were made. No financial assistance was given or received by the
Trust.
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Private patient income
Under the terms of authorisation, the proportion of private patient income to the total patient
related income of the Foundation Trust should not exceed its 2002/3 proportion of 0.8%.
Actual private patient income for 2009/10 totalled £0.9m and represented 0.4% of total
patient-related income. The Trust is therefore compliant with this obligation.
Value for money
The Trust has a proven record of implementing resource management cost improvement
programmes aimed at delivering efficiencies, to support the Trust in making outstanding use
of its available money, staff, equipment and premises. Good resource management
provides clarity of focus and is usually linked to improved patient care. The work involves
linking across the Trust to identify and promote efficient practices.
In 2009/2010 the Trust was required to deliver an efficiency target of £8.4m. This was
devolved to directorates based on their available budgets. Managers were given freedom to
consider how these savings were delivered and this year over two hundred successful ideas
were implemented. Schemes included generating additional income, reducing staff costs,
negotiating reduced prices for supplies and improving the utilisation of beds, theatres and
clinics. The amount achieved in 2009/10 was £8.8m, £0.4m above plan.
Going concern
After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.
Political and charitable donations
No political or charitable donations were made during the year.
Accounting policies for pensions and other retirement benefits
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS pension scheme.
The scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme. Further details are included
in the accounting policies notes to the Trust’s annual accounts.
Significant events since balance sheet date
There are no post balance sheet events likely to have a material impact on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2010.
Directors’ statement
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors
are unaware. The directors have taken all of the steps that they ought to have taken as
directors, in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information, and to
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establish that the auditors are aware of that information.
Senior employees’ remuneration can be found on page 116 of this report.
The development and performance of the Trust during the year
The headline for the year 2009/10 in terms of performance would have to read, ‘A
challenging but successful year’. The Trust once again met all its key access targets.
However, the headline would mask some significant difficulties which have arisen because of
the significant increase in demand experienced and some of the significant difficulties
experienced financially within the North Yorkshire area.
The Trust has continued to strengthen its ability to deliver the demands of the community by
recruiting additional consultants and supporting NHS NYY in them being able to provide care
in the community when appropriate.
The Trust was issued a full unconditional licence from the Care Quality Commission in April
2010. The licence is an endorsement from the Care Quality Commission that the outcomes
the Trust delivers for patients are of the standard and quality they would view as acceptable.
The Care Quality Commission’s annual health check released in October 2009 revealed the
organisation as ‘excellent’ for resources and ‘good’ for quality of services.
During the year the Trust reviewed the mission and values of the organisation with a view to
developing a clear direction for the Trust. The organisation has identified four strategic
‘frames’ that support the mission of the organisation. The vision is to be trusted to deliver
safe, effective healthcare for our community. The four strategic ‘frames’ are:





improving quality and safety
improving our effectiveness: capacity and capability
Develop stronger citizenship through our work with partners and the broader
community
improve our facilities and protect the environment.

Improve quality and safety
During the year the Trust has continued to drive the implementation of the quality and safety
strategy - Safe and cared for. Improvements have been made and reported to the Board
through a safety dashboard developed to provide assurance.
We continue to work with national and international experts in the field and whilst proud of
our progress will continue to push for the best possible results across all aspects of our care.
We will publish our quality account/report and ensure that patients, relatives, governors and
members of the Trust are able to influence our work plan in the future.
Improve effectiveness, capacity and capability
The Trust has continued to invest in the delivery of services as required by the community it
serves, which has included the delivery of all targets set both locally and nationally. The
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Trust has worked closely with NHS NYY and other healthcare organisations in the area to
ensure that healthcare is delivered within the available resources, contributing significantly to
the community approach to quality, innovation, productivity and prevention (QIPP). Staff
have been successful in delivering the cost improvement plans during the year and reshaping the delivering of services while maintaining the quality of care in the Trust.
Improve working with our partners and within the broader community
In past year the Trust has continued to develop clinical alliance working with Harrogate,
Scarborough and Hull in order to sustain and provide services, where appropriate, as close
to home as possible.
Improving our facilities and environment
The Trust believes that the facilities and environment play an important part in the quality of
care that patients receive. As part of the developments undertaken this year the Trust has
embarked on a programme of building including the construction of the multi-storey car park
which should be completed during 2011.
Main trends and factors likely to affect the future development, performance and position of
the business
The organisation’s primary operational focus during the next year is the efficient
management of emergency admissions to the hospital. It is evident that growth in this area
will continue and we have to establish patient flow systems that improve front-line senior
decision making and admission avoidance whenever it makes clinical sense to do so.
Our workforce remains our most important and best asset. They always respond positively to
change and the pressures of demands and continue to provide a high standard of care to our
patients.
The majority of the Trust’s income for clinical services is through contracts with PCTs. NHS
NYY is the Trust’s main commissioner accounting for over 90% of the Trusts NHS clinical
income during 2009/10. NHS East Riding of Yorkshire (NHS ERY) accounts for a further 7%,
with 2% coming from other PCTs. During 2009/10 activity with all PCTs was in excess of the
contracted activity. The additional activity arose from extraordinary demand for non-elective
admissions and the need to meet and maintain 18 week referral to treatment targets
throughout the year.
For the 2010/11 plan the Trust has assumed that activity levels will continue broadly at the
2009/10 levels and the PCTS are contracting at this level. In addition, the Trust is
developing new services in the provision of cardiology angioplasty and gynaecology
oncology so that patients need no longer travel to other hospitals to receive these services.
The Trust is also planning the implementation of the expansion of the North Yorkshire breast
screening service with effect from January 2011, to cover the age range from 47 to 73.
The demand for Lucentis to treat age-related macular degeneration continues to grow and
additional income and expenditure for this expansion is assumed in the plan.
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Delivering the resource management agenda is essential to our future financial stability. The
financial plan assumes that the Trust will deliver a significant and challenging efficiency
programme of 5.5% (£12.2m).
For this reason the work is fully supported by the corporate director team. Strong links exist
with human resources, nursing, patient quality and operations management, ensuring that
savings and efficiency are fully embedded into organisational thinking.
The Trust is also currently tendering to take over the operation of the Clifton Park
Independent Sector Treatment Centre (ISTC) and a decision is expected during the latter
half of 2010/11. The Trust is also assessing the impact of the planned transformation of
community services that are currently managed within the provider arm of the NHS NYY.
20010/11 financial outlook and principal risks
In 2009/10 the Trust agreed to waive income of £4m due to be paid by NHS NYY for activity
undertaken beyond the original contract levels. In recognition of the ongoing difficult
financial position, the NHS Yorkshire and the Humber Strategic Health Authority (SHA) have
provided £4m transitional funding in 2010/11 to support the Trust, and protect its cash
resource. The Trust is also positively managing its cash strategy to ensure a healthy cash
balance is maintained.
For 2010/11, the Trust is working collaboratively with other local providers, NHS NYY and
the SHA through a System Management Executive, to better understand, manage and share
financial risks across the local health economy.
A number of significant risks and assumptions in achieving the 2010/11 plans are set out
below:






Activity and income plans will be underpinned by the contracts and risk sharing
arrangements with the Trust’s main commissioning PCTs
the expenditure plans assume that in-year overspending on operational budgets can
be managed by directorates
further investment in NICE recommendations outside of the tariff is subject to securing
specific agreement and income from commissioning PCTs. The plans assume that
no unplanned investment will take place unless specific income is secured
the plans assume a significant and challenging efficiency programme of 5.5%
(£12.2m) will be delivered
the plans assume that £2m planned slippage of proposed developments is achieved.
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Charitable funds
The charitable funds of York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust are registered under a single
umbrella charity called York Health Services Trust General Charity. The charity is registered with
the Charity Commission under number 1054527. Acting for the corporate trustee, the charitable
funds committee is responsible for the overall management of the charitable fund. The charity
provides grants to purchase a wide range of additional goods and services that the NHS is
unable to provide, benefiting both patients and staff.
During 2009/10, the grants from the charity included:







New coronary care equipment
contributing to the upgrade of the coronary care unit to provide anew nurses station facility
additional equipment for the special care baby unit, funded from a donation by the SCBU
support group
funding for a number of research projects
a grant to York Hospital Radio to contribute to the cost of upgrading their studio equipment
support for additional staff training and other benefits.

.
The charity also committed to providing a significant grant towards the capital cost of the new
bereavement suite that will be completed during the coming year.
Items over £5,000 are capitalised and included in the Trust’s fixed assets. The charity’s annual
report and accounts are published separately, and are available from the Trust on request.
Environmental issues
Sustainable development is about meeting society’s needs today without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their needs – often referred to as good corporate citizenship.
The Trust is committed to being a good corporate citizen and as such has developed a number of
plans to reduce its carbon footprint. Examples of the work being undertaken are:
 A sustainable travel plan incentivises staff to use alternative methods of coming to work in
order to reduce single occupancy car journeys
 our fleet of vehicles has recently been updated and this has significantly reduced carbon
emissions
 our procurement policy has been updated to help maximise the positive benefits and
minimise the negative benefits on society, the economy and the environment throughout
the full lifecycle of the product
 the Trust has started to procure goods as locally as possible to boost our local economy
 our waste management strategy meets the new legislative requirements and the Trust is
recycling more and more waste. There are plans to go further with recycling in 200910/11.
This not only has benefits for the environment but also reduces the costs of waste disposal
 the Trust is currently working on a carbon reduction strategy which will reduce the amount
of energy we use that produces carbon dioxide
 when building new buildings, the Trust intends to follow the good practice guidance which
is aimed at reducing the carbon footprint of the build.
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Our staff
The tables below show the number of staff we have in post and the levels of sickness during the
year in the Trust.
Full Time Employees Staff in Post
31 March 2010

Nursing & midwifery

378

Healthcare assistant & other
support
1,420

663

Administrative and Estates

Scientific therapeutic &
technical
904

410

Medical and Dental

Staff sickness
The quarterly sickness figures for the year are:

Trust quarterly sickness for 200
4.50%
4.40%
4.30%
4.20%
4.10%
4.00%
3.90%
3.80%
3.70%
3.60%
3.50%

Trust quarterly sickness for 2009/1

Quarter 1

3.99%

Quarter 2

3.83%

The attendance project has far exceeded the key targets set for reducing sickness absence
within the Trust. The key achievements to date (from March 2008 to March 2010) are detailed
below:

22

Quarterly sickness – In March 2008 the Trust had an absence rate of 5.1%. It set a target of 4.2%
to achieve by March 2010. By March 2010 the Trust’s quarterly absence rate was 4.04%.
Long term sick (4 weeks +) – In March 2008 there were 99 staff with long term sickness
conditions. The Trust set a target of having 45 staff by March 2010. In March 2010 there were 45
staff who were classed as long term sick (4 weeks +).
Long term sick (3 months +) – In March 2008 there were 52 staff with long term sickness
conditions. The Trust set a target to have only 20 staff with long term sickness conditions by
March 2010. In March 2010 there were 10 staff who were classed as long term sick (3 months +).
Corporately these resulted in the following improvements




21.25% proportionate reduction in the Trust's quarterly sickness absence rate
54.55% reduction in the number of staff long term sick (4 weeks +) on
80.77% reduction in the number of staff long term sick (3 months +) on

Significant activities in the field of research and development
The Trust has a leading role in organisation of NHS research in the region. It hosts the North and
East Yorkshire Alliance Research and Development Unit, which provides research governance,
management and support services for York and Harrogate Foundation Trusts and for primary
care in North and East Yorkshire, Hull and York. It also hosts the North and East Yorkshire and
Northern Lincolnshire Comprehensive Local Research Network (CLRN), part of the National
Institute for Health Research infrastructure for clinical research.
During 2009/10 a total of 2458 participants were recruited to the 201 research projects active in
the Trust. In the previous year there were 182 active research projects. The increase in activity
is significant, and has undoubtedly been influenced by CLRN funding of some essential posts.
The Trust now has CLRN-funded staff working in its pharmacy and other support department
roles in addition to a number of CLRN-funded research nurses, whose work is essential for
ensuring that research projects, particularly medicinal product trials, are run safely and to the
rigorous standards the law requires.
Of the 201 projects, 23% were cancer studies and 14% related to various cardiovascular
conditions including stroke. Studies funded by commercial organisations (pharmaceutical or
medical devices companies) comprised 30% of this research portfolio. 35% of the projects were
clinical trials of investigational medicinal products.
The Trust works closely with Hull York Medical School (HYMS) to develop clinical research in the
region. This year saw the opening of the HYMS Experimental Medicine Unit. Funded by the
National Institute for Health Research, this clinical research facility is provided by the Trust as a
HYMS NHS partner. Based on the York Hospital site this unit is able to support “Phase 1”
(healthy volunteer or ‘first in human’) clinical trials at a location that has the essential rapid
access to emergency facilities if they are ever required. With a dedicated professional team,
office, laboratory, and use of outpatient rooms in the Hospital’s Learning and Research Centre it
provides expert facilities for helping researchers at the stage where basic scientific discovery
starts to move into development of new treatments.
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External auditors
Grant Thornton UK LLP
No. 1 Whitehall Riverside,
Whitehall Road,
Leeds,
LS1 4BN
External auditors’ remuneration
The total cost of audit services for the year was £48,000 plus VAT for the statutory audit of
accounts for the 12 months ended 31 March 2010. Additionally Monitor has required the auditors
to undertake a dry run external assurance audit for the Quality Account, the cost for this service
for the year was £15,000 plus VAT.
Equality and diversity
The Trust's approach to equality and diversity is set out in the Inclusivity Scheme. The scheme
has been extended for a further 12 months to allow for the impact of the implementation of the
Equality Act 2010 to be taken into account in the scheme update.
All Trust policies are subjected to an Equalities Impact Assessment as they are developed and
reviewed. The assessment process will be further developed this year in line with the Equality Act
2010, and impact assessments will be published when appropriate.
The Trust has published a Health and Wellbeing policy for staff, which recognises the obligation
to make reasonable adjustments for staff who need them to take up or continue their
employment.
Policies for disabled employees and equal opportunities
The Trust’s Inclusivity Scheme and its supporting policies are the cornerstone of its approach to
equality of employment opportunity. We recognise our responsibility to provide (as far as is
reasonably practicable) job security of all employees.
Our policies aim to ensure that no job applicant or employee receives less favourable treatment
where it cannot be shown to be justifiable on the grounds of age, gender, sexual orientation,
race, nationality or disability in relation to recruitment and selection, promotion, transfer, training,
discipline and grievance and all terms and conditions of employment.
Policy applied for the continuing employment of disabled persons
As a Foundation Trust, we recognise the important role we must play as an active and socially
responsible member of the local community and that our patients, clients and staff represent the
community we serve.
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Policy applied for career development of disabled persons
We know that having a committed and motivated workforce depends on staff feeling that they are
treated with fairness, respect and dignity and that they have equal opportunities for selfdevelopment. We want to ensure that our staff are not discriminated against, or harassed, on the
grounds of their ethnic origin, physical or mental ability, gender, age, religious beliefs or sexual
orientation. Equally, if this happens, we want staff to feel confident about using our policies to
raise concerns and to have them addressed.
Providing information to employees
The Trust believes that having well informed and involved staff leads to well informed and
involved patients, relatives and public. During the year staff have been consulted on issues that
affect them in the way services are delivered and changes to practices that affect their working
environment.
The Trust uses different methods of communicating with staff including:






team brief – held on a monthly basis
posters, leaflets, reports
intranet – staff only website
YorkTalk – quarterly newsletter
Payslips – whenever required

Action taken to encourage involvement of employees in the Foundation Trust
The Trust has had a team brief system in place for a long time, this year an audit was undertaken
to identify where the system could be improved. The results of the audit have been fed into the
Trust’s corporate communications strategy and recommendations will be made as part of the
annual action plan for reviewing and refreshing the team brief process. The current system
requires senior managers to disseminate information in a cascade approach ensuring that key
decisions taken by the Trust are reported to staff. The system also seeks feedback from staff on
the issues covered in the briefing.
The Chief Executive and directors encourage staff to send questions and comments to them. The
Chief Executive and directors undertake to respond to any comments by staff within 24 hours.
Staff are encouraged to speak to their staff governors as another method of becoming involved in
the Trust.
Counter fraud service
The Foundation Trust's counter fraud arrangements are in compliance with the Secretary of
State's Directions on countering fraud and the requirements specified in the NHS Counter Fraud
and Corruption Policy. These arrangements are underpinned by the appointment of accredited
local counter fraud specialists and the introduction of a Trust-wide countering fraud and
corruption policy. An annual plan identifying the actions to be undertaken to create an anti-fraud
culture, deter, prevent, detect and, where not prevented, investigate suspicions of fraud is
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produced and approved by the Trust's audit committee.
Information risks and data losses in 2009/10
York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has a comprehensive Board-approved information
governance policy in place and an established work programme to ensure compliance with the
NHS Connecting for Health IG Toolkit standards. Its self-assessment score for the year 2009/10
is 89%, achieving a ‘green’ rating in all initiatives.
The Trust complies, at attainment level 2 or greater, with all the requirements of the current NHS
Connecting for Health statement of compliance.
The Trust’s internal auditors have verified that the self-assessment scores are accurate and
supported by appropriate evidence of implemented risk control measures.
The Director of Finance is Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) for the Trust. The SIRO takes
ownership of the Trust’s information risk policy, acts as advocate for information risk on the
Board, and provides written advice to the accounting officer on the content of our statement of
internal control in regard to information risk.
No information security breaches occurred during the year, which were of a scale or severity to
require a report to the Information Commissioner. However, there were two incidents in which
personal information relating to Trust patients was, or could have been, unintentionally disclosed.
The incidents are declared, in accordance with Department of Health guidance.

Patrick Crowley
Chief Executive
4 June 2010
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BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Our history
The Foundation Trust provides acute hospital services for approximately 350,000 people living
in and around York and also a range of specialist services over a wider catchment area for
around 500,000 people in North Yorkshire. The hospital’s elderly department has communitybased units based at St Helen’s, Nelson Court and White Cross Court in York. The Trust also
has satellite renal dialysis units based at Acorn Court, Easingwold and Harrogate and District
NHS Foundation Trust. Sexual health services are provided at Monkgate Health Centre and
school health services are provided across York and Selby.
The Trust has a comprehensive range of acute services at the York Hospital site including a
maternity unit, adult critical care unit, emergency department, and a coronary care unit.
In 1976, York District Hospital came into being. The scale of the hospital, with 812 beds in
thirty wards, was at the time, larger than anything ever seen in York. It replaced a total of nine
hospitals: York County Hospital, York City Hospital, Military Hospital, Fulford Hospital, Acomb
Hospital, Poppleton Gate, Deighton Grove, Fairfield Hospital and Yearsley Bridge Hospital.
Princess Alexandra came to officially open it on 28 July 1977.
The new hospital cost £10.5m to build and a further £2m to equip. It occupied 20 out of the 22
acres on the site and accommodated over 1,600 staff.
In 1981, a scheme commenced to house maternity services at the main site. A delivery suite
and special care baby unit were built and existing wards were converted to antenatal and
postnatal wards and a new maternity entrance was created.
York Health Authority became a single district Trust in April 1992, known as York Health
Services NHS Trust.
The development of the Selby and York Primary Care Trust had major implications for York
Health Services NHS Trust, as it had provided secondary care and community services since
1992. Community and mental health services in Selby and York were taken over by the PCT
and the function of York Health Services NHS Trust now centered on secondary acute care.
In 2003 the main hospital changed from York District Hospital to York Hospital and became
York Hospitals NHS Trust.
Having achieved a 3 star performance rating in 2005, the Trust applied to become a NHS
Foundation Trust in 2006. Monitor approved the application and York Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust began life on 1 April 2007. The attainment of this target was a great tribute
to the hard work of staff throughout the organisation and is recognition that we are one of the
top performing organisations in the country. Being a Foundation Trust means we can manage
our own budgets and are able to shape our services to reflect local needs and priorities whilst
remaining fully committed to the core principles of the National Health Service.
Thank you to Kath Webb, Trust Archivist, for providing background information
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OPERATING FRAMEWORK
Patient care and stakeholder relations
Information for patients and carers
Patient and public involvement (PPI) is an integral part of the Trust’s work. The Trust listens
and responds to patients to improve services. As a result of listening to patients, the Trust
aims to:







Improve access and reduce waiting
offer more information and choice
build closer relationships
provide safe, high quality and co-ordinated care
provide a clean, comfortable and friendly environment
improve the patient experience.

The national inpatient survey was completed in February 2010. It involved patients admitted
to York Hospital in July 2009. The response rate was 54%.
Areas in which patients were particularly positive about their experience were:
Score %
92
 Doctors and nurses worked well together
94
 Room or ward was very/fairly clean
94
 Hand-wash gels visible and available for patients and
visitors to use
92
 Overall rating of care was good/excellent
Areas where patients reported problems include:



didn't get enough information about ward routines
not enough opportunity for family to talk to doctor

Score %
63
61

These and other issues raised are being addressed.
Local Involvement Networks (LINks)
The government replaced Patient and Public Involvement Forums (PPIF) with LINks in Local
Government and Public Involvement legislation in 2008. The aims of York LINk are to:



Encourage and support more people to get involved in shaping local services
actively canvass every section of the community’s views about what they think about
their local care services
 feed back to those who purchase and provide health and social care services what
people have said so that things can change for the better.
The Trust will work closely with York LINk to help them meet their aims and realise their work
plans.
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Information on handling complaints
365 formal complaints were received this year (338 last year).
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Category of complaints received
The top five types of complaints using the Department of Health /Datix categories were:
clinical care-medical/nursing/midwifery/other health professional (197),
communication/information (52), staff attitude (47), appointment delay/cancellation
outpatient (25), and admissions/discharge (23).
Complaints referred to the Health Service Ombudsman
Nine complaints in total were referred to the Health Service Ombudsman.
Of the nine complaints, six were not upheld, but one was referred back to the Trust with a
suggestion for improvement and the suggestion was acted upon. One complaint had
recommendations suggested to the Trust, these recommendations have also been fulfilled.
Two complaints were referred back for further local resolution, one has since been closed
and one still being resolved.
The Trust makes every effort to handle complaints:




Directly and quickly
with honesty and fairness
with confidentiality.

If a complaint is made to the Trust about our services we will:
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Acknowledge the complaint verbally or in writing in three working days
when acknowledging the complaint the Trust will:
o check we fully understand the issues raised
o offer to discuss how the complaint will be handled
o tell the complainant when the investigation will be completed and when they
will be sent a full written response
o offer to arrange a meeting to discuss the complaint with appropriate members
of staff
o investigate all the issues raised
o tell the complainant if we need more time
o identify any improvements we need to make in our services, tell the
complainant the actions we are taking and when they will be completed

More information about making a complaint to the Trust about its services is available on
the Trust’s website at:
http://www.yorkhospitals.nhs.uk/index.php?id=38&ob=1
Positive patient feedback
This is collected and collated by the patient experience team from either the Chief
Executive’s office, or from wards and departments receiving the feedback directly. A total of
3871 letters, cards and emails were received.
Resource management in the Trust
The resource management agenda is primarily focused on the delivery of efficiencies. This
equates to supporting the Trust in making outstanding use of its available money, staff,
equipment and premises. Good resource management provides clarity of focus and is usually
linked to improved patient care. The work involves linking across the Trust to identify and
promote efficient practices. The outcome of this is the creation of a three year efficiency plan.
In 2009/2010 York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust was required to deliver an efficiency
target of £8.4m. This was devolved to directorates based on their available budgets.
Managers were given freedom to consider how these savings were delivered and this year
over two hundred successful ideas were implemented. Schemes included generating
additional income, reducing staff costs, negotiating reduced prices for supplies and improving
the use of beds, theatres and clinics. Overall efficiencies of £8.8m were realised, over £400k
above plan.
The main theme of the resource management agenda has been to reward innovative and
efficient activities. This has broadened our approach to generating savings and engendered
increased engagement. Directorate teams exceeding their individual targets have also been
credited with a small amount of funding to spend as they choose with in the directorate.
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Corporate learning and development
Applied learning and research
The applied learning and research virtual corporate directorate became operational in April
2010, enabling the organisation to bring under one corporate umbrella all elements of enquiry,
education and training, learning and development. The directorate is lead by Dr Jonny Thow as
clinical corporate lead and Sue Holden as corporate managerial lead. A number of teams
contribute to the directorate, all with a clear focus on enabling the organisation to have staff
who are fit to practice. Over the last year there has been an increased focus upon developing
our internal resources to ensure we can continue to provide learning and development which is
value for money and of high quality.
Resuscitation team
The implementation and dissemination of new guidelines on resuscitation, due in the autumn
2010, will require significant additional training. This impacts on training and clinical practice. An
accurate system for data collection from cardiac arrest attempts has been set up following the
national patient safety initiative. The roll-out of new defibrillators and emergency airways
continues to improve clinical practice in resuscitation.
Clinical development team
Following our successful bid to the SHA we will be providing leading-edge simulation clinical
skills training.
Quality assurance is a prime issue for the clinical development team and we are working
regional and national colleagues and organisations to ensure our clinical skills training remains
leading edge. The team have established a reputation for the delivery of innovative and robust
clinical skills training, this has resulted in increased demand.
HYMS clinical skills
Completion of all the standards and performance criteria for the HYMS clinical skills has been
an ongoing project which has almost been completed. Introduction of interactive teaching, for
example using simulated patients and video recording sessions for de-briefing has proved very
successful.
The future challenges are the revision of the clinical skills curriculum to ensure skills are taught
at the most appropriate time within the course and the development of a programme for the
year 5 students which will incorporate the use of the new simulation equipment.
Organisational development and improvement learning team
The organisational development and improvement learning team focus on the development of
services, teams and individuals within the organisation. The team have worked with colleagues
across all directorates in the organisation to find the best way to help develop staff and improve
performance. The positive impact of the team has resulted in increased requests for support
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and is prioritised against individual/team/organisational need.
The range of services offered by the team include:










Leadership and management development programmes
bespoke team programmes/workshops
internal consultation
coaching and mentoring
improvement training
advice relating to both organisational development and improvement
human skills training
administration of individual development tools
commissioning of healthcare professional education and maintenance of professional
mentor registers
 administration and feedback of group and individual assessment tools
 co-ordination and delivery of assessment centres

The corporate learning teams sit within the applied learning and research directorate and
include postgraduate medical education, the health library, corporate learning and development
and the HYMS team. All have faced significant challenges and change over the last 12 months
and have improved both provision and access to training across all staff groups. All annual
reports, new strategies and progress updates have been reviewed and approved at Executive
Board level.
York hospital health library and information service
During 2009/10 the library team made significant progress towards achieving targets identified
in the annual action plan. The main achievements have been:
 90% compliance with national service framework standards
 development of a new clinical librarian post
 agreement reached with NHS NYY for library services and funding
 a permanent location has been identified for the information point (staff library annex)
 completion of a three month knowledge management pilot study
One member of the team achieving the Certified Affiliate of Chartered Institute of Library and
Information Professionals (ACLIP) award with the Chartered Institute of Library and Information
Professionals (CLIP).
The rising costs of journal subscriptions remain an issue especially with increased demand for
electronic provision. Library staff will be meeting with departmental representatives to develop
a future plan for the journal collection.
A staff review in 2009 led to several staff changes and the team now has the capacity to take
advantage of new opportunities in clinical librarianship, knowledge management and web 2.0
technologies over the next 12 months.
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Corporate learning and development (CLAD)
Within CLAD team roles have been redefined and many of the processes/systems it uses have
been simplified. It continues to be the guardian of the Trust’s statutory and mandatory
learning/development and acts as an access point for support staff funding/development.
In summary:
Processes/systems used for learning administration are more robust, meeting the increasing
demands of internal and external audit requirements. The team achieved the Trust’s increasing
internal targets for annual refresher training for the second year running. Support materials are
now being used by learners to ensure that they receive the mandatory training requirement for
their role. Mandatory learning is now viewed holistically thus eliminating duplication of learning.
The numbers of staff accessing learning via e-learning packages has significantly increased
and this trend is expected to continue in the new financial year. This has considerably
increased the team’s workload, however it is anticipated that this will reduce when these
packages are moved onto national learning management system (NLMS). Approximately a
quarter of staff now have logon IDs. The ongoing challenge for the CLAD team will be the
additional workload this activity generates.
CLAD are now routinely using electronic staff record - oracle learning management (ESR OLM)
for course administration/monitoring. Recognised as the organisation’s experts in this area, the
team have started to roll out the use of this system to others within the organisation that coordinate training activity. This will present many challenges, including managing expectations,
as we move organisationally towards using a central database.
HYMS team
The year 2009/10 has been one of sustained improvement in the delivery of the curriculum.
The York HYMS Clinical Learning and Teaching Board has been the focus for organising the
local York-based hospital and GP teaching, for reviewing what has happened and innovating to
fill observed gaps in students’ experience and knowledge. There are regular changes to the
teaching teams and a development programme in place ensures that all staff have the prerequisite knowledge and the opportunity to further develop their skills through short courses or
peer observation.
An exercise is underway to ensure that links are retained between resources contributed by
HYMS to departments and teaching delivered against this. This is viewed by HYMS as one of
the important factors in ensuring the continuity and standard of local teaching which reflects on
the medical school. A key challenge in the future will relate to the changes in the way that
medical service increment for training (SIFT) is allocated to York Hospital and the impact on
teaching and infrastructure support for medical students.
Key achievements include:


Focussed investment in a number of new clinical posts. HYMS teaching sessions are
identifiable in the relevant job plans belonging to a new acute consultant physician; and
new consultant pharmacologist and new clinical lecturer in Surgery
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formal clinical placements examinations took place in years 2, 4 and 5 and featured 564
separate clinical exams. The local organisational team received very favourable
comment from the external examiners



85% of year 2 clinical placement tutors at York have been able to participate in peer
observation with either their hospital or GP partner



a structure has been developed under which HYMS at York Hospital can help support
the local appraisal of teaching as it relates to consultant appraisal.

Postgraduate medical education
The last 12 months have been a busy time for the department. There have been changes in
Royal College course and foundation curricula which has necessitated redesign of some
training programmes. Key achievements include:


The development and introduction in 2009 of online induction for junior doctors which
was initially piloted with foundation doctors and then rolled out to other specialities in
2010. This shortened induction and has provided the doctors with more time for local
induction



sixth form shadowing scheme which allows students to experience life as a doctor during
a short shadowing period. Demand for places far exceeds capacity and the team are
starting to build up a picture of which students are applying for medical careers



pilot of supporting doctors’ policy. This was developed in 2008 and launched in 2009 to
be piloted with foundation doctors. Copies have been requested by the Deanery and
shared with the BMA. It is being rolled out to other speciality trainees in 2010



two successful quality monitoring visits from the foundation school and
deanery/professional medical education training board (PMETB)



administration for the regional psychiatric scheme moved to the centre as did the training
that supports this



Good result for an audit on PMETB folders introduced in 2007.

The issues and challenges for postgraduate medical education include:


Difficulties in securing consultant faculty for courses given ever decreasing supporting
professional activity (SPA) time



shortage of trained assessors in work-based assessments and trained clinical and
educational supervisors (to meet PMETB standards)



increased numbers of trainees on foundation and GP vocational training (VT) schemes.
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North East Yorkshire and North Lincolnshire, comprehensive local research network
During this period, North East Yorkshire and Lincolnshire (NEYNL) comprehensive local
research network (CLRN) demonstrated a significant increase in National Institute Health
Research Comprehensive Research Network (NIHR CRN) portfolio activity in the Trust with
engagement across and between executives and clinical teams. The CLRN has identified,
registered and supported existing portfolio activity and developed new areas of research. We
have attempted to ensure that research supported through the NEYNL CLRN is managed
effectively and delivered to the highest standards. We have completed recruitment to the core
management team (CMT), have active well attended board and executive groups and enjoy
good relations with York Hospitals NHSFT as the host organisation. NEYNL CLRN has been
able to identify regional and Trust-based levels of activity, regional strengths, priorities and
areas for development. Reporting of regional accrual by chief investigators reached 100% in
November 2009. The centralised CMT has delivered and embedded the NEYNL CLRN strategic
operational plan and provided a robust risk management and governance service and research
recruitment infrastructure, with resources to match the proposed development of research
activity.
Research and development
The Trust’s research and development function continued to be provided within the framework
of the North and East Yorkshire Research and Development Alliance. This is hosted by the
Trust and during 2009/10 comprised the acute trusts of Harrogate, Scarborough and York,
together with the PCTs (NHS NYY, NHS Hull and NHS ERY). Scarborough acute trust left the
Alliance on 31 March 2010.
The Trust also continues to host the North and East Yorkshire and North Lincolnshire
Comprehensive Local Research Network (CLRN) and to provide core services for it including
financial management.
As a member of the CLRN the Trust benefited from significant input of funding for research
during 2009/10 by way of project-related service support costs and funding of posts in research
nurse teams and support departments such as pharmacy (total approx. £793K).
The volume of research activity in the Trust can be illustrated by reproducing the quality
accounts report for 2009/10 :
Number of patients recruited for research approved by a research ethics committee: 2497
Number of research studies approved during the year: 80
Number of research studies running during the year: 203
Number of research studies completed during the year: 42.
Approximately 75% of research projects in the Trust were part of the NIHR Clinical Research
Portfolio and thus eligible for financial or other support from the CLRN.
Approximately 30% of research projects were commercially funded.
During the year the Research and Development committee agreed to Trust sponsorship of
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seven research projects, including one clinical trial of an investigational medicinal product.
During 2009 the HYMS experimental medicine unit, which is run by the Trust as a HYMS NHS
partner, opened for business. It is currently running a phase 1 trial very successfully, with good
participant recruitment and to the appropriate time schedule. Other phase 1 trials are in the
pipeline. This is an NIHR experimental medicine facility and puts this part of the country on the
map as far as facilities of this kind are concerned.
The Trust received a statutory routine “good clinical practice” inspection of its clinical trial
systems from the Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency (MHRA). There were
no critical findings however a programme of development work on standard operating
procedures and related training resulted.
After several years of change resulting from implementation of the national Research and
Development strategy, Best Research for Best Health 2010/11 represents an opportunity for
consolidation of the Trust’s Research and Development arrangements. A priority will be
development of an over-arching strategy that will link the various elements of Trust Research
and Development activity.
The programme of work emanating from the MHRA inspection will be completed and backed up
by dissemination through training research-active clinical staff.
Members of Research and Development unit staff undertake external activities that enhance the
Trust’s reputation as a quality research centre. These include membership of:
 Two Department of Health national committees – Medical Devices Clinical Research
Working Group and NIHR Research Support Services External Reference Group
 a NICE Technology Assessment Committee
 management Groups for Yorkshire Cancer Research Network, Northern and Yorkshire
Primary Care Research Network and Yorkshire Stroke Research Network
 the University of York Clinical Trials Sponsorship Committee.
Their teaching services are also in external demand, for example on the University of York
clinical trials course and for foundation doctor training in the Deanery.
Opportunities to undertake external activity that generate income or enhance the Trust’s
reputation nationally will continue to be taken, and sought.
Occupational health- pandemic influenza
The impact of the pandemic influenza H1N1 flu virus was felt across the Trust throughout 2009
and well into the early part of 2010. The occupational health wellbeing service (OHWS) played a
crucial role in the planning, co-ordinating and delivery of the fit mask testing and pandemic
influenza H1N1 vaccination programme for front line staff and were celebrated at national level
as holding first place in the league table for the highest number of front line staff vaccinated
across the SHA. As a result of this success, OHWS were asked to take part in a DH flu
resilience programme. The techniques and approach adopted at York have been echoed in the
recommendations for pandemic influenza H1N1 vaccine delivery to NHS organisations
nationwide.
Work around developing health and wellbeing initiatives and an overall strategy continues in
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partnership with the HR team. As part of a Trust-wide health and wellbeing strategy, OHWS
headed up the development of a healthy eating Initiative working towards improving healthy
food choices for staff.
Following recommendations from the Dame Carol Black report on occupational health in the
NHS, York OHWS was chosen by the Department for Work Pensions (DWP) as one of seven
national pilot sites to provide a free ‘health for work adviceline' aimed at small to medium sized
enterprises. The project, which started in December 2010, will run over sixteen months and is
anticipated to generate £50k income.
OHWS York has also had an excellent year of contract activity, exceeding projected income and
resulting in 40% year-on-year growth.
Better Payment Practice Code - measure of compliance
The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all undisputed invoices by
the due date or within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later. The
Trust operates its Better Payment Policy with a five day allowance for goods to be dispatched
and received in the Trust.
The Trust additionally has a policy where it aims to pay local suppliers within 15 days.
The table below shows the actual achievements against the target for 2009/10.
2009/10
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total Non NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target

Number
67,020
50,126
75%

£000
72,143
56,048
78%

3,100
2,121
68%

26,516
19,992
75%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board of Directors – April 2009 to March 2010
An effective Board of Directors should lead every NHS Foundation Trust as the Board is
collectively responsible for the exercise of the powers and performance of the organisation.
The Board of Directors has a strategic focus – developing, monitoring and delivering plans. The
Board members have collective responsibility for all aspects of the performance of the Trust
including finance, performance, clinical and service quality including patient safety, management
and governance.
The Board of Directors consists of a chairman, deputy chairman/senior independent director, chief
executive, non-executive directors and executive directors. Its role includes:
 Providing active leadership of the Trust within a framework of prudent and effective controls
which enables risk to be assessed and managed
 ensuring compliance by the Trust with its terms of authorisation, its constitution, mandatory
guidance issued by Monitor, relevant statutory requirements and contractual obligations
 setting the Trust’s strategic aims, taking into consideration the views of the Council of
Governors, ensuring that the necessary financial and human resources are in place for the
NHS Foundation Trust to meet its objectives and review management performance
 ensuring the quality and safety of healthcare services, education, training and research
delivered by the Trust and applying the principles and standards of clinical governance set out
by the Department of Health, Monitor, the Care Quality Commission, and other relevant NHS
bodies
 ensuring that the Trust exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and economically
 setting the Trust’s values and standards of conduct and ensuring that its obligations to its
members, patients and other stakeholders are understood and met
 all directors must take decisions objectively in the interests of the Trust
 All directors have joint responsibility for every decision of the Board of Directors regardless of
their individual skills or status
 the concept of the unitary Board refers to the fact that within the Board of Directors the nonexecutive directors and the executive directors share the same liability. All directors have
responsibility to challenge constructively the decisions of the Board and improve proposals on
strategy
 setting targets, monitoring performance and ensuring the resources are used in the most
appropriate way
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 as part of their role as members of a unitary Board, non-executive directors have a particular
duty to ensure such challenge is made. Non-executive directors should scrutinise the
performance of the management in meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor the
reporting of performance. They should satisfy themselves as to the integrity of financial,
clinical and other information, and that financial and clinical quality controls and systems of
risk management are robust and defensible. They are responsible for determining appropriate
levels of remuneration of executive directors and have a prime role in appointing, and where
necessary removing, executive directors, and in succession planning
 being accountable for provided funds and how those public funds are used
 having specific duties relating to audit, remuneration, clinical governance, charitable funds
and risk assurance
 Working in partnership with the Council of Governors.
Directors’ biographies
Under section 17 and 19 of Schedule 7 of the National Health Service Act 2006, the Chairman,
Chief Executive, executive and non-executive directors were appointed to the Board of Directors
as follows:
Chairman - Alan Maynard
Initially appointed in 1997
Reappointed January 2008 until 31 March 2010
Alan Maynard chairs both the Board of Directors and the Council of Governors. Alan has spent his
career deeply involved in the theory and practice of the funding and delivery of health care.
He has been Chairman of York Hospital since 1997 and involved in NHS management in York
since 1983. His specialist interests in the hospital are general surgery and urology, clinical support
services and systems and network services.
He also works at the University of York where he was Founding Director of the Centre for Health
Economics (1983-95) and is currently Professor of Health Economics in the Department of Health
Sciences and the HYMS.
Alan is a member of the Board of Compass, a charity that provides treatment services for drug
users in Yorkshire, the Humber area, the Midlands and London.
Alan has special linkages with general surgery and urology, ophthalmology, head and neck and IT
services.
Alan retired from the Trust on 31 March 2010.
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Non-executive Director – Alan Rose
Initially appointed 1 March 2006 to 28 February 2010
Reappointed from 28 February 2010 to 31 March as Non-Executive Director
Appointed from 1 April 2010 as Chairman
Alan has been a non-executive at the Trust since 2006 and has over 25 years’ experience in
private sector business management and consulting, mainly in the energy sector, with Shell and
Booz Allen Hamilton. His focus has been on marketing, strategy, partnering and business
development.
At the Trust, Alan has a special linkage to the medicine and cancer services directorates and a
focus on strategy development.
Non-executive Director – Philip Ashton
Initially appointed September 2008 to September 2011
Born in Yorkshire and a graduate of Oxford University, Philip worked primarily in London before
returning to the York area in 2003. During his years at PricewaterhouseCoopers he specialised in
technical aspects of the audit practice, developing audit techniques and technology, particularly
internal control and risk management. Philip was also involved in training and development, an
area which continues to be of great interest to him.
He was a founder member of the Auditing Practices Board, and more recently was a
representative of the auditing profession on the International Auditing and Assurance Standards
Board.
Currently he is also a governor on the Board of the Archbishop Sentamu Academy in Hull, and is
a member of the York Minster Finance Committee.
Philip has special linkages with estates and the diagnostic areas of pathology, pharmacy and
radiography.
Non-executive Director – Gillian Fleming
Initially appointed December 2004
Reappointed December 2008 to December 2011
Resigned as a Non-executive Director 31 January 2010
Gillian has been a member of the Board since December 2004. She has wide experience in
disputes resolution and has worked for Citizens Advice Bureau, with trade unions and within the
local government sphere for the Ombudsman. She is an accredited mediator and works
independently undertaking investigation and conciliation assignments. Gillian is also involved with
the regulation of healthcare professions and other tribunals.
Gillian has special linkages with children and women’s health.
Gillian resigned from the Trust in January 2010 to take up a full time role with the Ombudsman.
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Vice Chairman/ Senior Independent Director – John Hutton
Initially appointed December 2004
Reappointed December 2008 to December 2011
A non-executive director and Vice Chairman since January 2005, his training is in economics, and
his career has included periods in universities, local government and the private sector. He is now
Professor of Health Economics at the University of York and is also a non-executive director of
Medipex, the NHS Innovation Hub for Yorkshire and Humberside.
John has a special linkage with elderly medicine.
Non-executive Director – Michael Sweet
Initially appointed 1 February 2010 to 31 January 2013
The greater part of Michael’s career has been in the commercial sector. In Unilever’s personal
products division he held senior positions in planning and logistics where he was a
“commissioner” of services. He became a “provider” following the acquisition of his business unit
by an international logistics company. This resulted in board level experience in operational
management, customer relations and business development and culminated in his appointment
as the chairman responsible for the integration and co-ordination of a five country central
European logistics business.
Latterly Michael has concentrated his energies on logistics consultancy, the investigation of
complaints involving children for a number of social service departments in Yorkshire, and for the
past five years he has been a non-executive director of the Selby and York PCT and more
recently NHS NYY.
Non-executive Director – Linda Palazzo
Initially appointed 1 May 2006 to 31 April 2010
Reappointed May 2010 to April 2013
Linda has previously been employed in senior management positions in finance and has been
involved in various community groups and campaigns with significant experience in charitable
fund-raising. Linda is Chairman of the Charitable Funds Committee. She was previously a nonexecutive director and Chair of a health authority in London prior to moving to Yorkshire five years
ago.
Linda has special linkage to emergency medicine, orthopedics, anesthetics and theatres.
Non-executive Director – Libby Raper
Initially appointed 1 August 2009 – 31 July 2012
Libby joined the Board of Directors in 2009, and brings over 25 years’ experience in both the
private and public sectors. Her focus has been on corporate reputation and marketing, as well as
broad general management. She was Chief Executive of Culture Northwest, and Vice President of
The Pierre Smirnoff Company.
She serves on a number of other Boards and is Vice Chair of Leeds City College.
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Chief Executive – Patrick Crowley
Patrick has worked with the Trust since 1991 in a variety of finance and performance
management roles, and was appointed to the role of Director of Finance and Performance in
2001. He became Interim Chief Executive in November 2007, following the resignation of Jim
Easton. He previously worked for the Ministry of Defence financial management development unit
in Bath and in private sector industry.
Patrick was appointed to the post of Chief Executive in June 2008.
Finance Director – Andrew Bertram
Andrew joined the Trust as Finance Director in January 2009 from Harrogate and District NHS
Foundation Trust where he held the position of Deputy Finance Director for four years.
Andrew first joined the NHS in 1991 as a finance trainee on the NHS graduate management
training scheme. On qualifying as an accountant, he undertook numerous finance manager roles
at York before becoming directorate manager for medicine and then subsequently joining the
senior finance team at York.
Andrew has responsibility for finance and purchasing and is the Trust’s Senior Information Risk
Owner.
Director of HR– Peta Hayward
Peta Hayward has been with the Trust as Director of Human Resources since 2003. She joined
the Trust after working at Birmingham Heartlands and Solihull NHS Trust (Teaching) for seven
years, and has over 15 years’ experience in HR in the acute sector of the NHS. Her experience
within HR is broad, covering a wide range of specialist and generalist issues with a particular
interest in employment law matters supported by a diploma in employment law and personnel
practice. Peta has an honours degree in mathematics and economics and is a member of the
Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development.
Director of Strategy and Facilities – Alison Hughes
Resigned as a director of the Trust in October 2009
Alison has been working in the NHS for over 20 years. She began her career in 1985, qualifying
as a chartered physiotherapist at Guy’s Hospital. A number of clinical posts followed in various
acute hospitals and teaching hospitals across the country.
In 1993, Alison moved into health service management and studied for an MBA at Manchester
Business School which she gained with distinction in 1996. She subsequently worked as a
general manager across a number of specialties gaining wide-ranging operational experience in
both small rural district general hospitals and a large tertiary centre. She was appointed to the role
of Director of Strategy and Planning at York in January 2005, and during 2007 extended her role
to include facilities.
Alison resigned from being a director of the Trust in October 2009.
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Chief Nurse – Elizabeth McManus
“Libby” has worked for the NHS for 24 years, mainly in acute hospitals but also with the NHS
Modernisation Agency for the two years prior to her appointment as a director at York in Spring
2003. As a registered nurse she worked in cardiothoracic surgery and intensive care units before
pursuing a managerial role in hospitals.
Safety and quality for patients is at the core of her role as Chief Nurse.
She holds professional responsibility for standards of nursing and midwifery care for patients at
the hospital and provides advice to the Board on professional issues.
She is the director responsible for infection prevention and control (DIPC).
Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Chief Executive – Mike Proctor
Mike has 33 years’ experience in the NHS, 18 as a clinical nurse and a nurse educator and the
last 15 years have been spent at York in senior management positions. He has been a director at
the Trust since 1998.
Mike’s current role includes responsibility for the day-to-day operational management of the
organisation and he is the Trust board director with responsibility for performance management
and communications.
Medical Director – Ian Woods
Retired February 2010
Ian was appointed Medical Director of the Trust in January 2006. He has been a consultant at the
Trust since 1988, specialising in anaesthesia and until 2000 in critical care services. Originally
from Lancashire, he trained in medicine at Manchester and prior to his arrival in York worked in
several locations including Australia. Ian now combines his duties as Medical Director with a
continued clinical input into anaesthesia, while maintaining an interest in his specialist area of
peri-operative care.
Prior to becoming Medical Director, Ian spent time on secondment to the National Patient Safety
Agency.
Medical Director – Alastair Turnbull
Appointed January 2010
Alastair was appointed Medical Director of the Trust in February 2010 having been a consultant in
York since 1994. Trained at St Thomas's Hospital, London, with nutrition research in London and
Boston USA, and higher training in Newcastle he has worked in the NHS for 30 years.
He is an active clinical gastroenterologist, endoscopist and general physician and has interests in
liver and inflammatory bowel disease. He held the post of clinical director (medicine) for six years
and has a special interest in patient safety. He is a member of the governance and strategy,
infection control, art and environment and trust drugs committees and chairs the clinical risk
group.
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Board of Directors

Governance Committee

Remuneration
Committee
Attended all meetings

Alan Maynard

Attended all meetings
except January 10

Committee disbanded July
2009 – attended 1 of the 2
meetings

Philip Ashton

Attended all meetings

Not applicable

Gillian Fleming

Audit Committee
Not applicable

Attended all meetings

Attended all meetings

Attended all meetings up to Committee disbanded July
January 10
2009 – attended both
meetings held

Attended all meetings

Attended all meetings from
joining the Committee in
Sept 09 to her departure
as in Jan 10

John Hutton

Attended all meetings
Not applicable
except July, November and
February 10

Attended all meetings
except November 09

Attended all meetings

Linda Palazzo

Attended all meetings
except May 09

Committee disbanded July
2009 – attended 1 of the 2
meetings

Attended all meetings
except May 09

Attended all meetings
except July 09

Alan Rose

Attended all meetings

Committee disbanded July
2009 – attended 1 of the 2
meetings

Attended all meetings

Not applicable

Michael Sweet

Attended all from February
10

Not applicable

No meetings held since
joining the Trust

Attended from March 10

Libby Raper

Attended all from
September 09

Not applicable

Attended all meetings from
September 09

Not applicable
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Board of Directors

Governance Committee

Remuneration
Committee
Attended all meetings.

Patrick Crowley

Attended all meetings

Committee disbanded July
2009 – attended 1 of the 2
meetings

Andrew Bertram

Attended all meetings
except November 09

Peta Hayward

Audit Committee
Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Attended all meetings

Attended all meetings

Committee disbanded July
2009 –did not attend either
meeting

Attended March and May
meetings.

Not applicable

Mike Proctor

Attended all meetings
except July 09

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Alison Hughes

Attended all up to May
2009
Resigned from being a
Director October 2009

Committee disbanded July
2009 – attended 1 of the 2
meetings

Not applicable

Not applicable

Elizabeth McManus

Attended all meetings

Committee disbanded July
2009 – attended both
meetings

Not applicable

Not applicable

Alastair Turnbull

Attended from February
2010

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Ian Woods

Attended all up to January
2010 except for April and
June 2009

Committee disbanded July
2009 - did not attend either
meeting

Not applicable

Not applicable
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Register of directors’ interests
The Trust holds a register listing any interest declared by members of the Board of Directors. They
must disclose details of company directorship or other positions held, particularly if they involve
companies or organisations likely to do business or possibly seeking to do business with the Trust.
The public can access the register at www.yorkhospitals.nhs.uk or by making a request in writing to:
The Foundation Trust Secretary
York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Wigginton Road
York
YO31 8HE
or by e-mailing enquires@york.nhs.uk
As at 31 March 2009, the Board of Directors had declared these interests:
Public limited companies (PLCs) with the exception of those of dormant companies
Alan Maynard
Director (unpaid) - Dr Foster Ethics Committee Ltd
John Hutton
Non-executive Director - MEDIPEX Ltd
Executive Director - York Health Economics Consortium
Visiting Scientist and Shareholder—UBC Health Care Analytics Group
Peta Hayward
(Relation is Chairman) Public Sector Consultant Ltd
Linda Palazzo
Director, ADS Management Services Ltd
Libby Raper
Non-executive Director-Northwest Vision and Media
Ownership, part ownership or directorship of private companies business or consultancies
likely or possibly seeking to do business with the NHS:
The directors did not make any declarations under this section.
Majority or controlling share holdings in organisations likely or possibly seeking to do
business with the NHS:
The directors did not make any declarations under this section.

A position of authority in a charity or voluntary organisation in the field of health and social
care:
Alan Maynard (ceased March 2010)
Patrick Crowley
Mike Proctor
Peta Hayward
Elizabeth McManus
Linda Palazzo
Gillian Fleming (ceased January 2010)
John Hutton
Philip Ashton
Andrew Bertram
Alan Rose
Libby Raper
Michael Sweet (from February 2010)
Ian Wood (ceased February 2010)
Alastair Turnbull (from February 2010)
All Directors listed act as Trustees for the York Hospital NHS Foundation Trust which is the
corporate Trustee of the York Health Service Trust General Charity.
Philip Ashton
Member of the Board of Governors – Archbishop Sentamu Academy Hull
Alastair Turnbull
Board member – York Peptic Ulcer Research Trust
Board members – York Alcoholic Advisory Service
John Hutton
Honorary Chairman – Patient, Industry and Professionals Forum
Member – NICE Technology Appraisal Committee
Any connecting with a voluntary of other organisation contracting for NHS services or
commissioning NHS services:
Alan Maynard
Director of York Health Policy Group -Department of Health Sciences University of York
Expert witness for National Institute for Clinical Excellence in a legal action
Member - DH, PbR External Advisory Group
Specialist Adviser - Select Committee on Health, House of Commons
Member - Stakeholder group. Patient reported outcome measurements (PROMs) DH
John Hutton
Professor of Health Economics - University of York
Patrick Crowley
Trustee (and Hon. Treasurer) - York Peptic Ulcer Research Trust
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Any connection with an organisation, entity or company considering entering into or
having entered into a financial arrangement with the NHS foundation Trust including but
not limited to lenders or banks:
The directors did not make any declaration under this section.
Board sub-committees
During 2009 the Board of Directors reviewed the governance arrangements and disbanded the
Governance Committee, Resource Management Committee and the Strategy and Planning
Committee. The Board introduced a Risk and Assurance Committee chaired by the Chief
Executive to address the issues of risk and assurance coming to the Board. The Board
delegated authority to the Audit Committee to introduced working groups. The Audit Committee
introduced two working groups reporting directly to the Audit Committee, one called the
Compliance Working Group and the other called the Data and Information Working Group.
These Committees are required to provide the Board with written minutes of their proceedings.
Audit Committee
The membership of the Audit Committee during 2009/10 consisted of:
Philip Ashton
John Hutton
Linda Palazzo
Gillian Fleming
Michael Sweet

Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Committee
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director Until January 2010
Non-executive Director from 1 March 2010

The Committee receives reports from internal and external auditors and undertakes detailed
examination of financial and value for money reports on behalf of the Board of Directors.
The Committee’s terms of reference are as follows:











Monitor the integrity of the financial performance of the Trust and any formal
announcement relating to the Trust’s financial performance
monitor governance and internal control
monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function
review and monitor external audit’s independence and objectivity and effectiveness of
the audit process
develop and implement policy on the employment of the external auditors to supply
non-audit services
review of standing orders, financial instructions and scheme of delegation
review of schedule of losses and compensation
review of annual fraud report
provide assurance to the Board of Directors on a regular basis
report annually to the Board of Directors on its work in support of the statement on
internal control.
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The Committee has met six times during the year. Each meeting considers the business that will
enable the Committee to provide the assurance to the Board of Directors that systems and
processes in operation within the Trust are functioning effectively.
The list of activities below show some of the work the Committee has undertaken during the
year:
 Considered 59 internal audit reports and reviewed the recommendation associated with
the reports
 reviewed the progress against the work programme for internal and external audit and
the counter fraud service
 considered the annual accounts and associated documents and provided assurance to
the Board of Directors
 considered and approved various ad hoc reports about the governance of the Trust
 set up and received reports from the compliance working group and the data quality and
performance working group
 considered various consultation documents released by Monitor
 reviewed quarterly reports from Monitor.
Compliance work group
The compliance work group reports directly to the Audit Committee and addresses the issues
relating to compliance. The aim of the group is to consider and test assurance processes on
behalf of the Audit Committee and the Board in relation to all aspects of compliance.
Specifically to review:
 Review of the schedule of compliance
 external review requirements and declarations
 internal policies
 internal monitoring of compliance
 any work as directed by the Audit Committee.
Membership of the work group includes:
Gillian Fleming
Michael Sweet
Alan Rose
Anna Pridmore
Fiona Jamieson

Non-executive Director and Chairman of the work group
(until January 2010)
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director (until March 2010)
Foundation Trust Secretary
Deputy Director of Performance and Compliance

Internal audit and risk and legal services attend the work group as required.
The data quality and performance work group
The data quality and performance work group reports directly to the Audit Committee and
addresses the issues relating to quality of data and performance. The aim of the group is to
consider and test assurance processes on behalf of the Audit Committee and the Board in
relation to all aspects of compliance.
The Data Quality and Performance Information work group is charged with ensuring that the
Audit Committee is provided with assurance about the quality, integrity and efficiency of the data
information systems adopted in the Trust.
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The work group will look at:





Integrity and quality of data systems including information governance
performance indicators and statutory information submissions
service line management information
analytical capability and its development within the Trust.

The membership of the group includes:
John Hutton
Libby Raper
Andrew Bertram
Sheila Wilson
Fiona Jamieson
Sue Rushbrook
Helen Kemp-Taylor
Sue Hall

Chairman of the work group
Non-executive Director
Director of Finance and SIRO
Deputy Director of Finance
Deputy Director of Performance and Compliance
Associate Director – Systems and Network
Internal Audit
Information Governance Manager

Governance Committee
The membership of the Governance Committee during 2009/10 consisted of:
Gillian Fleming
Alan Maynard
Linda Palazzo
Alan Rose
Patrick Crowley
Ian Woods
Peta Hayward
Alison Hughes
Elizabeth McManus
Elaine Miller
Anna Pridmore

Non-executive Director (Chair of the Committee)
Chairman of the Trust
Non-executive Director
Non- executive Director
Chief Executive
Medical Director
Director of HR
Director of Strategy and Facilities
Chief Nurse
Head of Risk and Legal Services
Foundation Trust Secretary

The Committee existed until July 2009. The Committee held two meetings before it was
disbanded.
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee determines the remuneration of the Chief Executive and
executive directors.
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The membership of the Committee during 2009/10 was as follows:
Alan Maynard
John Hutton
Philip Ashton
Gillian Fleming
Linda Palazzo
Alan rose
Libby Raper
Michael Sweet

Chairman of the Trust
Non-executive Director, Vice Chairman and Senior
Independent Director
Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee
Non-executive Director (resigned January 09)
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director (from 1 February 09)

The Committee met three times during the year to consider the remuneration of the executive
directors, and consideration of the executive directors’ portfolios.
Code of governance
Monitor published the code of governance at the end of October 2006. The code was released
on a ‘comply or explain’ basis. The Trust reviewed its governance arrangements in light of the
code and makes the following statement:
Directors
The Trust is headed by a Board of Directors that ensures it exercises its functions effectively,
efficiently and economically. The Board is a unitary board consisting of a non-executive
chairman, six non-executive directors and six executive directors. The Board of Directors
provides active leadership within a framework of prudent and effective controls and ensures it is
compliant with its terms of authorisation. The Board of Directors meets a minimum of 11 times a
year so that it can regularly discharge its duties.
The non-executive directors scrutinise the performance of the management, monitor the
reporting of performance, and satisfy themselves as to the integrity of financial, clinical and
other information and that financial and clinical quality controls and systems of risk management
are robust and defensible. The non-executive directors fulfil their responsibility for determining
appropriate levels of remuneration of executive directors.
Annually the Board of Directors reviews the strategic aims after consultation with the Council of
Governors and takes responsibility for the quality and safety of the healthcare services,
education, training and research. Day-to-day responsibility is devolved to the executive directors
and their teams. The Board of Directors is committed to applying the principles and standards of
clinical governance set out by the Department of Health and the Care Quality Commission. As
part of the planning exercise the Board of Directors reviews its membership and undertakes
succession planning on an annual basis.
The Board of Directors and Council of Governors hold joint meetings at least once a year to
discuss the development of strategy.
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The Board of Directors has reviewed its values and standards to ensure they meet the
obligations the Trust has to its patients, members, staff and other stakeholders.
The appointment of the Chairman and non-executive directors is detailed in the Trust’s annual
report. Each year the Chairman and non-executive directors receive an appraisal which is
reviewed by the Council of Governors.
A clear statement outlining the division of responsibility between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive has been approved by the Board of Directors.
Governors
The Trust has a Council of Governors which is responsible for representing the interests of the
members of the Trust, partner and voluntary organisations within the local health economy. The
Council of Governors holds the Board of Directors to account for the performance of the Trust
including ensuring the Board of Directors acts within its terms of authorisation. Governors
feedback information about the Trust to members through a regular newsletter and information
placed on the Trust’s website.
The Council of Governors consists of elected and appointed governors. More than half the
governors are public governors elected by community members of the Trust. Elections take
place once every three years.
Information, development and evaluation
The information received by the Board of Directors and Council of Governors is timely,
appropriate and in a form that is suitable for members of the Board and Council to discharge
their duty.
The Trust runs a programme of development throughout the year for governors and nonexecutive directors. All governors and non-executive directors are given the opportunity to
attend a number of training sessions during the year.
The Council of Governors has agreed the process for the evaluation of the Chairman and nonexecutive directors and the process for appointment or re-appointment of the non-executive
directors.
The Chief Executive evaluates the performance of the executive directors on an annual basis
and the outcome is reported to the Chairman.
Attendance of non-executive directors at the Council of Governors
All non-executive directors have an open invitation to attend the Council of Governors meetings.
Non-executive directors do attend on a regular basis.
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Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration Committee meets as a minimum on an annual basis to review the
remuneration of the executive directors. The Council of Governors has a Remuneration
Committee which has not met during the year as the Council of Governors agreed a process for
review of the remuneration during the year which did not require them to meet as a Committee.
Accountability and audit
The Board of Directors has an established Audit Committee that meets on a quarterly basis as a
minimum. A detailed report on the activities of the Audit Committee is at page 49.
Relations and stakeholders
The Board of Directors has ensured that there is satisfactory dialogue with its stakeholders
during the year.
The Trust is able to comply with the code in all areas except the following:
Requirements

Explanation

C.2.1
Approval by the board of governors of the appointment of a Chief
Executive should be a subject of the first general meeting after the
appointment by a Committee of the Chairman and non-executive
directors. Re-appointment by the non-executive directors followed
by re-approval by the board of governors thereafter should be
made at intervals of no more than five years. All other executive
directors should be appointed by a Committee of the Chief
Executive , the Chairman and non-executive directors and subject
to re-appointment at intervals of no more than five years

The Chief Executive and executive directors have their
performance reviewed on an annual basis by the
Remuneration Committee as part of the annual evaluation
appraisal system.

C2.2
Non-executive directors may serve longer than nine years (e.g.
three three-year terms), subject to annual re-election. Serving more
than nine years could be relevant to the determination of a nonexecutive director’s independence (as set out in provision A.3.1).

To ensure compliance with the constitution no nonexecutive director should have more than two reappointments or serve more than three terms for a
maximum of three years each because of the need to
maintain independence and refresh the skill set of the nonexecutive director. We do not intend to extend
appointment beyond nine years on the basis of annual reappointment.
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The Remuneration Committee considered the issue of
five-year contracts and took into account that executive
directors hold substantive contracts and are not subject to
reappointment at five year periods for the following
reasons:
a) Executive directors are subject to regular review
of performance and existing procedures allow for
appointment to be terminated if the performance
is not satisfactory without the need for formal reappointment.
b) The scope for refreshing the Board exists as
executive director posts turnover. The Board has
the option of restructuring the executive directors’
responsibilities through organisation change in
accordance with local HR policies and
procedures.
c) Fixed-term appointment will create a short-term
focus on the part of the executive directors, which
in turn will create divergence between managerial
and clinical perspective and could be detrimental
to the engagement of clinicians, which is vital to
the success of any FT.

Main Principle
All directors and elected governors should be submitted for reappointment or re-election at regular intervals. The Board of
Directors should ensure planned and progressive refreshing of the
Board of Directors.

The CE and executive directors have their performance
reviewed on an annual basis by the remuneration
Committee as part of the annual evaluation appraisal
system.
The Remuneration Committee considered the issue of
five-year contracts and took into account that executive
directors hold substantive contracts and are not subject to
re-appointment at five year periods for the following
reasons:
a) Executive directors are subject to regular review
of performance and existing procedures allow for
appointment to be terminated if the performance
is not satisfactory without the need for formal reappointment.
b) The scope for refreshing the Board exists as
executive director posts turnover. The Board has
the option of restructuring the executive directors’
responsibilities through organisation change in
accordance with local HR policies and
procedures.
c) Fixed term appointment will create a short-term
focus on the part of the executive directors, which
in turn will create divergence between managerial
and clinical perspective and could be detrimental
to the engagement of clinicians, which is vital to
the success of any FT.

E1.1
Any performance-related elements of the remuneration of executive
directors should be designed to align their interests with those of
patients, service users and taxpayers and to give these directors
keen incentives to perform at the highest levels. In designing
schemes of performance-related remuneration, the Remuneration
Committee should follow the following provisions:
(i)

The Remuneration Committee should consider whether
the directors should be eligible for annual bonuses. If so,
performance conditions should be relevant, stretching and
designed to match the long term interests of the public.
Upper limits should be set and disclosed.

(ii)

Payouts or grants under all incentive schemes should be
subject to challenging performance criteria reflecting the
objectives of the NHS Foundation Trust. Consideration
should be given to criteria, which reflect the performance
of the NHS Foundation Trust relative to a group of
comparator Trusts in some key indicators.

(iii)

In general, only basic salary should be pensionable.

The Remuneration Committee considered the introduction
of performance-related and pay element to the executive
remuneration. It was agreed it should not be introduced
because it could substantially undermine the ability to
achieve targets and standards. This is because the
commitment of all staff to achieve targets and standards
has been gained on the basis of the benefits for the
organisation and patient services. This commitment will be
at risk if PRP for executive directors is introduced.
The process of review of performance of executive
directors provides a more than adequate approach for
dealing with under performance with the possibility of
terminating the employment if unsatisfactory performance
persists.

Resolution of disputes between the Council of Governors and the Board of Directors
The code of governance requires the Trust to hold a clear statement explaining how
disagreements between the Council of Governors and the Board of Directors would be resolved.
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The Board of Directors promotes effective communications between the Council of Governors
and the Board of Directors.
The Chairman of the Trust also acts as Chairman of the Council of Governors. The Chairman’s
position is unique and allows him to have an understanding of a particular issue expressed by
the Council of Governors. Where a dispute between the Council of Governors and the Board of
Directors occurs, in the first instance the Chairman of the Trust would endeavour to resolve the
dispute.
Should the Chairman not be willing or able to resolve the dispute, the senior independent
director and the lead governor of the Council of Governors would jointly attempt to resolve the
dispute.
In the event of the senior independent director and the lead governor of the Council of Governors
not being able to resolve the dispute, the Board of Directors, pursuant to section 15(2) of
Schedule 7 of the 2006 Act, will decide the disputed matter.
Board balance, completeness and appropriateness
As at year ending 31 March 2010 the Board of Directors for York Hospitals NHS Foundation
Trust comprised six executive directors, six independent non-executive directors and an
independent non-executive chairman.
Alan Maynard was re-appointed Chairman of the Trust by the Council of Governors at a public
meeting held on 8 January 2008. His term of office finished on 31 March 2010. Alan Rose was
appointed by the Council of Governors on 16 December 2009 as the new Chairman.
The appointment of Alan Rose as Chairman of the Trust from 1 April 2010 left a vacancy
resulting in the Governors engaging in a recruitment exercise during March and April 2010.
Libby Raper was appointed non-executive director by the Council of Governors on 1 July 2009
and she took up her post from 1 August 2009. She replaced John Longworth following his
resignation in January 2009.
Gillian Fleming resigned as a member of the Board of Directors from January 2010. Mr Michael
Sweet was appointed as a non-executive director by the Council of Governors on 16 December
2009 and took up his post from 1 February 2010.
Linda Palazzo’s term of office finished on 31 April 2010. Following her appraisal she was asked
to undergo a competitive recruitment exercise before she was reappointed for a second term.
Alison Hughes resigned as an executive director of the Board in October 2009. Peta Hayward
was appointed an executive director in October 2009.
The remainder of the composition of the Board of Directors has not changed during the financial
year 2008/09.
The Chairman has conducted a thorough review of each non-executive director to assess their
independence and contribution to the Board of Directors and confirmed that they all are effective
independent non-executive directors. A programme of appraisals has been run during 2009/10
and all non-executive directors have undergone an annual appraisal as part of the review.
The Board of Directors maintains a register of interests as required by the constitution and
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Schedule 7 section 20 (1) National Health Service Act 2006.
The Board of Directors requires all non-executive directors to be independent in their judgement.
The structure of the board and integrity of the individual directors ensures that no one individual
or group dominates the decision-making process.
Each member of the Board of Directors upholds the standards in public life and displays
selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership.
The Board, in relation to the appointment of executive and non-executive directors, does not
have a standing Nominations Committee but convenes an ad hoc Nominations Committee, in
accordance with the Constitution, as and when required.
Biographies for the Board of Directors can be found on page 39 of the annual report and
accounts 2009/10.
Statement of the division of responsibility between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
The Chairman
The Chairman is accountable for the Board of Directors and the Council of Governors.
The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board of Directors operates as a unitary board
and effectively develops and determines the Trust’s strategy and overall objectives.
The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the development of the business and the
protection of the reputation of the Trust is maintained.
The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board of Directors and the Council of
Governors, ensuring their effectiveness on all aspects of their role and setting their agenda.
The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board of Directors and the Council of
Governors receive accurate, timely and clear information that is appropriate for their respective
duties. He is responsible for ensuring effective, prioritised meetings are held where actions are
followed up and reported to the Council of Governors or Board of Directors as appropriate.
The Chairman ensures effective communication with patients, members, clients, staff and other
stakeholders occurs.
The Chairman also facilitates the effective contribution of all executive and non-executive
directors and ensures that constructive relations exist between the executive and the nonexecutive directors, and between the Board of Directors and the Council of Governors.
The Chairman is not responsible for the executive and operational management of the Trust’s
business.
The Chief Executive
The Chief Executive reports to the Chairman and the Board of Directors.
The Chief Executive is the accountable officer for the Trust and in this regard is accountable to
Parliament for the proper management of the public funds available to the Trust. He is
responsible for the propriety and regularity of public finances within the Trust and for keeping
proper accounts. He is responsible for prudent and economical administration, the avoidance of
waste and extravagance and efficient and effective use of all the resources in his charge.
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The Chief Executive has responsibility for the overall organisation, management and staffing of
the Trust.
The Chief Executive is responsible for executive and operational management of the Trust’s
business, consistent with the strategy and business objectives agreed by the Board of Directors.
All members of the executive team report either directly or indirectly to him.
The Chief Executive is responsible, working with the executive team, for researching, proposing
and developing the Trust’s strategy and overall business objectives, which is done in
consultation with the Chairman.
The Chief Executive is responsible with the executive team for implementing the decisions of the
Board of Directors and its Committees.
In delivering the Trust’s strategic and business objectives the Chief Executive is responsible for
the maintenance and protection of the reputation of the Trust.
The operation of the Board of Directors and Council of Governors including high-level statement
of decisions taken by each
The Board of Directors and the Council of Governors recognise the importance of the operational
relationship of the two forums. The Board of Directors seeks the opinion of the Council of
Governors on strategic issues affecting the Trust.
The scheme of delegation details the decisions that are taken by the Board of Directors.
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COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS
Every NHS Foundation Trust is required to have a body of elected governors. York Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust has a Council of Governors, which is responsible for representing the
interests of NHS Foundation Trust members, patients and carers, staff members and partner
organisations in the local health economy.
As a public benefit corporation the Trust is accountable to the local people and staff who have
registered for membership and to those elected to seats on the Council of Governors.
The Council of Governors roles and responsibilities are outlined in law and detailed in the Trust’s
constitution.
During the financial year ending 31 March 2010 the Council of Governors met six times to discuss
and comment on a number of aspects of the functioning of the Trust.
The Council of Governors prime role is to represent the local community and other stakeholders
in the stewardship of the Trust. It has a right to be consulted on the Trust’s strategies and plans
and any matter of significance affecting the Trust or the services it provides.
The Council of Governors is specifically responsible for the:

Appointment and removal of the Chairman and other non-executive directors

approval of the appointment of the Chief Executive

appointment and removal of the external auditors.
The Council of Governors will consider and receive:

The annual accounts, auditors’ report and annual report

views from staff and community members on matters of significance affecting the Trust or
the services it provides.
The governors elected and appointed to the Council act in the best interest of the NHS
Foundation Trust and adhere to the values and code of conduct of the Trust.
The Council of Governors holds the Board of Directors to account for the performance of the
Trust.
The Council of Governors has regularly received details of significant projects and strategies.
Comments from the Council of Governors are included in any decision-making discussion held at
the Board of Directors.
Members wishing to contact governors can do so through the Trust by sending an email to
penny.goff@york.nhs.uk
All emails will be passed on to the governor concerned.
Elections
The Trust changed its election arrangements during 2009. The Trust is moving to holding annual
elections. The ‘returning officer’ role is undertaken by the Electoral Reform Services (ERS), to
ensure independence and impartiality.
On the occasion of a vacant seat following the resignation of an existing governor, the Trust’s
constitution allows the Trust to appoint from the runner up candidates if that vacancy occurs
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within six months of the election. If the vacancy occurs after six months since the last elections,
then a by-election will be held. During December 2009 through to January 2010 the Trust
underwent an election for the whole Council of Governors.
Nominations were sought in the following areas:






City of York
Selby
Hambleton
Patient/carer constituency
Staff constituency

8 Seats
3 Seats
2 Seats
4 Seats
5 Seats

The following areas had contested seats:
Public constituency
City of York
Hambleton

8 seats
2 seats

Staff constituency
Other staff class
Nursing and midwifery
Clinical staff class

1 seat
2 seats
1 seat

Governors are appointed for a maximum of three years before they are required to stand in a
further election. Some governors have resigned during the year and the Trust’s constitution
allows for the person with the next highest number of votes to stand as a replacement governor
for the balance of the term.
Partner organisations will consider the membership of their representatives on the Council at the
end of the three year term on 31 March 2010.
Promoting elections
The Trust will continue to work to promote elections as they fall to encourage greater interest and
turnout. It will:
 Work with Electoral Reform Services (the Trust’s independent scrutineers) so ensuring a fair
election that encourages participation from all active members
 maintain guidelines for running elections, including policies on canvassing, election expenses
and election material
 work with local media and other organisations (such as local councils) to feature elections
and the public governor role in newspapers, magazines and radio media
 organise election briefing opportunities for members who are potential governor candidates
 ensure all members are fully informed about elections and the opportunity to become a
governor.
The Council of Governors
The Council of Governors works with the Board of Directors in an advisory capacity, bringing the
views of staff and local people forward, and helping to shape the Trust’s future. Its role includes:
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Representing the interests and views of local people
regularly feeding back information about the Trust, its visions and its performance to the
community they represent
selecting and appointing non-executive directors and the Chairman of the Trust
appointing the Trust’s auditors
attending meetings of the Council of Governors
receiving an annual report from the Board of Directors
monitoring performance against the Trust’s service development strategy and other targets
advising the Board of Directors on their strategic plans
making sure the strategic direction of the Trust is consistent with its terms of authorisation
as agreed by Monitor
being consulted on any changes to the Trust’s constitution
agreeing the Chairman’s and non-executive directors’ remuneration
providing representatives to serve on specific groups and committees
working in partnership with the Board of Directors
informing Monitor if the Trust is at risk of breaching its terms of authorisation, if the
concerns cannot be resolved within the Trust.

The Council of Governors at York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust currently has 29 governors:
Public governors - seventeen elected
Staff governors – five elected
Partner governors - eight appointed
 Two from the local Primary Care Trust
 Four from the local authorities
 One from local universities
 One from local voluntary groups.
Appointment of the lead governor
Monitor introduced the requirement for a lead governor during 2009. The Council of Governors
had appointed Mr Geoffrey Rennie as Vice Chairman of the Council of Governors and agreed to
appoint him as lead governor for 2009/10. A further internal election will be held following the full
elections for the appointment of a lead governor for 2010/11 onwards.
Amendments to the constitution
During 2009 Governors reviewed the constitution and made a number of changes which included
agreeing to amend the timetable for the elections, so that elections are held every year and a
third of the elected membership is elected.
To enable this change some transitional arrangements have been put in place which means that
some governors only received a two year term following the elections held in January 2010.
Governors – public governors including patient/carer governors
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Governor

Initial
appointment

Election
held

Appointed
from

Term

Term of office
ends

City of York constituency
Paul Baines

2006

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Three years

March 31 2013

Winifred
Blackburn

2006

Did not
stand

Not
applicable

Not
applicable

Not applicable

Linda Hatton

2006

Did not
stand

Not
applicable

Not
applicable

Not applicable

Stephen Lewis

2006

Did not
stand

Not
applicable

Not
applicable

Not applicable

Helen Mackman

2006

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Three years

March 31 2013

James Porteous

2006

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Three years

March 31 2013

Stefan Ruff

2006

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Two years

March 31 2012

Bob Towner

2006

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Two years

March 31 2012

Eddie Benson

-

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Two years

March 31 2012

Governor

Initial
appointment

Election
held

Appointed
from

Term

Term of office
ends

Helen
Butterworth

-

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Two years

March 31 2012

Sian Wiseman

-

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Two years

March 31 2012

Hambleton constituency
Jane Dalton

2008 (election
held 2006)

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Three years

March 31 2013

Pam Turpin

2006

Jan 2010

Was not
elected

Not
applicable

Not applicable

Diane Appleby

Selby constituency
Patrick
McGowan
Nevil Parkinson

-

Jan 2010

2006
2006

April 1 2010

Two years

March 31 2012

Resigned during 2009
Jan 2010
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April 1 2010

Three years

March 31 2013

Bob Thomas

2009 (election
held 2006)

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Two years

March 31 2012

Vacant seat
Patient/carer constituency
Jane
2006
Farquharson

Resigned during 2009

Jennifer Moreton

2006

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Two years

March 31
2012

Geoffrey Rennie

2006

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Two years

March 31
2012

Brian Thompson

2006

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Three years

March 31
2013

Philip Chapman

-

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Two years

March 31
2012

Governors – staff governors
There are four staff classes in the staff constituency. One new staff governor joined the Council
of Governors during the year.
Governor

Initial
appointment

Election
held

Appointed
from

Term

Term of
office ends

Consultant
Lee Bond

2006

Jan 2010
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April 1 2010

Two years

March 31
2012

Governor

Initial
Election
appointment held

Appointed
from

Term

Term of office
ends

Nursing
Kate Harper

Resigned during 2009

Anne Penny

2006

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Two years

March 31 2012

Alison McDonald

-

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Three years

March 31 2013

Governor

Initial
Election
appointment held

Appointed
from

Term

Term of office
ends

Clinical professional
Martin Skelton

2006

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Three years

March 31 2013

2006

Jan 2010

April 1 2010

Two years

March 31 2012

Non-clinical
Mandy McGale

Governors – partner governors
Governor

Initially Appointed from

Renewal
appointment
from

Period of
office

Reappointment
due

Primary Care Trust (PCT)
Gill Cashmore

Resigned during 2010

Michael Sweet

Resigned during 2010

Alex MortonRoberts

-

April 1 2010

Three years

March 31 2013

Elizabeth Casling

2006

April 1 2010

Three years

March 31 2013

Alexander Fraser

2006

April 1 2010

Three years

March 31 2013

Vacant
Local Authority governors
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Governor

Initially Appointed from

Renewal
appointment
from

Period of
office

Reappointment
due

Madeleine Kirk

2006

April 1 2010

Three years

March 31 2013

Caroline
Patmore

2006

April 1 2010

Three years

March 31 2013

Sian Wiseman

2006

Due to changes in the constitution Siân Wiseman
stood for election as a public governor

Education governors (appointed by the University of York)
Ian Greer
Resigned during 2009 seat currently vacant
Voluntary Sector (appointed by York Council for Voluntary Services)
Mike Moran
2006
April 1 2010
Three years

March 31 2013

Attendance at the Council of Governors meeting during the year April 2009 to March 2010

6 May
09

13 May
09

1 July
09

2 Sept
09

19 Oct
09

16 Dec
09

22 Feb
10

16
March
10

Total

A record is kept of the attendance at council of governor meetings. Below is the table showing which
governors have attended during the year.

Paul Baines



Apol













7

Winifred Blackburn







Apol









7

Lee Bond



Apol



Apol









6

Gill Cashmore

Apol

Apol

Resigned December 09

Elizabeth Casling



Apol

Apol

Apol

Apol

Apol

Apol

Apol

1

Jane Dalton

















8

Alexander Fraser

















8

Apol

Resigned October 09

Jane Farquharson
Kate Harper

Apol

Apol

Resigned July 09

Linda Hatton

















8

Madeleine Kirk







Apol









7

Stephen Lewis

Apol

Apol











Apol

5

Helen Mackman

















8
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6 May 09

13 May 09

1 July 09

2 Sept 09

19 Oct 09

16 Dec 09

22 Feb 10

16 March
10

Total

Mandy McGale







Apol







Apol

8

Patrick McGowan

Apol

Apol

Apol

Resigned August 09

Mike Moran

Apol









Apol





6

Jennifer Moreton



Apol













7

Nevil Parkinson



Apol



Apol









6

Caroline Patmore



Apol













7

Anne Penny



Apol













7

James Porteous





Apol











7

Geoffrey Rennie

















8

Stefan Ruff















Apol

7

Martin Skelton



Apol













7

Michael Sweet













Resigned
became a
non-executive
director

6

Bob Thomas

















8

Brian Thompson

















8

Bob Towner

Apol















7

Pam Turpin

Apol





Apol









6

Sîan Wiseman

Apol

Apol



Apol









5

0

Register of governors’ interests
The Trust holds a register listing any interests declared by members of the Council of Governors.
Governors must disclose details of company directorships or other positions held, particularly if they
involve companies or organisations likely to do business, or possibly seeking to do business with
the Foundation Trust. The public can access the register at: www.yorkhospitals.nhs.uk or by
making a request in writing to:
The Foundation Trust Secretary
York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust,
Wigginton Road,
York,
YO31 8HE
or by e-mailing: enquiries@york.nhs.uk
The Council of Governors declared the following interests:
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1.

Directorships including non-executive directorships held in private companies or
public limited companies (PLCs) with the exception of those of dormant
companies:

Madeleine Kirk
Trustee – York Theatre Trust
Mike Moran
Director – MyknowledgeEmap York
James Porteous
Trustee – Notions Business and Marketing Consultants
Brian Thompson
Trustee – Thompson’s of Helmsley Ltd
2.

Ownership part-ownership or directorship of private companies business or
consultancies likely or possibly seeking to do business with the NHS:

Mike Moran
Trustee – MyknowledgeEmap York
3.

Majority or controlling share holdings in organisations likely or possibly seeking to
do business with the NHS:

There were no declarations under this section.
4.
A position of authority in a charity or voluntary organisation in the field of health and
social care:
Alexander Fraser
Appointee – City of York Council, non-voting participating observer on York CVS Trustees
Mike Moran
Chairman – York CVS
Nevil Parkinson
Director – West Riding Masonic Charities Ltd
James Porteous
Immediate past Chairman and Governor – Applefield School
Immediate past Chairman and Governor – Hob Moor Oaks School
President –British Polio Fellowship – Yorkshire Region
Bob Towner
Vice Chairman – York Older Peoples Assembly
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5.

Any connection with a voluntary or other organisation contracting for NHS services
or commissioning NHS services:

Alexander Fraser
Appointee – City of York Council, non-voting participating observer on York CVS Trustees
Jennifer Moreton
Systematic Reviewer – Mother and Infant Unit, MIRU Health Sciences University of York
Caroline Patmore
Councillor – North Yorkshire County Council
Michael Sweet
Non- executive Director – North Yorkshire and York PCT
Bob Towner
Vice Chairman – York Older Peoples Assembly
6.

Any connection with an organisation, entity or company considering entering into
or having entered into a financial arrangement with the NHS foundation Trust
including but not limited to, lenders or banks:
Jane Dalton
Researcher – Health and Social Care, University of York
Jennifer Moreton
Systematic Reviewer – Mother and Infant Unit, MIRU Health Sciences University of York
Caroline Patmore
Councillor – North Yorkshire County Council
Governor expenses
Governors are not remunerated, but are entitled to claim expenses for costs incurred while
undertaking duties for the Trust as a governor (i.e. travel expenses to attend the Council of
Governors’ meeting). The total amount of expenses claim during the year from 1 April 2009 to 31
March 2010 by governors was £3129.94.
Related party transactions
Under Financial Reporting 8 “Related Party Transactions”, the Trust is required to disclose, in the
annual accounts, any material transactions between the NHS Foundation Trust and members of the
Council of Governors or parties related to them.
There were no such transactions for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010.
Membership of the sub-committees
The committees listed below also play a key role in the running of the Council of Governors.
The Council of Governors has delegated authority to a number of sub-committees to address
specific responsibilities of the Council of Governors. These are:
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee agreed a process for the consideration of the uplift of the nonexecutive directors’ salaries during the year which was approved by the full Council of Governors,
so the Committee did not meet during the year.
The Committee has a membership of four governors and is supported by the Chief Executive and
Director of HR as appropriate.
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Nominations Committee
The Committee met five times during the year to address the appointment and appraisal of the nonexecutive directors and the Chairman.
The membership of the Committee is as follows:
James Porteous
Brian Thompson – from 2 November 2009
Mandy McGale
Anne Penny – from 2 November 2009
Geoff Rennie
Paul Baines – from 2 November 2009
Alan Maynard – until 31 March 2010
Alan Rose – from 1 April 2010
The Committee considered the appraisal of the non-executive directors and made
recommendations to the Council of Governors for the re-appointment of one non-executive director.
The Committee also managed the appointment of two non-executive directors and the appointment
of the Chairman. The Committee set up appointment committees as part of the process.
The Committee prepared recommendations for presentation to the Council of Governors on the
appointment of the non-executive directors and Chairman.
Process for the appointment of the Chairman and non-executive directors
The governors and Chairman in conjunction with the Foundation Trust Secretary and the HR
recruitment team designed a process for the appointment of the non-executive directors.
The Nominations Committee including the Chairman met with the recruitment team to agree the
skills required for the non-executive director and the use of an external assessor. The Nominations
Committee agreed that all candidates should be required to complete a psychometric test prior to
interview. The recruitment team took responsibility for supplying the appropriate documentation for
the job description, person specification and advert, the psychometric test was undertaken through
corporate development. The Nominations Committee approved the documentation and agreed the
advert would be placed in national media and included on the Trust website and NHS jobs website.
After the closing date a member of the recruitment team and the Foundation Trust Secretary longlisted the candidates and provided the Nominations Committee with a list of candidates that
satisfied the regulatory requirements. The Nominations Committee including the Chairman
undertook the short-listing of candidates with support provided by the recruitment team.
The Nominations Committee agreed which governors would be part of the interview panel and the
requirement for the use of presentations and psychometric testing.
Following the interviews the Governors with the Chairman deliberated over the candidates and
collectively made a decision about the appointment.
Following deliberation the Chairman prepared a paper for inclusion at the next Council of
Governors meeting including a recommendation for the appointment of the candidate agreed by the
Nominations Committee.
For the appointment of the Chairman the same process was applied but the Governors chose to
include a wider group of people in the interview process.
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Specialist subject panels were developed including a governance panel, a finance panel, and a
leadership panel. These panels were facilitated by the Trust experts in those areas. The Foundation
Trust Secretary facilitated the governance panel, the Director of Finance facilitated the finance
panel and the Associate Director of Corporate Development facilitated the leadership panel. Each
panel had a number of governors included in its membership along with non-executive directors, a
clinician and a senior manager. Each facilitator was asked to feedback to the interview panel.
The interview panel included Nominations Committee, the Chief Executive and the Director of HR.
The Chairman of the interview panel was the Vice Chairman of the Council of Governors.
Following deliberation the Chairman prepared a paper for inclusion at the next Council of
Governors meeting including a recommendation for the appointment of the candidate agreed by the
Nominations Committee.
Membership Engagement Committee
The Membership Engagement Committee is a formal subcommittee of the Council of Governors.
The Committee membership is as follows:
Helen Mackman – Public Governor for City of York (Chairman of the Committee)
Win Blackburn – Public Governor for City of York
Nevil Parkinson – Public Governor for Selby
Jane Dalton – Public Governor for Hambleton
Geoffrey Rennie – Public Governor for Patient/ Carer
Mandy McGale – Staff Governor
Anne Penny – Staff Governor
Martin Skelton – Staff Governor
Mike Moran – Appointed Governor for York Council of Voluntary Services (York CVS)
The Committee has met eight of times during the year. Governors’ attendance at the meeting is as
follows:



2/3/10



26/1/10



20/10/09



15/9/09



18/8/09



21/7/09



16/6/09

Nevil
Parkinson
Jane Dalton
Geoff Rennie
Mandy
McGale
Martin Skelton
Mike Moran
Anne Penny

19/5/09

Governor
Helen
Mackman
Win Blackburn





Apol















Apol

Apol



Apol

Apol







Apol



Apol

Apol

Apol

Apol

Apol

Apol

Apol










Apol
Apol

Apol

Apol

Apol
Apol
Apol

Apol

Apol

Apol




Apol
Apol


Apol
Apol

Apol

Apol

Apol

Apol

The key aspects of the terms of reference are:
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To review and analyse the Trust’s membership – recommending an annual work programme
for governors to support membership recruitment, retention and development



to support engagement through all governors with local forums, groups and organisations to
actively promote membership and the work of the governors



to develop and encourage two-way communication and involvement between the Members’
Council and its constituency members



to suggest content for YorkTalk, the Trust’s newsletter for members.

The Committee has spent its time during the year building relationships with communities and the
Trust’s membership and in making good use of existing networks and governor contacts.
Governors have recognised that they have a critical role in generating two-way conversations
between the community networks, the membership and the Trust.
The Committee has been in dialogue with the Trust to establish how governors will link with the
emerging communications strategy, including how they will communicate with our constituents. The
importance of working with the Trust to influence and support the emerging strategy is
demonstrated through the direct involvement at the meetings of a non-executive director and the
Communications Service Manager. The non-executive director provides an active link to the Board
of Directors.
Alan Rose, who will be the Trust’s Chairman from April 2010, laid specific emphasis on the need to
step up the Trust’s approach to community stakeholder engagement and he has given his
assurance that he will be supportive of this area of activity in the future with the Chief Executive
backing this approach.
Specifically the Committee has completed the following pieces of work:


Regular discussions have taken place to offer topic suggestions to the Communications Service
Manager for inclusion in York Talk. This publication is currently seen as the single most
important vehicle for communicating with the whole membership



the Committee has set the tone, style and emphasis of the emerging membership development
strategy and has asked to be involved with any action plan resulting from the strategy. This
committee is clear that such strategies are owned by the Trust, the direction of which is
monitored and supported by governors



members of the Committee have raised the issue of the Trust’s website and urged its further
development with appropriate links to enable full interactive use



it has been highlighted that staff governors’ profiles, roles and contact information need to be
accessible through the Trust’s intranet (Horizon) with opportunities for networking



this Committee is represented on the Trust’s way finding group. How visitors to the hospital site
negotiate their way from Wigginton Road to their destination within the hospital is an important
factor in engaging effectively with the community



a meeting with the Chair of York Hospital Radio has resulted in the recording of a membership
message to go out regularly on the network and in an article in the radio’s new magazine that is
distributed widely around the hospital. It has also been agreed that a discussion session will be
recorded with governors at a time to be arranged in the future.
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In the Committee’s annual report to the governors a number of recommendations were made for
the development of the Committee and for improvements around its working. These
recommendations included:
1. That this Committee focuses on a strategy of engaging and communicating with the whole
community as well as looking for opportunities to recruit new members. Recruitment will also
happen as a result of engaging and involving people.
2. That the Committee be renamed “The Community and Membership Engagement
Committee”.
3. Membership of the Committee currently consists of governor representation for each
constituency with one non-executive director, the Communications Services Manager and
the Membership Development Manager in attendance. It is recommended that this structure
be maintained but that other governors be encouraged to attend for items which hold a
particular interest for them.
4. That there is regular communication between this Committee and other governors and that
all governors be encouraged to feed ideas into the Committee.
Governors’ Patient Focus Group
The Governors’ Patient Focus Group (PFG) held its first meeting on 16 June 2009. The
membership of the Committee is as follows:
Mr Stephen Lewis, Chairman of the Committee and Public Governor for York
Paul Baines, Public Governor for City of York
Jane Dalton, Public Governor for Hambleton
Jenny Moreton, Patient/Carer Governor
Jim Porteous, Public Governor for City of York
Geoffrey Rennie, Patient/Carer Governor
Martin Skelton, Staff Governor
Brian Thompson, Patient/Carer Governor
The Committee has met on the following occasions: 16 June 2009, 22 September 2009, 9
December 2009 and 10 March 2010. The members attended all the meetings.
At the meeting of 22 September 2009, Paul Baines was elected Vice Chair of the Group.
Project 1
Governor patient experience questionnaire
In February 2009, in consultation with two recent acute patients, Paul Baines had drawn up a list of
ten suggested questions to be put to patients, and recorded on hand-held computers, for review by
hospital staff. The questions placed particular emphasis on caring attitudes, patient confidence, and
dignity, and the suggestion was prompted by a Dr Foster “patient experience tracker” system used
at Homerton University Hospital, which had won a national IT award.
When the PFG was formed, these questions were adopted and developed by the Group, with
assistance and additional input from Chief Nurse, Elizabeth McManus. They were then reviewed
alongside the Nursing Care Indicators that were about to be introduced at York Hospital.
Assistant Chief Nurse Michelle Carrington gave a presentation on the Nursing Care Indicators
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(NCIs) to the Group, and there were obvious administrative benefits in combining the two systems,
provided the integrity of the governor questions could be preserved. This has been achieved, and
15 PFG questions are now items 82 to 96 at the end of the NCI audit. Paul Baines spent a day on
ward visits with the Quality and Safety Assistant, who carries out the audits, and was very
impressed with the rigorous implementation of the NCIs.
Michelle Carrington reported on the results of the first two-and-a-half months’ Nursing Care
Indicators surveys at the March 2010 PFG meeting, and all agreed the information was immensely
valuable, providing a very useful tool for improving standards of care on wards. Michelle said that
wards were already entering into healthy competition to raise standards, and that reaction to the
surveys had been positive.
Responses to the PFG’s 15 patient experience questions showed that most patients said they were
satisfied on most issues. A particularly interesting finding was the discrepancy between staff and
patient perceptions of who was in charge of a ward and who was in charge of an individual patient’s
care. Staff continually over-rated patients’ knowledge on these important issues, and this finding is
already leading staff to reconsider how to ensure that patients know who is who on the ward.
Michelle will report results of NCI surveys to the PFG every six months.
Project 2
Review of lengthy waiting times and communication problems at the day eye surgery clinic.
Jenny Moreton is a member of the Patient Focus Group, and a patient of the Lucentis clinic which
treats macular degeneration. By the very nature of Lucentis procedures, patients often need the
assistance of a companion or carer, but space to accommodate them is a problem.
Working with Jen Slaughter, Directorate Manager for ophthalmology, and other members of her
team, Jenny’s first-hand patient experience and observations have contributed to achieving
shortened waiting times, reduced congestion, improved signs, and better communication between
staff and patient carers.
The group also received a presentation from Michelle Carrington (Assistant Chief Nurse) on single
sex/mixed sex accommodation. She explained the work the Trust was undertaking with regard to
single sex and mixed sex accommodation and the actions being taken to achieve and maintain the
achieved targets.
Future topics
The Group has identified a number of further topics to be followed over the next 12 months
including:
Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) issues. Marilyn Thirlway (Head of Patient Experience) is
to give the PFG a brief talk on her current top ten issues at the next meeting.
Governors’ ward visits. PFG members Jane Dalton and Jenny Moreton will work with Michelle
Carrington to draw up a proposal for implementing governor ward visits, and report to the next PFG
meeting.
The broad remit is to create a system of ward visits co-ordinated by the PFG, but which is open to
all governors. Governors who take part in visits are likely to accompany the Quality and Safety
Assistant as she gathers information for the NCI survey, but will be able to ask supplementary
questions of patients.
There will be a limit on the number of such visits individual governors can make in any one year.
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Patient attire. A recent day patient approached Paul Baines regarding lack of dignity when moving
between X-ray and scanning areas. Michelle Carrington informed the PFG that the topic of patient
attire is currently under review, and she will keep the Group informed of developments.
The Group wishes to record its thanks to Michelle Carrington for her invaluable contribution to their
meetings.
MEMBERSHIP
Foundation Trust membership
The Trust has three constituencies – staff, community and a patient/carer constituency.
Community membership (2009 – 20010) – eligibility
The Trust’s available public constituency is defined as ‘those people (aged 16 and over) living in
specific wards of local authorities within the North Yorkshire and York Primary Care Trust area’.
During 2009/10, residents of the following local government administrative areas were eligible for
membership of the NHS Foundation Trust (see map below):

PCT area map

York (all wards)
Selby (all wards)
Hambleton (the wards of Easingwold, Helperby, Huby and Sutton, Shipton, Stillington and
Tollerton)
Co-terminosity:
In the region, the PCT has co-terminosity with several local authority boundaries:





York City Council
Selby District Council
Hambleton District Council
North Yorkshire County Council

Around 95% of the patients treated at York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust as inpatients, day
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cases and outpatients live in these areas.
Total public/patient/carer membership size and movements during 2009/10
Last year
At year start (1 April)
New members
Members leaving
At yearend (31 March)

Estimated for
next year
12,399
1000
1000
12,399

13,245
309
1155
12,399

Total staff membership size and movement during 2009/10
Last year
At year start (1 April 2008)
New members
Members leaving
At yearend (31 March 2009)

Estimated for
next year
4728

4,572
916
760
20

20

Below are summary tables providing further analysis of the tables above.
Public membership breakdown at 31 March 2010.
Catchment area

Total number of
members

City of York
Hambleton
Selby
Total

7237
687
1,993
9,917

Number eligible
Number of members
for membership
as a % of eligible
(aged 16 & over) in
population
catchment *
149,334
4.85%
11,371
6.04%
60,525
3.29%
221,232
4.50%

Age representation at 31 March 2010
In common with most Foundation Trusts over 95% of our membership is in the age range of 22 +.
Analysis of our membership raw data shows that we are over-represented by people aged 55 to 80
compared to the eligible population. This applies in all three catchment areas.
Equally, less than 1% of our members are in the age range 16 to 21, indicating significant under
representation within the eligible population.
Eligible population by age in each constituency at 31 March 2010
Age

City of
Hambleton
York
0 -16
2
0
17 – 21
27
4
22+
6,889
660
Unknown
319
23
Total
7,237
687
Age representation at 31 March 2010
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Selby

Total public membership

0
13
1942
38
1,993

2
44
9491
380
9,917

Age

Number of members

0 -16
17 – 21
22 +
Unknown
Total

2
44
9491
380
9917

Representing % of
current public
membership
0.02%
0.44%
95.70%
3.83%
100%

Eligible population by age in each catchment area at 31 March 2010
Age Range

City of
York

Hambleton

Selby

Total public
membership

0 -16
17 – 21
22 +
Total eligible
population

2,108
14,676
132,484

162
679
10,526

1,004
3,797
55,699

3,274
19,152
198,709

149,268

11,367

60,500

221135

Gender report at 31 March 2010
The Trust has a reasonably balanced male/female representation as the following tables show.
Public membership by gender at 31 March 2009
Gender

City of York

Hambleton

Selby

Male
Female
Unknown
Total

3,160
3,814
263
7,237

289
386
12
687

872
1,100
21
1,993

Total public
membership
4,321
5,300
296
9,917

Gender breakdown by percentage at 31 March 2010
Gender
Male
Female
Not stated
Total

Total membership
4,321
5,300
296
9,917

Gender percentage
43.57%
53.44%
2.98%
100%

Ethnicity report at 31 March 2010
BME groups form less than 2% of our eligible population. All the BME groups are under
represented in our registered membership.
Ethnicity- membership breakdown at 31 March 2010
Ethnicity
White
Asian
Black
Mixed

City of York
2,154
12
0
12

Hambleton
238
1
0
1
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Selby
551
3
1
0

Total
2943
16
1
13

Other
Unknown
Total

0
5,059
7,237

1
446
687

0
1438
1993

1
6943
9917

Ethnicity of catchment population against membership shown as a percentage
Ethnicity
White
Asian
Black
Mixed
Other
Unknown

Catchment
98.43%
0.83%
0.16%
0.41%
0.17%
0.00%

Membership
29.67%
0.16%
0.01%
0.13%
0.01%
70.01%

Socio-economic report of membership at 31 March 2010
We have analysed our membership using the ACORN consumer classifications. ACORN is a
geo-demographic tool used to identify and understand the UK population and the demand for
products and services. It is often used to make informed decisions on where direct marketing
campaigns will be most effective. ACORN classifies all 2 million UK postcodes which have
been described using over 125 demographic statistics and 287 lifestyle variables.
The Trust’s external membership management company Capita provided the socio-economic
profile in the table below which was mapped from ACORN to National Readership Survey
(NRS) gradings.
In terms of being representative of our eligible populations, the Trust is over represented in
the wealthy achievers, retired home owners, urban prosperity and comfortably off groups
while being under represented in the moderate means and hard pressed groups.
The table below defines our membership breakdown in socio-economic groupings and details
the possible pool of members the Trust could access.
NRS Grouping

Number of members

ABC1
C2
D
E
Unclassified

7,851
1358
335
348
25
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Potential
membership
(ACORN
statistics)
112,570
35,520
34,175
31,560
0

Membership strategy
Recruitment activity
The Membership Development Manager in conjunction with governors planned and attended
a number of events in 2009/10 in order to recruit new members and to engage with existing
members. The specific recruitment activities carried out include Health Debate in York,
Helmsley Town Council public meeting, York Green Festival, 2009 York Hospital Open Event,
the Easingwold Community Care Association AGM, Selby Volunteers Fair and Selby Funders
fair, Selby Town Council public meeting and two recruiting events at Tadcaster Grammar
School.
In addition, one governor targeted her local community area specifically and successfully
recruited additional members.
This plan was specifically designed to achieve a composition of public membership to reflect
diversity, specifically age and socio-economic groups in the outer part of our catchment area
in Selby and Hambleton Districts.
Despite this activity it is disappointing to note that our membership numbers have once again
declined this year. Not only have we been unable to recruit the additional 1000 members
estimated for this year, but we have been unable to recruit sufficient new members to replace
the number of deceased members or those moving away. This is in common with many other
Foundation Trusts in the region.
Engaging with our members
We held three successful events exclusively for members during the year.
The first in May was specifically for members who had expressed interest in bereavement
services and the 90 members who attended the event were able to see and comment upon
the plans for a new bereavement suite. On completion of the capital scheme to build the suite
in summer 2010, the members will be invited back to an exclusive tour of the new facilities.
In July we invited over 700 members to an event with the York and District Cancer
Partnership Group to discuss the development of services and to provide feedback on the
existing service.
On 30 September 2009 the Trust threw open its doors to welcome visitors at the annual open
day. The event was a real success with around 1000 people attending, including the Lord
Mayor and Lady Mayoress. On offer were 60 displays showcasing the work of many of the
hospital departments, as well as behind the scenes tours and presentations on a range of
topics. Members of the public were able to meet the managers, governors and front line staff
as well as attend the Annual General Meeting of the Trust.
The YorkTalk lunchtime presentations are also an important way for the Trust to engage with
members by offering a range of short information sessions delivered by our staff.
Last year the topics included maternity services, cardiology services, stroke services and the
role of the Care Quality Commission in the NHS.
This year the topics include the role of the matron, recent advances in haematological
malignancy, diabetic retinopathy, an introduction to NHS finance and nutrition and dietetics.
In March 2010 we launched a membership discount scheme to give members access to
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discounts with local shops and services. All members now have a membership card and a
directory of businesses who offer an exclusive discount to our members.
From April 2010 we have a refreshed Council of Governors and a new Chairman who is very
enthusiastic and committed to further embedding the Trust into the local community. This
offers the opportunity to move to the next level in achieving the vision of governor, member
and community engagement.
Membership management
The Trust will continue to manage its membership effectively. For public and patient/carer
membership, the Trust continues to buy an ongoing service from its current external supplier.
This enables membership growth to be specifically targeted in line with ACORN profiling and
census information to ensure the current membership remains representative. Cleansing and
review exercises are undertaken with each membership communication to ensure that as far
as possible inappropriate contacts are not made. The project was successfully completed to
allow the elections for staff governors to be held in January 2010.
Developing a representative membership
The prime source for recruiting members is and will remain those people who have an
existing relationship with York Hospital. This could be past and present patients or carers,
staff or those who are potential future users of our services as residents of our catchment
area.
The Trust continues to believe that membership should be voluntary to show definite, willing
and interested participation. Our membership recruitment objectives are:








To ensure all current and future staff working for the Trust (including contracted out
staff) are aware of staff membership, what it means for them and to encourage them
not to decline membership
to strive towards a composition of public membership to reflect diversity, geographically
spread across our catchment area and reflecting age, gender, ethnicity and socioeconomic groups
to keep accurate and informative databases of members to meet regulatory
requirements and to provide a useful tool for membership development and
engagement
to recognise and use members as a valuable resource
to define the rights and responsibilities of membership to strengthen the partnership
between the Trust and its members
to provide targeted and appropriate communications that offer timely, consistent and
regular messages about membership
to set up a feedback system so all constituencies of members have suitable channels
to feedback ideas and concerns, raise issues with governors, ask questions and find
out more information.

In view of the financial controls operating within the Trust, which will once again prevent any
large scale planned recruitment campaign, our objective for 2010/2011 will be to maintain our
membership at the current number at far as possible.
The new Trust Chairman has laid specific emphasis to governors on the need to step up the
community engagement activities they are involved in. It is hoped that additional input and
effort from all governors to communicate and engage with groups and networks within their
constituencies will help to generate new members.
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Elections 2009/10
The Trust will continue to work to promote its elections and to encourage greater interest and
turnout. The existing governors’ terms of office end on 31 March 2010, the Trust held
elections during January 2010 and the results of those elections are detailed earlier in the
report on page 60.
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QUALITY REPORT
Statement on quality from the Chief Executive of York Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
As Chief Executive I am committed to ensuring that patients receive the safest and highest
quality care possible. This means that I want all patients to feel both safe and cared for when
they need to come to York Hospital. It also means that staff are supported in improving care
wherever possible and encouraged to be open and to learn from any incidents which inevitably
(though sadly) happen all around the world in healthcare. Our Board attaches the highest
importance to measuring safety and outcomes regularly, and acting on these results.
We have a great track record at York of delivering against tough clinical targets. Last years'
performance on infection control including Clostridium Difficile and MRSA is an excellent example
of this. We pay huge attention to detail on getting this right, from cleaning our hands, to
prescribing the correct drugs and keeping the environment clean and tidy.
We have also done a lot of work on ensuring that you stay here only as long as absolutely
necessary, that your treatments are started on time and that we work with your GP to help your
recovery.
We are an organisation which continually aspires to be better, not simply to meet targets but to
make your care effective, safe and in line with best practice. Externally our standard of clinical
care has been rated as "excellent" and in 2009/10 “Dr Foster" rated York amongst the best
performing Trusts in the country in respect of safety.
Our governors, your representatives, work with us to ensure we focus on those things which
mean the most to patients and listen to your views of the care you received - changing this when
necessary and always seeking to improve.

Patrick Crowley
4 June 2010
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Priorities for improvement and statement of assurance from the Board
(i) Quality improvement priorities and performance for 2009/10 against each priority.
This report outlines the progress against our quality priorities in 2009/10 in our quality account
submitted to Monitor.
Performance of Trust against selected measures
We chose to measure our performance against the following metrics in 2009/10 and outlined our
quality and safety strategy:
1.
2.
3.

Safety measures
Patient with MRSA infection/10,000 bed days
Patients with C.difficile infection/1,000 bed days
Harm events that occur within the Trust

Progress

Carry to next year?
Yes
Yes
Yes

Clinical outcome measures
4.

Stroke mortality rates

Yes

5.

Occurrence of VTE

Yes

6.

Crash call rates

Yes

Patient experience measures
7.
8.
9.

% of patients that would recommend hospital to
relative/friend
% of patients who felt they were treated with
dignity and respect
% of patients rating the overall care they received

Yes
Yes
Yes

Initiative achieved
Partial achievement of initiative – significant progress made
Initiative not yet achieved

Out of the above measures we chose five priorities. Progress around those priorities is outlined
in more detail below. Harm event will be re-established when training of clinical teams is
complete.
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Priority 1:
Reducing our stroke mortality rate.
Aim/Goal
To reduce our stroke mortality rate by 5% in 2009/10.
Comment – achievement of the target depends on how the data is interpreted. The raw data year on
year shows a 21% reduction. However, when the data is Statistical Process Controlled (SPC), that
improvement has not been sustained due to higher number of deaths in September and December
09. The clinical and systems and networks teams have now improved the quality of the data and
results are expected to be much more reliable from March 2010. The clinical team feel that outcomes
have improved significantly.

Number of Deaths Within 30 Days of Stroke
Jan 08 - Jan 09
14
12
number

10
8
6
4
2

Direct admissions to the acute stroke unit

Jan-10

Dec-09

Oct-09

Nov-09

Sep-09

Jul-09

Aug-09

Jun-09

Apr-09

May-09

Mar-09

Jan-09

month

New initiatives to be implemented in
2009-10
1.

Feb-09

Dec-08

Oct-08

Nov-08

Sep-08

Jul-08

Aug-08

Jun-08

Apr-08

May-08

Mar-08

Jan-08

Feb-08

0

Progress
Agreed pathway implemented
Currently 9.00am–5.00pm service MondayFriday. Plans for 8.00am-8.00pm from 2010 if
business case approved. Business case
includes staffing model for hyper-acute stroke
unit and to fill gaps in radiology for increased
CT scanning

2.

7 day thrombolysis service 24 hours by 2011

3.

7 day T.I.A service

Five day service currently. Stroke network
looking at a seven day service across the
region instead of on each acute hospital site.
Education for GPs required in order for correct
referral to T.I.A. service

4.

Early supported discharge team

Awaiting outcome of business case. Team
described. Need to identify commissioning
route. Will save bed days and supports care of
the acute patient above as frees capacity

Program manager for strategy

Appointed. In post until March 2011. Focus is
development of early supported discharge.

5.
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Trialling seven day rehab service at no extra
cost.
Other comments/additional progress:
Commence national Sentinel audit again from April on 60 consecutive patients, this data is reliable
and robust and will support evidence of improvements in patient care and services.
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Priority 2:
To further reduce our MRSA and Clostridium Difficile rate.
Aim/Goal
Maintain at least the current threshold of six post 48 hour MRSA Bacteraemia cases and not
exceed C.difficile threshold rate in the next year.
Current Status
Monthly MRSA Bloodstream Infections Per 1000 Bed
Days

0.5

/1000 bed days
M ean
Upper Co ntro l
Lo wer Co ntro l

Rate

0.4
0.3
0.2
0.1

Jan-06
Mar-06
May-06
Jul-06
Sep-06
Nov-06
Jan-07
Mar-07
May-07
Jul-07
Sep-07
Nov-07
Jan-08
Mar-08
May-08
Jul-08
Sep-08
Nov-08
Jan-09
Mar-09
May-09
Jul-09
Sep-09
Nov-09
Jan-10

0.0

Month

Trust Clostridium difficile toxin positive (outside 3 day rule) monthly per 1000 bed days
1.40
C difficile toxin positive per 1000 bed days
Mean
Upper Control
Low er Control

per 1000 bed days

1.20
1.00
0.80
0.60
0.40
0.20

Dec-09

Oct-09

Aug-09

Jun-09

Apr-09

Feb-09

Oct-08

Dec-08

Jun-08

Aug-08

Apr-08

Feb-08

Dec-07

Oct-07

Aug-07

Jun-07

Apr-07

0.00

m onth

New initiatives to be implemented in 2009-10

Progress

1.

Implementation of Saving Lives and High
Impact Interventions – target – 100%
compliance

All implemented. Compliance improving
across all, some areas 100% compliance.
Action plans in place if target falls below
previous quarter

2.

Enhanced MRSA screening in critical care
and pre-op assessment, admissions from
Health Care facilities
Continuous assessment of implementation
and compliance with the Hygiene Code

In place

Weekly hand hygiene and bare below the
elbows compliance audits – aiming for and
sustaining 100% compliance across all staff
groups

In place. Compliance improving, majority
of areas 100%. Infection prevention team
challenge results each week

3.
4.
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In place. Available to view and be
populated by directorate leads

Priority 3:
Increase the percentage of patient recommendations.
Aim/Goal
Increase the percentage of patients who would recommend the Trust to a friend / relative to 95%
in the next year (national survey results).
Current status – 95% target achieved (recent national in-patient survey data).
New initiatives to be implemented in 2009-10

Progress

1.

Recruitment of a project manager to scope the potential to
improve the numbers and remit of our volunteer workforce

In place

2.

Implementation of stand point rolling program

In place

3.

Implementation of new complaints procedure, including
additional staff to support Patient Advice and Liaison Service
(PALS) and patient and public involvement (PPI)

In place

4.

Excellence in care training to be included in statutory and
mandatory training

In place

5.

Establishment of governors’ Patient Focus Group

In place

6.

Governors work plan to include gathering real time

In development.
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Priority 4:
To further reduce our crash call rate.
Aim/Goal
To reduce our crash call rate by a further 10% in the next year.
Current status – data collection is being revised in order to be more useful. This is in place from
February 2010 after the guidance from Patient Safety First Campaign ‘Count Your Calls’. This will
enable us to have data more robust data on times, locations and reasons for crash calls.
Improving compliance with Patient at Risk (PAR) score positively impacts on crash call rate, robust
training programme underway to improve reliability of PAR scoring.

Monthly Crash Calls Per 1000 Discharges
7.0

/1000 dischs
M ean
Upper Co ntro l
Lo wer Co ntro l

6.0

Rate

5.0
4.0
3.0
2.0
1.0

Jan-06
Mar-06
May-06
Jul-06
Sep-06
Nov-06
Jan-07
Mar-07
May-07
Jul-07
Sep-07
Nov-07
Jan-08
Mar-08
May-08
Jul-08
Sep-08
Nov-08
Jan-09
Mar-09
May-09
Jul-09
Sep-09
Nov-09
Jan-10

0.0

Month

New initiatives to be implemented in 2009-10

Progress

1.

Increase percentage of reliable observations to Reliability improving. Full training
95% across all wards.
programme in place from March 2010

2.

Review of CCOT service and recruitment to
full establishment

3.

Review of care of the dying pathway, improved Specialist nurse ‘end of life’ recruited.
training and roll out to all clinical areas
Review completed, new pathway being
rolled out with further training

4.

Escalation policy development for all clinical
areas.

In place for medicine / medicine for the
elderly and surgery. Trust wide escalation
policy in development

5.

Crash call analysis of all crash calls

In place.
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Full establishment. 24 hour 7 day a week
service

Priority 5:
To further improve the number of eligible patients receiving venous thromboembolism (VTE)
prophylaxis.
Aim/Goal
For 95% of eligible patients to have VTE prophylaxis prescribing within 24 hours of admission.
Current status-

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Apr-07
May-07
Jun-07
Jul-07
Aug-07
Sep-07
Oct-07
Nov-07
Dec-07
Jan-08
Feb-08
Mar-08
Apr-08
May-08
Jun-08
Jul-08
Aug-08
Sep-08
Oct-08
Nov-08
Dec-08
Jan-09
Feb-09
Mar-09
Apr-09
May-09
Jun-09
Jul-09
Aug-09
Sep-09
Oct-09
Nov-09
Dec-09
Jan-10

Percent

Percentage of Patients with VTE Prophylaxis
or Full Anticoagulation

Month

New initiatives to be implemented in 2009-10

Progress

1.

Capture data on readmissions rates with
VTE/PE

Plans in place with radiology to establish a
reliable method for identifying patients with a
hospital acquired VTE. A root cause analysis
needs to be complete for all these patients to
ensure systems are appropriately reviewed

2.

Establishment of a VTE committee to
develop trust policy, risk assessment tool
and patient information

The VTE committee has been established.
We are establishing the plan to comply with
the NICE guidance for VTE prophylaxis
published in January this year. Work on the
patient information leaflet is underway and all
directorates are working towards having a VTE
risk assessment which is appropriate for their
area and complements the NICE risk
assessment tool.

Other comments/additional progress
Work to collect data on the number of eligible patients prescribed VTE prophylaxis (both
mechanical and pharmacological) continues across the acute trust and is reported monthly to the
Executive Board and Board of Directors via the quality and safety dashboard.
Submission in last quality account shown below:
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National targets and regulatory
requirements

2009-2010

The Trust has fully met the HCC core
standards, and national targets

Achieved
except C20A

Clostridium difficile year on year reduction

Achieved

121

MRSA – maintaining the annual number of
MRSA

Achieved

16 bloodstream infections at less
than half the 2003/04 level

Maximum waiting time of 31 days from
decision to treat

Achieved

To be determined to start of
treatment extended to cover all
cancer treatments

Maximum waiting time of 62 days from all
referrals to

Achieved

To be determined treatment for all
cancers

18-week maximum wait from point of
referral to treatment

Achieved

90% (admitted patients)

18-week maximum wait from point of
referral to treatment

Achieved

95% (non-admitted patients)

Maximum waiting time of four hours in
A&E from arrival to admission, transfer or
discharge

Achieved

98%

Maximum waiting time of 31 days from
diagnosis to treatment for all cancers

Achieved

96%

Maximum waiting time of 62 days from
urgent referral to treatment for all cancers

Achieved

85% urgent GP referral to treatment
90% from consultant screening
service referral

People suffering heart attack to receive
thrombolysis 60 minutes of call (where
this is the preferred local treatment for
heart attack)

Achieved

68%

Maximum waiting time of two weeks from
urgent GP referral to first outpatient
appointment for all urgent suspect cancer
referrals

Achieved

100%
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Target 2010- 2011

Statements of assurance from the Board
During 2009/10 York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust provided and/or subcontracted 36 NHS
services.
York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has reviewed all the data available to them on the quality
of care in 36 of these NHS services.
The income generated by the NHS services reviewed in 2009/10 represents
100 percent of the total income generated from the provision of NHS services by York Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust for 2009/10.
Information on participation in clinical audits and national confidential enquiries
During 2009/10, 34 national clinical audits and 6 national confidential enquiries covered NHS
services that York Hospital NHS Foundation Trust provides.
During 2009/10 York Hospital NHS Foundation Trust participated in 31 (91%) national clinical
audits and six (100%) national confidential enquiries of the national clinical audits and national
confidential enquiries which it was eligible to participate in.
The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that York Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust participated in, and for which data collection was completed during 2009/10,
are listed below alongside the number of cases submitted to each audit or enquiry as a
percentage of the number of registered cases required by the terms of that audit or enquiry.
All of the audits listed below are undertaken under continuous measurement.
Intensive Care National Audit and Research Centre (ICNARC)
MINAP- Myocardial Infarction National Audit programme
Heart failure
National bowel cancer audit project (NBOCAP)
Trauma Audit and Research Network
National Hip Fracture Database
Head and neck cancer (DAHNO)
National Joint Registry
NNAP National Neonatal Care
Renal Registry
NLCA - Lung Cancer
VSSGBI VSD Vascular Society GB & I
PROMS National Elective Surgery – Hernia
PROMS National Elective Surgery - Varicose veins
PROMS National Elective Surgery – Hip
PROMS National Elective Surgery – Knee
NHS Blood and Transplant: potential donor audit
CEMACH - Perinatal mortality
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Data collection completed by audit in 2009/10
Audit title

Number of
cases

College of Emergency Medicine: Pain in children
College of Emergency Medicine: fractured NOF
College of Emergency Medicine: Asthma
British Thoracic Society: respiratory disease: Emergency Oxygen
British Thoracic Society: respiratory disease: 2009 Pilot Pleural procedures
audit
British Thoracic Society: respiratory disease: Adult Asthma
National oesophago-gastric (stomach) cancer audit and outcomes project
National Comparative Audit of Blood Transfusion (Collection from the blood
fridge (2009))
National Comparative audit of blood transfusion (use of red cells in neonates
and children 2009)
National Continence Audit
NCEPOD - Cosmetic Surgery
NCEPOD - Parenteral Nutrition

100
100
100

240
70
8
24
100
85

The reports of 11 local clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2009/10 and York
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve the quality of
healthcare provided. The results should not be extrapolated further than the actual sample
audited.
Action

Number of audits

Improved documentation
8
Change process
4
Additional training/education
3
Improved communication
3
Re-audit
5
We have processes in place to obtain and follow up on action plans for all national clinical audits,
local audits and national confidential enquiries.
Action plans for national confidential enquiries are reported to the Clinical Standards Committee.
Clinical audit reports will be presented to this Committee from April 2010.
Information on participation in clinical research
The number of patients receiving NHS services provided or sub-contracted by York Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust that were recruited during that period to participate in research approved
by a research ethics committee was 2,497.
Information on the use of the CQUIN framework
A proportion of York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust income in 2009/10 was conditional upon
achieving quality improvement and innovation goals agreed between York Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust and any person or body they entered into a contract, agreement or arrangement
with for the provision of NHS services, through the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation
payment framework. Further details of the agreed goals for 2009/10 and for the following 12
month period are available on request from the Deputy Director of Corporate Performance and
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Compliance and Deputy Director of Finance.
Information relating to registration with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and periodic/special
reviews
York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is required to register with the Care Quality Commission. Its
current registration status is not yet confirmed and we have no conditions on our registration. The
Trust also has full registration on Healthcare Associated Infections for 2009/10. The CQC has not
taken enforcement action against us during of the reporting year 2009/10.
York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is not subject to periodic review by the Care Quality
Commission since 2008/09. The results of that review were that the Trust received a rating of
‘good’ for it quality of services and ‘excellent’ for its use of resources.
The Care Quality Commission undertook a spot inspection of the Trust’s compliance with the
Hygiene Code in July 2009, and as a result made a number of recommendations for
improvement. The Trust acted on these recommendations immediately and on re-inspection by
the Care Quality Commission in October 2009, the Trust was found to be fully compliant with the
Hygiene Code.
) Information on the quality of data
York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust submitted records during 2009/10 to the secondary uses
system for inclusion in the hospital episode statistics which are included in the latest published
data. The percentage of records in the published data:
 which included the patient's valid NHS Number was: 99.19% for admitted patient care; 99.45%
for outpatient care; and 91.65% for accident and emergency care.
 which included the patient's valid General Practitioner Registration.
Code was:
 99.78% for admitted patient care
 99.82% for outpatient care and
 99.63% for accident and emergency care.
The results should not be extrapolated further than the actual sample audited.
York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust score for 2009/10 for information quality and records
management assessed using the information governance toolkit was 89%.
York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust was subject to the payment by results clinical coding audit
during the reporting period by the Audit Commission and the error rates reported in the latest
published audit for that period for diagnoses and treatment coding (clinical coding) were 9.30%.

Page 91 of 164

Other information
NPSA Alerts
The National Patient Safety Agency (NPSA) is responsible for issuing alerts to all Trusts from
various bodies such as the Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency (MHRA),
National Health Service Litigation Authority (NHSLA) and their own patient safety alerts. The Trust
has a policy for handling the alerts via the Central Alert System (CAS) and has a nominated Central
Liaison Officer. All alerts are acknowledged within 24 hours and are allocated a lead coordinator to
assess compliance with the alerts. If the alert does not relate to the Trust because we do not use
the particular equipment or medication referred to then an immediate response advising of this is
sent to the NPSA. Alerts which relate to the Trust have an action plan developed to address the alert
within the timescale allocated by the NPSA and when the work has been completed the NPSA
advised. On occasion some alerts are outstanding past the deadline due to external influences such
as the inability of manufacturers to produce the equipment needed.
Serious Untoward Incidents (SUI)
Despite the best efforts of the organisation there are occasionally times when things go wrong.
When this happens the Trust declares a Serious Untoward Incident (SUI) and reports this to NHS
NYY. The Trust has a system and process for investigating such incidents which will determine the
root cause of the incident and which makes recommendations to address the root cause. The
learning is fed back into the organisation to ensure that there is no repeat of the incident and the final
report goes to the PCT with a copy being shared with any patients or family members who may have
been involved in the incident in question.
Historical and benchmark data
Below is a table showing the historical and benchmarked data for 2009/10. It is an example of the
information provided to the Board of Directors on a monthly basis.
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Quality & Safety Dashboard
March 2010
Performance Scorecard
Area

Metric
1 . Actual number of deaths
2. HSMR - All admissions
3. Never events
4. PAR (Patient at Risk) score
5. Monthly Crash Calls Per 1000 Discharges
6. Falls and found on floor
7. Percentage of Patients with VTE Prophylaxis or Full Anticoagulation
8. Pressure sores per 1000 bed days - On admission
9. Pressure sores per 1000 bed days - Occurred within trust

High Level Aims
Nursing Care Indicators
Deteriorating patient
Falls prevention
High risk Medications
Pressure sores

Units

Mar-10

Target

Number
Rate
Number
Percentage
Rate

100
89.2
0
51%
1.3

80.0
0
95%

Number
Percentage
Rate
Rate

243
82%
0.8
0.3

Status

↓
↓
→
→
↓
↑
↑
↑
↓

Status Key - Where there is no definitive target for a measure, the status colour refers to - a sustained improvement (using SPC methodology)
- where the outcome is within expected variation (no improvement)
- special cause or sustained drop in performance

1. Improved from previous month and from the same time last year despite rise in
admissions.

Mar-10

Feb-10

Jan-10

Dec-09

Nov-09

Oct-09

Sep-09

Aug-09

Jul-09

Jun-09

May-09

100%

300

90%

6. data from datix system - only goes up to Dec 09 at present for falls
Improved from last month.

Mar-10

Feb-10

Jan-10

Dec-09

Oct-09

Nov-09

month

Sep-09

Aug-09

Jan-09

Jul-09

50%

Dec-09

Nov-09

Oct-09

Sep-09

month

Aug-09

Jul-09

Jun-09

May-09

Apr-09

Mar-09

Feb-09

Jan-09

VTE prophylaxis or full anticoagulation
Mean
Upper Control Limit
Lower Control Limit

60%

0

7. % decrease compared to previous month. Variability remains across directorates.
Improvements supported by increased focus on VTE post NICE guidance and remit
of VTE Committee.

Pressure Sores per 1000 bed days
- On admission

1.4

70%

Jun-09

50

80%

May-09

Falls and found on floor
Mean
Upper Control Limit
Lower Control Limit

100

Feb-09

150

Apr-09

200

Mar-09

250

percentage

1.6

% new
Mean
Upper Control Limit
Lower Control Limit

1.4

1.2

1.2

1.0

Pressure Sores per 1000 bed days
- Within Trust

1.0

rate

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.6

% on admission
Mean
Upper Control Limit
Upper Control Limit

0.4
0.2

0.4
0.2

0.0

2.0
1.5
1.0
0.5

Dec-09

Nov-09

Oct-09

Sep-09

Aug-09

month

Jul-09

Jun-09

May-09

Apr-09

Feb-09

Jan-09

Mar-09

% total
Mean
Upper Control Limit
Lower Control Limit

0.0

Dec-09

Nov-09

Oct-09

Sep-09

Aug-09

Jul-09

Jun-09

Apr-09

Mar-09

month

9. data from datix system - only goes up to Dec 09 at present.
Reported incidents expected ro rise due to new policy and training and a change
from NICE grading to EUPAP categories.
Pressure ulcers are under reported. Datix data does not provide information on
grade of pressure ulcer but will from April 2010.
Data now changed to % rather than numbers of pressure ulcers as requested.

Pressure Sores per 1000 bed days On admission and trust

2.5

May-09

month

8. data from datix system - only goes up to Dec 09 at present

Jan-09

Dec-09

Nov-09

Oct-09

Sep-09

Aug-09

Jul-09

Jun-09

May-09

Apr-09

Mar-09

Feb-09

Jan-09

0.0

Feb-09

number

Apr-09

Jan-09

Percentage of Patients with VTE
Prophylaxis or Full Anticoagulation

350

rate

month

5. Changes to the way the data is collected changed in February 2010. March data
tells us we had 9 cardiac arrest calls which is below the lower control limit. Previous
data may have included other reasons for calling the crash team.

Falls and found on floor

400

rate

/1000 dischs
Mean
Upper Control Limit
Lower Control Limit

Mar-09

rate
Mar-10

Feb-10

Jan-10

Dec-09

Nov-09

month

Oct-09

Sep-09

Aug-09

Jul-09

Jun-09

May-09

Apr-09

Feb-09

Mar-09

Deaths
Mean
Upper Control Limit
Lower Control Limit

Monthly Crash Calls Per 1000 Discharges

4.5
4.0
3.5
3.0
2.5
2.0
1.5
1.0
0.5
0.0
Feb-09

Number of deaths per month

200
180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
0
Jan-09

deaths

Data in Statistical Process Control (SPC) charts

data from datix system - only goes up to Dec 09 at present
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Performance against key national priorities and national core standards
National priorities and
national core standards

Performance

Improving Cleanliness and
HCAIs:

The Trust performed extremely well on its reduction of health
care acquired Infections reporting four MRSA against a
threshold of 12, and 28 incidences of CDIFF against a
threshold of 110 for 2009/10. On its spot inspection by the
Care Quality Commission in October 2009, it was found to be
compliant with the Hygiene Code. The Trust commenced the
screening of electives patients for MRSA at the end of March
2009 and whilst it hasn’t delivered 100% of patients screened
all year, performance is significantly improved.

Improving Access through
achievement of the 18 Week
Referral to Treatment Pledge

The Trust has delivered all of the key milestones relating to the
18 week referral to treatment pledges. At the end of March
2010 all specialties had achieved the set targets of 90% for the
admitted care pathway and 95% for the non-admitted care
pathway.

Keeping adults and children well, improving their health and reducing inequalities
Accident and emergency

98.2% of patients were either admitted, transferred or
discharged from the Emergency Department within 4 hours of
presenting.

Cancer

The Trust has achieved delivery of the following cancer
standards
Maximum 14 days from referral to appointment
Maximum 14 days from referral to appointment for breast
symptomatic cancers
Maximum waiting time of 31 days treatment for rare cancer
Maximum waiting time of 31 days for subsequent treatments
for all cancers
Maximum waiting time of 31 days for subsequent treatments –
anti cancer drug
Maximum waiting time of 62 days from referral to treatment for
all cancers
Maximum waiting time of 62 days from referral to treatment
(screened patients)
Maximum waiting time of 62 days from referral to treatment
(upgraded referrals)

Thrombolysis

The Trust has less than 20 cases per year and the target is
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therefore not applicable
Rapid access chest pain

All patients referred to a rapid access chest pain clinic received
an appointment within 14 days of referral

Genito-urinary medicine

All patients contacting a genito-urinary medicine clinic were
offered access to a clinic within 48 hours of contact

Stroke

The Trust admitted 581 patients with a diagnosis of stroke
during 2009/10, 275 of these patients spent 90% of their
admission on a stroke unit. This is an improvement on the
previous year’s performance. Progress during the year has
been the establishment of a five day TIA service from March
2009 which enables all patients to be seen within seven days
of referral. The Trust is also working on early supported
discharge and is participating in the National Priority Stroke
Project with the aim of providing high quality stroke
rehabilitation over six to seven days a week.

Safeguarding

The Trust has policies in place relating to both the
safeguarding of adults and children and works with all key
stakeholders to ensure the delivery of this agenda.
The Trust has employed an acute lead liaison nurse for adults
with a learning disability in order to ensure that protocols are
developed and implemented that meet the needs of those
patients with learning disabilities.

Equalities

The promotion of a systematic approach to equality, diversity
and human rights in both employment and service delivery is
overseen by a steering group chaired by the Associate Director
of Estates and Facilities. This group has developed our single
equalities scheme and monitors the implementation of the
related action plan covering the Trust's statutory duties. The
group reports to the Board of Directors via the Non Clinical
Assurance Committee. The issues of equality and diversity for
patients are key to our various patient involvements.
As a Trust we carry out impact assessments to consider
equality, diversity and human rights in all employment policy, in
key service plans and in patterns of service delivery. The
Inclusivity Steering Group oversees this work. We also use
feedback from service users through consultations, patient
surveys, complaints and other sources to identify and address
scope for improvement in equality, diversity and human rights.
We aim to provide practical day-to-day support for frontline
staff to promote awareness of equality, diversity and human
rights, having well-established access to interpreter services
and publishing a comprehensive guide on religious and cultural
beliefs and how these affect patient care. We have some
excellent publications for staff such as the Concise Guide to
Customs of Religious Culture and Practice which aim to
provide guidance to staff over and above training.
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Improving patient experience,
staff satisfaction and
engagement

The Trust participates in national patient and staff satisfaction
surveys. In the recently published results for the national
inpatient survey, out of 79 questions asked the Trust was:




Significantly better than average in 15 questions
Significantly worse than average in 3 questions
Average on the remainder

The Trust significantly improved its performance in all the
areas in which it scored poorly in the 2008/9 Staff Survey, most
noticeably in the following areas:


KF15 - % of staff appraised with personal development
plans in last 12 months
2008 score - 32%
2009 score - 57%



KF13 - % of staff appraised in last 12 months
2008 score - 42%
2009 score - 70%



KF14 - % of staff having well structured appraisals in
last 12 months
2008 score - 17%
2009 score - 29%



KF17 - % of staff receiving health and safety training in
last 12 months
2008 score - 65%
2009 score - 75%

The Trust also carries out local surveys on various services it
provides, for example:




Outpatient satisfaction
Inpatients on discharge (nursing metrics)
Measuring surgical outcomes (PROMS)

The Trust has an active set of governors who are elected by
the community they represent. To ensure that users are
involved in the development and improvement of services there
are various groups where patients actively participate in the
provision of feedback. Patient complaints are also a vehicle
used to provide feedback and learning on the Trust’s services.
Preparing to respond in a state
of emergency

The Trust has a tried and tested major incident plan. It
participated in a full emergo exercise in April 2009 with over
100 staff from different operational departments participating
alongside other key agency stakeholders. It also has an
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pandemic emergency plan which was tested via a desk top
exercise in September 2009, and implemented during the
winter of 2009 during the outbreak of swine flu.
Core Standards for Better
Health

The Trust declared compliance with all core standards for
better health.

Statement from the primary care trust, LINks and Overview and Scrutiny Committees
NHS NYY
Every day across North Yorkshire and York there are over a million clinical interventions,
provided by doctors, nurses, midwives, allied health professionals and support workers. Patients
receive their care when they visit their General Practice, within their own homes and within both
our local community hospitals and our main hospitals. We also know that care can be from the
simplest support through to some of the most complex of intensive care.
We know through clinical audits, reviews of care pathways, patient satisfaction surveys and close
monitoring of the outcomes for patients that the care provided is almost always of the highest
quality. We also know through statements made by all healthcare providers that patient safety
continues to be the highest priority. We also know through the Care Quality Commission (the
regulator of healthcare providers) that great attention is being given to providing evidence and
assurances to the public and patients that the care provided is of a high quality.
Over the past 12 months we have worked hard together as commissioners and providers to
promote quality by having an increased focus through our Contract Monitoring arrangements,
holding a series of events and in particular showcasing some real innovations across all parts of
the NHS. We have built stronger shared assurances by measuring and reviewing certain
indicators of quality relating to patient safety such as infection prevention and control, clinical
effectiveness demonstrated through clinical audits against best practice and the patients’
experience through looking at satisfaction surveys. Where necessary and where there have been
any concerns we have also intervened jointly and openly to ensure we learn and continuously
improve.
This Quality Account for York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust tells a clear, accurate and positive
story of the quality of patient care provided which is testament to the Trust. The clinicians and
leaders within the Trust have also played a wider role in influencing the agenda around quality
particularly in helping to shape and clarify the regional and local Commissioning for Quality and
Innovation (CQUIN) indicators. The way the Trust has subsequently embraced the indicators and
consistently been able to demonstrate achievement of all the measures has also been really
welcome. The priorities identified for 2010/11 are well supported and the focus on saving more
lives improving the outcomes for patients has a real synergy with what we are seeking to achieve
across the whole of North Yorkshire and York.
As a commissioner we commend this Quality Account for its accuracy, honesty, focus on getting
it right for patients and by that I mean keeping patients safe, providing clinically effective care and
ensuring the patients experience is all that it should be. We look forward to continuing to work
collaboratively with the simple aim of supporting the Trust in building on the many successes of
this year.
LINks statement
The LINk would like to make the following comments:
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 York LINk welcomes this document which we are sure will be useful to assist us in
monitoring services during the following year
 we are particularly pleased about the possibility that someone to help with early discharge
for people who have had strokes is being considered
 we regret that carers rights (with a view to enhancing patient welfare) are not given
prominence at the moment and would recommend that staff involve carers in all aspects of
patient care particularly at discharge and diagnosis.
 we are unsure if you have volunteers who read your documents. If not we have a Readers
panel who would be happy to comment on the patient information leaflet on NICE
Guidelines for VTE.
Quality priorities for 2010 /11
We intend to continue to focus on some of the priorities from 2009/10 going forward. In addition
consideration needs to be given to the following as these are the agreed additional priorities from
our quality and safety strategy:
 Falls
 Ulcers
 Deteriorating patient (SBAR, safety briefings, PAR, sepsis)
 VTE
In addition the quality indicators from the CQUIN framework and high impact action for nursing
and midwifery require us to discuss and agree whether some elements are included in our quality
account e.g. nutrition, urinary tract infections.
Response to LINks and to feedback from members and governors
We are in contact with LINks and have assisted them to write their protocol. We will share our
quality account with LINks for comment before it is approved by the Board of Directors.
Governors have established their Patient Focus Group and together have developed patient
questions to be used on the wards as part of the nursing care indicators and we are developing a
workplan based on their interest and willingness to be more involved in gathering timely feedback
on patient experiences. Governors are being consulted on proposed priorities for the quality
account 2010/11.
At the Council of Governors meeting held on 16 March 2010 governors were introduced to the
requirements and obligations of the statutory instrument and following a debate agreed they
would form a new group to inform the decision of what should be included in the quality account
for 2010/11.
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Sustainability/climate change
In March 2009, The Board of Directors approved a sustainable development statement
committing the organisation to continuous improvement in minimising the impact of its activities
on the environment and becoming a good corporate citizen.
The adopted sustainable development statement defines clear operational objectives, identifies
robust supporting actions and clearly establishes roles and responsibilities within the Trust in
pursuit of its objectives.
Based on the adopted sustainable development statement, the Trust is developing a proactive,
forward-looking delivery strategy by the development and implementation of a sustainable
development policy.
The sustainable development policy encapsulates the Board of Directors’ key objectives and
seeks to embed sustainability throughout the organisation in a measured way by the development
and monitoring of transparent, operational procedures.
The sustainable development policy requires the Trust to:
 Establish an Environmental Impact Steering Group representing all major user directorates and
departments, the Environmental Impact Steering Group reporting directly to the Board of
Directors
 the development of an Environmental Impact Reporting Tool to provide a proactive, prioritised
approach to sustainable development
 the adoption of the Good Corporate Citizenship Assessment Model as a key performance
monitor
 the development and implementation of operational procedures in compliance with BS 14001Environmental Management and BS EN 16001-Energy Management System.
Summary performance
Nonfinancial
data
(applicable
metric)

Nonfinancial
data
(applicabl
e metric)

Financial
data
(£k)

Financial
data
(£k)

2008/09

2009/10

2008/09

2009/10

Absolute
values for
total amount
of waste
produced by
the trust.

1, 026
tonnes

1,105
tonnes

344.6

360

Methods of
disposal
(optional).

Highest
temperature
disposal
555 tonnes
Landfill

High
temperatur
e disposal
549 tonnes
Landfill

High
temperature
disposal cost
£287.4k
Landfill

High
temperature
disposal
costs
£300.25

Waste minimisation and
management

Area
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Expenditure
on waste
disposal

Finite
Resources

disposal
471 tonnes

disposal
466 tonnes

water

152,054 cu
m

138,408 cu
m

water

Electricity

46,664 G
joules

50,338 G
joules

Electricity

Gas

110,967 G
joules

121,751 G
joules

Gas

349 G
joules

Other energy
consumption

Other energy
consumption

disposal costs
£57.2k

Landfill
disposal
costs £59.75

207.8

221
1119.9

2,437

816.9
11.3

For financial year 2008/09, high temperature disposal information based on ERIC Report submission, landfill
information estimated.
Increased electricity and gas consumption during 2008/09 compared to 2009/10 is due to the increase in property
portfolio at Clifton Moor with the addition of Purchasing, Occupational Health and the new Medical Records.
Increased water consumption during 2008/09 is due to a water leak on the Trust distribution network.
Water costs include disposal.

Future priorities and targets
The Board of Directors have in the past approved the Sustainability statement, the Board of
Directors will be asked to approve the Sustainability policy during 2010/11 and launch it across
the Trust.
The Trust will develop and implement carbon management strategies for:





Energy
transport
waste Management
procurement.
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Equality and diversity
The Board of Directors recognises its responsibilities relating to equality and diversity. The
Trust lead is the Associate Director of Estates and Facilities, supported by an Equality and
Diversity Committee made up of cross-organisational representatives.
The Equality and Diversity Committee is a sub committee of the Non-Clinical Assurance
Committee, producing bi-monthly exception reports and an annual report.
The Trust is aware of its requirement to publish information about staff and patients. It has
developed an action plan to ensure compliance with these requirements will be fulfilled during
the financial year 2010/11. This work will take into account the additional requirements of the
Equality Act 2010.
Summary of performance – workforce statistics

%

Staff 2009/10

%

Membership
2008/09

%

1
130
4501
0

0.02
2.76
97.22
0.00

0
109
4638
0

0.00
2.28
97.72
0.00

3
74
10,006
439

0.03
0.70
95.10
4.17

2
44
9491
380

0.02
0.44
95.70
3.83

4281
69
127

92.44
1.47
2.74

4371
69
134

92.08
1.45
2.82

2815
9
9

26.75
0.09
0.09

2943
13
16

29.67
0.13
0.16

47

1.01

58

1.22

3

0.03

1

0.01

108

2.33

115

2.42

7686

73.05

6943

70.02

1007
3625
0
0

21.74
78.26
0.00
0.00

1031
3716
0
0

21.72 4600
78.28 5554
368
0.00
0
0.00

43.72 4321
52.78 5300
296
3.50
0
0.00

11
0
0
4621

0.24
0.00
0.00
99.76

17
95
1
4634

N/A
0.36
N/A
2.00
N/A
0.02
97.62 10522

N/A
N/A
N/A
100

Membership
2009/10

Staff 2008/09

%

Age
0-16
17-21
22+
Unknown

Ethnicity
White
Mixed
Asian or Asian
British
Black or Black
British
Other
Gender
Male
Female
Not stated
Trans-gender
Recorded
disabilities
Yes
No
Not stated
Unknown

N/A
N/A
N/A
9917

43.57
53.44
2.98
0.00
N/A
N/A
N/A
100

We aim to further raise the profile of the Trust as an employer of choice by strengthening our
community links, promoting and enhancing the benefits the Trust offers and continuing to
develop our methods of recruitment.
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The health and wellbeing of our staff will remain a priority both in terms of attendance and
effectiveness at work and beyond.
We will also continue to develop our approach to reward and recognition for our staff.
Making effective use of workforce information from a range of sources to aid workforce
planning and ensuring best use of our workforce resource will be critical, particularly at a time
when NHS resources become tighter.
Priorities and targets for the membership are detailed on page 79 of this report.
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Staff survey report
This year’s staff survey report included a score for staff engagement. This score was calculated
based on responses to the individual questions which made up key findings 33, 36 and 37.
These key findings relate to the following aspects of staff engagement: staff members’
perceived ability to contribute to improvements at work, their willingness to recommend the
Trust as a place to work or receive treatment and the extent to which they feel motivated and
engaged with their work. The score range was from 1 to 5, with 1 indicating that staff are poorly
engaged and 5 indicating that staff are highly engaged. The Trust’s score of 3.67 was above
(better) than the average score for acute trusts which was 3.64.
Summary of performance
2008/09
Response rate

Trust

2009/10
National
average

46%

52%

2008/09
Top 4 ranking scores
Key finding 3
% of staff feeling valued
by their work colleagues
Key finding 25
% of staff experiencing
physical violence from
staff in last 12 months
Key finding 39
% of staff believing
Trust provides equal
opportunities for career
progression or
promotion
Key finding 27
% of staff experiencing
harassment, bullying or
abuse from staff in last
12 months

Trust

Trust
52%

Trust improvement/
dterioration
National
average
52%

2009/10
National
Average

Trust

Improvement of 6%
Trust improvement/
deterioration

National
Average

79%

85%

82%

77%

Improvement of 3%

2%

2%

0%

2%

Improvement of 2%

88%

90%

95%

90%

Improvement of 7%

17%

19%

13%

18%

Improvement of 4%
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Bottom 4 ranking
scores
Key finding 21
% of staff witnessing
potentially harmful
errors, near misses or
incidents in last month
Key finding 17
% of staff receiving
health and safety
training in last 12
months
Key finding 1
% of staff feeling
satisfied with the quality
of work and patient care
they are able to deliver
Key finding 37
Staff Motivation at work

Trust

National
average

Trust

National
average

40%

38%

42%

37%

Deterioration of 2%

62%

76%

75%

78%

Improvement of 13%

73%

62%

72%

74%

Deterioration of 1%

N/A

N/A

3.83

3.84

No comparable score
from 2008 survey

The key findings below are those which will be the focus of the organisation’s action planning:




Key finding 21. Percentage of staff witnessing potentially harmful errors, near misses or
incidents in the last month
key finding 17. Percentage of staff receiving health and safety training in last 12 months
key finding 1. Percentage of staff feeling satisfied with the quality of work and patient care
they are able to deliver.

Taking forward the actions from the staff survey results is fundamental to ensure improvements
can be made. Directorates will be provided with there results and will be responsible for
identifying specific actions required for their areas, supported by HR. The directorates will
manage their action plans and ensure that staff are engaged in the implementation of actions.
Where key corporate actions are identified a separate action plan will be developed and
managed through the HR team to ensure corporate implementation. The action plans will be
monitored through the workforce performance management meetings and the Executive Board.
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Regulatory ratings report
Monitor apply a series of financial ratios to establish a single-figure overall Financial Risk
Rating (FRR) for each Foundation Trust. The rating is expressed on a scale of 1 to 5, with level
5 signalling least financial risk and level 1 signalling greatest financial risk. York has a recent
FRR history of reporting at level 4, recognising delivery better than plan and specifically
recognising delivery of a modest financial surplus.
York's plan for 2009/10 recognised that a surplus position would be more difficult to achieve
given the financial position of the local health economy and as such a more conservative FRR
of 3 was planned. Most Foundation Trusts have a FRR of 3, recognising broadly balanced
income and expenditure and adequate liquidity levels.
In terms of quarterly monitoring through 2009/10, York has consistently delivered against plan
resulting in in-year FRR assessments of level 3. However, in closing the year the Trust has
recognised that NHS NYY has been unable to afford the full value of additional activity
provided by the Trust over and above contracted levels. This has resulted in the Trust
recognising in its accounts a £4m impaired debtor with NHS NYY. Monitor has included this
impaired debtor in the Trust's FRR assessment and the deficit impact has resulted in the
Trust's year-end FRR being reported at level 2.
This position has been immediately addressed in the new financial year with both restoration of
cash flow facilitated by the NHS Yorkshire and the Humber SHA and by the development of an
annual plan with a FRR of 3 for 2010/11.
Monitor has recognised this temporary 2009/10 position in their ongoing assessment of the
Trust and requires no further action to be taken.

Finance risk
rating
Governance
risk rating
Mandatory
services
Finance risk
rating
Governance
risk rating
Mandatory
services

Annual Plan Q1 2008/09
2008/09
4
5

Q2 2008/09

Amber

Amber

Amber

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Annual Plan Q1 2009/10
2009/10
3
3

Q2 2009/10

Q3 2009/10

Q4 2009/10

Green

Green

Amber

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green
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Q4 2880/09

3

4

3
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PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURES
Throughout the year, staff and community members have been consulted about issues that
affect them in the way services are delivered or that mean changes to practices that affect how
staff work.
Communication with staff has remained a high priority, staff at the Trust can access a variety of
communication material including:




YorkTalk quarterly membership news letter: with authorisation of Foundation Trust
status, the Trust launched YorkTalk, which is distributed to all community and staff
members
Intranet
Team brief

As an NHS Foundation Trust, the Trust consults with both staff and community members on a
regular basis through the various committees outlined in the report. Some examples of
consultation and development of services involving staff and patients are given below.
Restorative dentistry service
A new restorative dentistry service has been set up at York Hospital. Mr Matthew Gahan,
Consultant in Restorative Dentistry joined the head and neck directorate on 1 February 2010.
York was the only head and neck cancer unit within the NHS Yorkshire and the Humber SHA
that did not have a restorative dentist in post and as a member of the Head and neck multidisciplinary team (MDT). It is a requirement of the NICE Improving Outcomes Guidance (IOG)
on Head and Neck Cancers (2004) and part of the Peer Review measure 2I-104 (2006). The
service for these patients was previously provided at Leeds Teaching Hospitals with an
outreach clinic in York (one day per month) for new patients and all treatment provided in
Leeds. This led to inconvenience for patients (many of whom have significant facial
deformities) of having to travel a significant distance from their local care centre. In addition
Leeds gave notice on this service and from June 2010 all patients would have to travel to
Leeds.
The service is critical to the rehabilitation of post-operative head and neck cancer patients with
respect to mastication, swallowing and communication; in addition to the complete preoperative assessment and management of such patients. In addition to this service, the
appointment will offer expert opinion in matters of dental reconstruction and rehabilitation of
other patients referred from maxillofacial and orthodontic surgery with congenital deformity and
maxillofacial trauma. The service will also act as a diagnostic and treatment planning service to
local general dental practitioners to assist them with management strategies for difficult clinical
situations. This appointment fits well with the emerging enhanced services appropriate to a
new teaching hospital aiming to more completely meet the needs of its local population.
Stroke user group
The user group meets six times a year at the hospital. It is well attended by patients, carers,
representatives from the Stroke Association, Different Strokes, Speak ability, local stroke clubs,
nurses and therapists.
The agenda for the user group during 2009 -2010 is:



To raise stroke awareness within the local communities
to be involved in the stroke service development at York
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lobby for better support in the community following stroke
provide information to patients and carers to make the readjustment to their lives easier.

An article was written about stroke which included relevant statistics, the symptoms of stroke
and emphasised the need to get urgent medical attention. The piece also included the Stroke
Association’s current acronym F.A.S.T. with their contact details.
Several members circulated the article to their local newspapers and parish magazines and
several were published.
The group now has active representation on the hospital’s strategic planning meetings and
contribute to the planning of service development.
During the last year the patient and user group has discussed several issues relating to stroke
service development:






Same sex hyper-acute accommodation
six day therapy working
the progress of the thrombolysis service
expansion of T.I.A clinics
early supported discharge.

The group identified a need for information which they would have found useful before they
were back in the community. This resulted in the production of a ‘help and advice’ sheet which
is given to patients and carers before discharge.
The group were delighted to be able to welcome the Stroke Association support team which
gained local funding this year. The team provide help, information and support to stroke victims
in hospital and at home after discharge. The group have been able to offer help and advice to
the new team.
The group is intending to look at the following issues during 2010/11:




Evaluation of in patient information
raising stroke awareness
feedback to strategic planning meetings.

Patient safety
Quality and safety is placed highest on the agenda of the Board of Directors and as an
organisation we are firmly committed to reducing harm and mortality.
Over the last year we have made good progress on implementing and embedding our quality
and safety strategy ‘safe and cared for’.
The organising principles of the strategy of safe, effective and personal care ensure that we do
the right thing to the right patient in the right way, every time.
We have committed to action to improve both the reliability of our care for our patients and the
way in which we deliver it.
We have developed robust reporting mechanisms to both inform and steer quality and safety to
all levels of the organisation.
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Excellent progress has been made in the following areas:












Dramatic reduction in both MRSA and C-Difficile achieved by increased focus on
evidenced-based clinical care and the work of our antimicrobials stewardship team
reduction in central line infections, over 340 days in between incidence
introduction of the sepsis bundle for elderly patients which has led to early identification of
deterioration and swift intervention
safety briefings in theatres maintained at 100% for the last eight months
we have developed, tested and implemented our Nursing Care Indicators which measure
nursing contribution to patient care. The results have allowed us to focus on key areas for
improvement at ward level linked to our quality and safety strategy (for example falls,
pressure ulcers and nutrition)
achievement of all of the CQUIN indicators for 2009/10
introduction of customer and patient focused training for all staff
declaration of the achievement of delivering single sex accommodation (DSSA) with
robust action plans going forward to further improve the patient experience
a year-long project to develop the number and remit of our volunteers to support patients
and staff
development of a new set of trust values to underpin service delivery and embed the right
behaviours in our staff (improve quality and safety, improve our effectiveness, capacity
and capability, improve our work with our partners and broader community and improve
our facilities and protect the environment).

Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS)
The service:











Is a single point of contact for any hospital-related enquiry
deals with patient concerns and can offer a speedy, on the spot resolution to issues
acts as a gateway to other statutory and community services
acts as a listening ear and monitors patient concerns
provides information about York Hospital issues and the wider NHS
is a free and confidential service
supports staff at all levels to consider the patient perspective
provides data to directorates on emerging themes and trends and takes direct action
where necessary to improve patient experience
is involved in voicing patient issues in a range of meetings and initiatives
can advise on the complaints process.
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Activity
A large proportion of the cases dealt with by PALS are resolved immediately or within 24
hours, ensuring that the patient and their relatives or carers receive a high standard of service.
However, the service also works hard to ensure that issues do not recur in the future for other
patients by working with directorates to effect service improvement.
The graph below details the 3,312 contacts between April 2009 to March 2010:

PALS by Subject (primary)
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Service user involvement groups
Several service user involvement groups continue to operate within the Trust, including:





Child Hearing Services Working Group (CHSWG)
Maternity Services Liaison Committee (MSLC)
Older Peoples Liaison Group (OPLG)
York and District Cancer Partnership (YDCP)

All the groups provide valued opportunities for the exchange of feedback and information
between service users and the Trust, which improve patient experience.
Patient surveys within the Trust
During last year the Trust has continued to use the touch screen equipment purchased in
2008 to ensure patients’ views are collected as part of a number of surveys that are being run
in the Trust. Areas where the equipment has been used this year include:







Hypnotherapy
rheumatology
theatres
nurse enhanced unit
elderly medicine
cancer care services
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outpatient department
anti-coagulant service
day unit.

In 2009/10 surveys were undertaken in the following areas and action plans were developed
and completed during the year as a result of the comments received from patients:








Audiology
head and neck
cardiology
general medicine
discharge lounge
ophthalmology (repeat survey)
hydrotherapy clinic.

Health and safety
The Trust has a Health and Safety Committee as laid down under the Safety Representative
and Safety Committee Regulations 1977 and the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974.
Assurance about risk is provided to the Board of Directors and Executive Board via the Risk
and Assurance Committee. The Trust has in place management systems to fully comply with
the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974.
The Committee has representation from both staff and management, and representation from
all directorates/services, including union and safety representatives.
During the year the following Health and Safety work was undertaken:


The Trust health and safety strategy was developed following the 2009 health and
safety audit. The strategy emphasised the need for a full health and safety management
system in all directorates. The strategy was approved by the Board of Directors and
then rolled out throughout the Trust. The aim of the strategy was to be instrumental in
raising the safety culture in the Trust, identifying training needs, standardising
procedures etc



two IOSH Managing Safely courses were conducted during June and September 2009.
24 candidates completed their IOSH course and passed the exam and project. A
number of the IOSH managers have now become members of the Health and Safety
Committee on behalf of their directorates/departments



further improvements have been made within the area of Legionella control and systems
have been implemented to ensure that Legionella is controlled at department/directorate
level. During November and December 2009 two full days of training were conducted to
cover Legionella awareness and to ensure the new controls were implemented



evacuation chairs have been purchased and are now in place on the necessary
stairwells. Evacuation training has taken place and we now have trained personnel in
most of the directorates, with further training planned for 2010



fire warden training has also taken place across most of the directorates with table top
evacuation plans been carried out for some departments
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all work on baths and showers has now been completed. Work is continuing on hand
basins and this is now almost complete



The annual health and safety audit has taken place following the above strategies being
implemented. The audit has shown a vast improvement in the overall standard of health
and safety management throughout the Trust. A separate report is available that show
the extent of the improvement.

The priorities the Trust will be addressing over the next 12 months are:




Transport risk assessment/transport policy
medical gases
slips, trips and falls.

Counter fraud and corruption
The Foundation Trust's counter fraud arrangements are in compliance with the Secretary of
State's directions on countering fraud and the requirements specified in the NHS Counter
Fraud and Corruption Policy. These arrangements are underpinned by the appointment of
accredited local counter fraud specialists and the introduction of a Trust-wide countering fraud
and corruption policy. An annual plan identifying the actions to be undertaken to create an antifraud culture, deter, prevent, detect and, where not prevented, investigate suspicions of fraud
is produced and approved by the Trust's Audit Committee.

Page 111 of 164

REMUNERATION REPORT
The Remuneration Committee
There are two Remuneration Committees. One is made up of a group of governors to
determine the appropriate remuneration for non-executive directors, including the Chairman.
The second has delegated authority from the Board of Directors to make decisions in respect
of salary and conditions of service for the executive directors, and is made up of the nonexecutive directors of the Trust.
During the financial year 2009/10 the Committee met on two occasions (May and November).
The Remuneration Committee was attended by the non-executive directors, the Chief
Executive and the Director of HR for the May meeting and all the non-executive directors and
the Chief Executive for the November meeting. The Chief Executive and the Director of HR
attended to provide professional advice and information and were not part of the decision
making process.
Remuneration of the Chairman and non-executive directors
During 2009/10 the remuneration of the Chairman and the non-executive directors was
considered by the full Council of Governors. The governors agreed a process where the
Chairman and non-executive directors would receive an increase in line with Agenda for
Change and a benchmarking exercise being undertaken every three years.
Remuneration of the Chief Executive and executive directors
The membership of the Remuneration Committee for the remuneration of the Chief
Executive and other executive directors is the non-executive director cohort including the
Chairman.
Remuneration policy
With the exception of the Chief Executive, executive directors and medical staff, all
employees of the Trust, including senior managers, are remunerated in accordance with the
national NHS pay structure, Agenda for Change. It is the Trust’s policy that this will continue
to be the case for the foreseeable future. The remuneration of the Chief Executive and five
other executive directors is determined by the Board of Directors’ Remuneration Committee.
The Chief Executive and the three whole-time executive directors (Director of Finance, Chief
Nurse, and Deputy Chief Executive) are paid a flat rate salary within the range determined by
the Remuneration Committee. The part-time Executive Directors (Medical Director and
Director of HR) are paid a flat rate within the range determined by the Remuneration
Committee, for the Medical Director this is separate from his salary as a medical practitioner.
In reviewing remuneration, the Committee has regard for the Trust’s overall performance, the
delivery of the agreed corporate objectives for the year, the pattern of executive remuneration
among Foundation Trusts and the wider NHS, and the individual director’s level of experience
and development in the role.
There is no performance-related element, but the performance of the executive directors is
assessed at regular intervals and unsatisfactory performance may provide ground for
termination of contract. The executive directors do not have fixed term contracts and the
non-executive directors all have service contracts that are a maximum length of three years.
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Details of terms of office of the non-executive directors are included on page 39.
Salaries and pension entitlements of senior managers
a) Salaries
2009/10
Name and title

2008/9

Director
salary

Remunerati
on for other
duties

Benefits in
kind

Director
salary

Remunerati
on for other
duties

Benef
its in
kind

(bands of
£5000)

(bands of
£5000)

£000

(band of
£5000)

(band of
£5000)

£000

Executive directors
Mr P Crowley
Chief Executive

160-165

4.0

150-155

-

4.0

Mr A Bertram
Director of Finance

100-105

3.6

15-20

-

0.9

Mr M Proctor
Deputy Chief Executive

115-120

5.0

105-110

-

5.0

Mrs A Hughes
Director of Strategy and
Facilities (until October
2009)

70-75

5.1

95-100

-

5.4

Ms E McManus
Chief Nurse

95-100

2.4

20-25

70-75

1.9

Dr I Woods
Medical Director (until 22
February 2010)

120-125

65-70

1.4

135-140

55-60

1.9

Dr A Turnbull
Medical Director (from 23
February 2010)

10-15

175-180

-

-

-

-

Ms P Hayward
Director of HR (from
October 2009)

35-40

35-40

-

-

-

-

Mr R Chapman
Acting Director of Finance

-

-

-

81-85

5-10

-

20-25

(until January 09)

Page 113 of 164

Non-executive directors
2009/10
Name and title

Director
salary

2008/09
Benefits in
kind

Director
salary

(bands of
£5000)

Remuneratio
n for other
duties
(bands of
£5000)

(band of
£5000)

Remuneratio
n for other
duties
(band of
£5000)

Benef
its in
kind
£000

£000

Professor A Maynard
Chairman

40-45

-

-

40-45

-

-

Professor J Hutton
Non-executive Director
and Vice Chairman

10-15

-

-

10-15

-

-

Mr P Ashton
Non-executive Director

10-15

-

-

5-10

-

-

Mrs G Fleming
Non-executive Director

10-15

-

-

10-15

-

-

Mrs L Palazzo
Non-executive Director

10-15

-

-

10-15

-

-

Mr A Rose
Non-executive Director

10-15

-

-

10-15

-

-

Ms L Raper
Non-executive Director

5-10

-

-

-

-

-

Mr M Sweet
Non-executive Director

0-5

-

-

-

-

-

Mrs C Mallett
Non-executive Director

-

-

-

5-10

-

-

Libby Raper was appointed as a Non-executive Director from August 2009
Gillian Fleming resigned as Non-executive Director in January 2010
Alison Hughes resigned as Director of Strategy and Facilities from October 2009
Michael Sweet was appointed as a Non-executive Director from February 2010
Alan Maynard retired as Chairman on 31 March 2010
Alan Rose was appointed as Chairman from 1 April 2010 by the Council of Governors at
their meeting held on 16 December 2009
Peta Hayward was appointed an Executive Director from October 2009
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Benefits in kind shown in 2009/10 relate to provision of a lease car and other travel
expenses.
b) Pensions

Name
Mr P Crowley, Chief
Executive
Mr A Bertram, Director of
Finance
Mr M Proctor, Deputy
Chief Executive
Mrs A Hughes, Director
of Strategy and Facilities
Ms E McManus, Chief
Nurse
Dr I Woods, Medical
Director
Dr A Turnbull, Medical
Director
Ms P Hayward, Director
of HR

Real increase in
pension and
lump sum at age
60

Total accrued
pension and
lump sum at age
60 at 31 March
2010

Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value
at31 March 2009

Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value
at 31 March
2010

Bands of £2500

Bands of £5000

£000

£000

7.5-10.0

Real
Increase
in Cash
Equivale
nt
Transfer
Value
£000

155-160

694

810

81

95-100

222

336

103

2.5-5.0

185-190

890

1004

70

0.0-2.5

120-125

470

521

20

5.0-7.5

105-110

354

414

43

(2.5)-(5.0)

180-185

900

953

7

0.0-2.5

180-185

788

940

11

2.5-5.0

70-75

213

246

22

25.0-27.5

As non-executive directors do not receive pensionable remuneration, there are no entries in
respect of pensions for non-executive directors
A cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits
valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable
from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme, or arrangement to
secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member
leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a
senior capacity to which the disclosure applies. The CETV figures, and the other pension
details, include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement, which
the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional
pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of
pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines
and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
Real increase in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It
takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the
employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

Page 115 of 164

Patrick Crowley
Chief Executive
4 June 2010
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STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
1

Scope of responsibility

1.1

The Board is accountable for internal control. As Accounting Officer, and Chief
Executive of this Board, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of
internal control that supports the achievement of the organisation’s policies, aims and
objectives. I also have responsibility for safeguarding the public funds and the
organisation’s assets for which I am personally responsible as set out in the
Accounting Officer Memorandum.

1.2

There are arrangements in place for sharing views and working with other
organisations. Those operating at Chief Executive level are as follows:












Yorkshire & Humberside Chief Executive Forum
Health Scrutiny Committees
North Yorkshire Chief Executive Forum
North Yorkshire Community Review
Yorkshire Cancer Network
National Programme for Information Technology (NPfIT) Information
Management &Technology (IM&T) Programme Board
HYMS North Yorkshire Local Steering Group
Healthy City Board
Foundation Trust Network (FTN) Chairs and Chief Executives meeting
York St John University and York College
System Management Executive

There are similar arrangements in place for working with partner organisations that
operate at director level for finance, HR, business and service planning, clinical
alliance, clinical governance and risk management.
1.3

Risk Management
The Board of Directors is responsible for the management of key risks; these are
managed through: Local directorate risk registers
 A corporate risk register
 An Assurance Framework

The Chief Executive holds ultimate responsibility for Risk in the Trust. He
devolves responsibility for risk to the Corporate Directors. Each Corporate
Director holds responsibility for Risk in their area. The Corporate Directors
consist of the Executive Directors and the Associate Directors.
The Corporate Risk Register and Assurance Framework are considered by the Risk
and Assurance Committee (RAC). The RAC is an executive committee chaired by the
Chief Executive, and membership of the committee includes the Executive Directors
and attendance from the Chairman. The Assurance Framework and corresponding
Corporate Risk Register are forwarded to the Audit Committee for consideration. The
Audit Committee, a sub- committee of the Board of Directors undertakes a detailed
Page 117 of 164

review of the Corporate Risk Register and Assurance Framework and makes
appropriate recommendations to Board. The Audit Committee is chaired by a Nonexecutive Director and membership includes four Non-executive Directors, Executive
Directors attend the meeting as required by the Audit Committee.
The Board of Directors addresses the risks reported in the quarterly self-assessment
document for submission to Monitor. This arrangement ensures the Board of Directors
understands the strategic risks to the Trust in the context of the Trust’s strategic
direction.
The Trust has finalised its review of the committee structures and governance
arrangements in the organisation to ensure that more appropriate structures and valid
and relevant assurance is received by the Board on a regular basis.
1.4

At the beginning of the year the Board was supported by three committees (each
chaired by a Non-Executive Director). During the year the Board reviewed the
governance arrangements and disbanded the Governance Committee. It was
replaced by two working groups reporting to the Board through the Audit Committee
and an Executive Committee. The two working groups address issues of compliance
and data quality.
The Efficiency Committee, an Executive Committee, is managed by the Chief
Executive and was introduced to ensure there was careful management of the
efficiency agenda. The membership of the committee includes all the Corporate
Directors. The Board changed its format to include a strategy session at every Board
meeting.
The Corporate Team includes the Executive Directors and four Associate Directors
with responsibility operational activity, estates and facilities, IT and corporate learning
and development.
The notes of the compliance group and data quality group are considered by the Audit
Committee and each group is chaired by a member of the Audit Committee.
Audit Committee



Consideration of financial risk management.
Soundness of overall system of internal control.

Compliance Work Group


Review the schedule of compliance including external requirements and
declarations, internal policies and internal monitoring of compliance

Data Quality and Performance Work Group


Consider and review integrity and quality of data systems including information
governance

Governance Committee – this committee was disbanded in July 2009



Consideration of risks and governance.
Providing assurance to the Board about the key risks.
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Remuneration Committee


Review of the Executive Directors’ Remuneration package.

Efficiency Committee
This committee replaced the Resource Management Committee and is led by the
Chief Executive.
The committee provides assurance to the Executive Board that the delivery of the
corporate efficiency programme is supported by due process.
The committee:





supports the development of the annual cost improvement plan
generates, develops and reviews efficiency initiatives both corporately and in
specific areas
monitors progress against plan
champions and challenges key corporate efficiency projects

Risk and Assurance Committee
The Risk and Assurance Committee is chaired by the Chief Executive and includes
membership from the Executive Directors and attendance from the Chairman.
The Risk and Assurance Committee has responsibility to ensure through its review
and redesign of management systems and processes that all key and significant risks
have been identified and addressed by the risk management processes and
mechanisms as detailed in the Risk Management Policy.
The Risk and Assurance Committee ensures that the Executive Board are informed of
any key or significant risks which impacts on the organisation.
The Risk and Assurance Committee has a number of sub committees that are
required to report to the Risk and Assurance Committee on an adhoc basis for any
significant and emerging risks and at least once a year with an annual report.
The minutes of the Risk and Assurance Committee are presented to the Executive
Board and Audit Committee.
2

The purpose of the system of Internal Control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather
than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to:


Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and
objectives. of York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.



Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The system of internal control has been in place in York Hospitals NHS Foundation
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Trust for the year ended 31 March 2010 and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and accounts.
3

Capacity to handle risk
The Chief Executive has overall responsibility for the management of risk. Other
members of the Corporate Director Team exercise lead responsibility for the specific
types of risk as follows:
 Clinical risk
Medical Director/ Chief Nurse
 Financial risk
Director of Finance
 Workforce risk
Director of HR
 Non-Clinical and organisational risk
Chief Nurse
 Environmental risk
Associate Director of Estates and
Facilities
 Corporate learning and development
Associate Director of Corporate
Development
 Operational risk
Associate Director of Operations
 IT risk
Associate Director of IT
 Strategic risk
Deputy Chief Executive
Executive Directors ensure that appropriate arrangements and systems are in place to
achieve:


Identification and assessment of risks and hazards;



Compliance with internal polices and procedures, and statutory and external
requirements;



Integration of functional risk management systems and development of the
assurance framework.

These responsibilities are managed operationally by managers supporting the
Executive Directors.
The Trust has a Risk Management policy and procedure document, which is reviewed
annually and endorsed by the Board. The policy is regularly reviewed during the year
to ensure that it is fully embedded into the day-to-day management of the organisation
and conforms to best management standards within the organisation. It also sets out
the Trust’s approach to the identification, assessment, scoring, treatment and
monitoring of risk.
Staff are equipped to manage risk at strategic and operational levels. Programmes
include:


Formal in-house training for staff as a whole in dealing with specific everyday
risks, e.g. fire safety, health and safety, moving and handling, infection control,
security.



Training and induction in incident investigation, including documentation, root
cause analysis, serious untoward incidents and steps to prevent or minimise
recurrence and reporting requirements.



Developing shared understanding of broader financial, non-clinical,
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4

The risk and control framework
The Risk Management Policy and Procedure document:
 Defines the objectives of risk management and the process and structure by
which it is undertaken;
 Sets out the lead responsibilities and the organisational arrangements as to
how these are discharged;
 Sets out the key policies, procedures and protocols governing risk
management;
 Identifies the link between directorate and corporate risk management.
The risk evaluation and treatment model is based on a grading matrix of severity and
probability. This produces a risk score to enable the risk to be prioritised against other
risks. The score, in turn, is linked to a matrix of the cost and responsibility of risk
treatment so that either the risk is addressed locally by the directorate within its
resources or it feeds into the Corporate Risk Register.
The Board of Directors, through the Audit Committee reviews the Assurance
Framework, which monitors the most serious risks facing the Trust in the achievement
of its principal objectives and the sources of assurance currently available, both
internal and external; the classification of principal risk which identifies the lead
responsibilities within the Trust; how the risks are being mitigated; or any gaps in
sources of assurance and the actions and timescales for addressing gaps.
During 2009/10 the Audit Committee and Board of Directors has received reports from
various sources containing assurances including a monthly finance report, quality and
safety dashboard and quarterly report, monthly performance report and internal audit
reports.
The Risk and Assurance Committee is supported by nine operational committees as
follows:
 SUI committee Chaired by the Medical Director
 Information Governance and Records Committee chaired by the Deputy
Director of performance
 Quality and Safety Board chaired by the Chief Nurse
 Risk Register Committee chaired by Head of Risk and Legal Services
 Health and Safety chaired by the Deputy Chief Executive
 Non Clinical Assurance Committee chaired by the Finance Director
 Clinical Assurance Committee chaired by the Medical Director
 York and Selby Research Committee chaired by a lay chairman
 Hospital Infection Control Committee chaired by the Chief Nurse
Each committee reports issues of exception that require further debate and
consideration by the Executive Directors and Chairman of the Trust.
The Trust has a fully updated Corporate Risk Register.
Risks are identified by the Directorates and recorded in their risk registers. Risks are
also identified as a result of an Adverse Incident Report (AIRs) or incident forms and
are entered onto the DATIX database along with the directorate risk registers. The
Directorates review their risks using a trained risk reviewer linked to the area and the
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central support team with the Risk Register Committee and the directorate Clinical
Governance Committee are now reviewing the registers on a regular basis.
The Corporate Team consider the draft Corporate Risk Register and the high level
issues that require consideration for escalation to the Corporate Risk Register. The
Corporate Directorates review and agree the Corporate Risk Register prior to
presentation at the Risk and Assurance Committee.
All staff have a responsibility to identify risk and report it to their line manager. The
managers with responsibility for risk management:



Ensure the effective identification and treatment of risks in relation to NHSLA
standards and
Develop whole system solutions to risks that that have the greatest potential to
prevent disruption of patient care.


A number of forums exist that allow communication with stakeholders, the forums
provide a mechanism for risk identified by stakeholders that affects the Trust to be
discussed and where appropriate action plans can be developed to resolve any
issues.
Examples of the forums and methods of communication with stakeholder are as
follows:
Council of Governors
The Council of Governors has a formal role as a stakeholder body for the wider
community in the governance of the Trust.


Staff





Regular newsletter
Minutes of the Council of Governors
Raising concern policy
Regular newsletter
Staff meetings and team briefings
Staff surveys

Public and service users
 Patient surveys
 PALs service
 Patient forum
 Meetings with the Friends of York Hospitals and self-help groups
 LinKs
Other organisation
 Other health and social care communities
 Clinical and professional network groups in North Yorkshire
Changes to the Board during the year
There were a number of Changes to the Non-executive Director cohort including the
appointment of Ms L Raper and Mr M Sweet following the resignation of Mrs G
Fleming and Mr J Longworth. Professor Alan Maynard Chairman of the Trust
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announced his retirement from 31 March 2010. Mr Alan Rose was appointed by the
Council of Governors on 16 December 2009 as Chairman of the Trust from 1 April
2010. Mr Alan Rose is a current Non-executive Director, a replacement Non-executive
Director will be appointed in the new financial year. Mrs A Hughes resigned as a
Director and executive member of the Board of Directors of the Trust in October 2009.
Ms P Hayward was appointed as an executive member of the Board of Directors from
October 2009.
Compliance with equality, diversity and human rights legislation
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under
equality, diversity and human rights legislation are complied with. The Trust has
included in the Management of Policies policy a detailed requirement to undertake
equality impact assessments as part of the formulation of any new or updated policy.
The Trust takes into account equality issues during the development of any service or
change to service. The Trust has not routinely published equality impact assessments
but will put in place procedures to ensure publication does occur.
Compliance with NHS pension scheme regulations
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension scheme, control
measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary,
employer’s contributions and payments in to the Scheme are in accordance with the
Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in
accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.
Climate change and adaptation requirements under the Climate Change Act 2008
The Foundation Trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction
Delivery Plans are in place in accordance with emergency preparedness and civil
contingency requirements, as based on UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure that
this organisation’s obligations under the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation
Reporting requirements are complied with.
Disclosure on standards for better health core standards declaration
The Trust is fully compliant with the core standards for better health.
Information governance assurance programme
The Trust has a strong information governance (IG) focus, and has consistently
performed well against the Information Governance Toolkit standards. Patient data
confidentiality remains a high priority, with regular internal audit reviews and an annual
report to the Board of Directors on these issues by the Caldicott Guardian.
The Chief Executive has overall responsibility for all aspects of information
management, including security and governance, and is accountable to the Board of
Directors.
The Medical Director is the Trust’s Caldicott Guardian.
The Deputy Director of Corporate Performance and Compliance has acts as the
Trust’s Data Protection Officer. The Associate Director for Systems and Network has
operational responsibility for information management.
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Information Governance risks are managed in accordance with Trust risk
management standards, and, where appropriate, recorded on directorate risk
registers.
All staff are governed by a code of confidentiality, and access to data held on IT
systems is restricted to authorised users. Information governance training is
incorporated as appropriate in all IT training sessions, and the corporate induction
process has a dedicated IG session.
No information security breaches occurred during the year which was of a scale or
severity to require a report to the Information Commissioner. However, there were two
incidents in which personal information relating to trust patient was, or could have
been, unintentionally disclosed. The incidents were declared in accordance with
Department of Health guidance.
The Trust complies and has attained level 2 or greater, with the majority of all the
requirements of the current NHS Connecting for Health Statement of Compliance.
Where this has not been attained plans are in place to ensure improvements are
made
In accordance with the Information Governance Assurance Programme, the Trust
completed actions required by the Department of Health by 31 March 2009
The Finance Director is the Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) for the Trust. The
SIRO takes ownership of the Trust’s information risk policy, acts as advocate for
information risk on the Board, and provides written advice to the Accounting Officer on
the content of our Statement of Internal Control in regard to information risk.
5

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources
During the year the Board of Director has received regular reports informing of the
economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources. The reports provide
detail on the financial and clinical performance of the Trust during the previous period
and highlight any areas where there are concerns.
The Efficiency Committee, an Executive Committee, is managed by the Chief
Executive and was introduced to ensure there was careful management of the
efficiency agenda. The membership of the committee includes all the Corporate
Directors.
Internal Audit have reviewed the systems and processes in place during the year and
published reports detailing the required actions within specific areas to ensure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources is maintained, the
outcome of these reports are graded according to the level of remaining risks within
the area.
The Board of Directors has also received assurances on the use of resources from
agencies outside the trust including Monitor. Monitor requires the Board of Directors to
self assess on a quarterly basis. Monitor scores the assessment on a traffic light
system.
The Trust further obtains assurance of its systems and processes and tests its
benchmarking by membership of the Foundation Trust network where other
Foundation Trusts share good practice.
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6

Annual Quality Accounts
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service
(Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial
year. Monitor has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and
content of annual Quality Reports which incorporate the above legal requirements in
the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.
We have appointed the Medical Director and the Chief Nurse to jointly lead and advise
the Board on all matters relating to the preparation of the trust’s annual Quality
Accounts.
To ensure that the Trust’s Quality Accounts present a properly balanced picture of its
performance over the year we have put in place a non-executive director lead.
The Board has reviewed the draft versions of the annual Quality Account and has
considered on going compliance with the priorities identified in the Quality and Safety
dashboard and quarterly report presented during the year.
The Chief Nurse has presented the proposed priorities to the Council of Governors
and formed a small working group of Governors to work with the Chief Nurse and
Medical Director in finalising the development of the annual Quality Account.
The Quality and Safety strategy identifies the organisational priorities. Implementation
of the strategy is managed through a robust and embedded performance
management framework, with a monthly dashboard and a fuller quarterly report being
presented to the Board of Directors and the Council of Governors.
The Trust has invested in teams of staff to undergo additional training in support of the
implementation of the strategy, specifically Global Trigger Tool and rapid improvement
methodologies.

7

Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control is informed by the work of internal auditors and the executive managers within
the NHS foundation trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework, and comments made by the external
auditors in their management letter and other reports. I have been advised on the
implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control by the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Risk and Assurance Committee,
and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system
is in place.
The Quality Account is a product of the Trust’s implementation of the Quality and
Safety Strategy. The Quality and Safety Strategy is evidenced by the presentation at
the Board of Directors of the monthly Quality and Safety dashboard and a quarterly
report. The Board of Directors uses these reports as part of their assurance about the
systems and processes that have been implemented as a result of the introduction of
the Quality and Safety Strategy.
The level of Assurance has been enhanced during the year through continued
development and refining of the data.
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My opinion is also informed by:
 Maintained accreditation of the trust granted in June 2008 for NHSLA at level one
for general standards;
 Maintained accreditation granted in March 2010 at level one of the CNST maternity
standards;
 Achieving Practice Plus accreditation for Improving Working Lives
 Healthcare commission performance rating (October 2009);
 External Audit interim report;
 Head of internal audit opinion;
 Unconditional licence received from Care Quality Commission
 Confirmation that the Trust has declared full compliance with the Healthcare
Commission standards for better health declaration for 2008/09
 Confirmation by Monitor, through quarterly monitoring, that the Trust is compliant
with Monitor’s regime.
 Overall the SHA is confident that students\trainees receive teaching training in a
supportive environment.
The Trust's statement of comprehensive income for the year end shows a deficit of
£5.5m, with two significant issues worthy of note. The first and most significant issue
impacting the Trust's position has been a PCT impaired debtor of £4m. Essentially the
PCT have recognised the value of the work done beyond the agreed contract levels
and under normal contract rules the PCT would be liable to pay the extra cost, but this
year this has been unaffordable. The Trust has recognised this inability to pay in its
accounts.
The other element of the deficit is a further impairment adjustment relating to fixed
assets. This is a charge of £1.4m reflecting reducing estate values. Recognising these
two exceptional impairment adjustments, the underlying financial performance of the
Trust is one of income and expenditure balance.
Contracts with commissioners for 2010/11 have been agreed. In addition the trust is
working with NHS NYY, NHS Yorks & Humber and other local trusts as a System
Management Executive. The objective of the work being to ensure the financial
viability of the North Yorkshire health community going forward and particularly to
agree transparent and equitable financial risk management arrangements to deal with
contract variations.
The Board of Directors obtain assurance through the implementation of the Quality
and Safety Strategy. The strategy requires the Trust to provide regular information to
the Board of Directors and the Council of Governors on the achievements of the key
priorities identified in the Quality Account. The Trust has introduced a monthly
dashboard identifying the maintained effectiveness of the systems and areas for
improvement. The dashboard includes a number of local and national target measures
that the Trust benchmarks against. The performance report also provides additional
assurance on the achievements of the Trust during the year. The quarterly report
provides an overview of the achievements and challenges identified in the period.
The Audit Committee review the Assurance Framework and Corporate Risk Register
and Internal Audit reports. They identify and escalate any concerns around assurance
to the Board of Directors at Board meetings during discussions about the Quality and
Safety report, Performance report or Finance report.
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The Trust has received approval from the SHA about the delivery of our Learning and
Development agreement, and following a review by the MHRA in 2009 the Trust’s
governance arrangements around research practice conducted in the organisation
were verified. The Trust has also hosted a number of Deanery quality monitoring
meetings which reinforced the current processes supporting doctors in training and
has demonstrated that they are robust and responsive to needs.
Internal Audit is an independent service who has a risk based plan agreed with the
Audit Committee for the year. The plan includes areas where controls within the
systems and process maybe improved or enhanced. Internal Audit presents their
findings to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors through the Audit
Committee minutes on a quarterly basis (as a minimum). The Head of Internal Audit
Opinion is written as a summary of the findings of all the Audits held.
From the Audit reports presented to the Trust during the year there were three main
areas of concern:





SUI processes – The Trust has undertaken a significant amount of work to
address the issues identified in the report and has worked closely with NHS
North Yorkshire & York (NHS NYY) to resolve any communication issues. The
Care Quality Commission has been included in the discussion and has
confirmed that they are at present satisfactory with the arrangements put in
place by the Trust.
Consent – This remains an issue for the Trust, detailed work is being
undertaken to ensure that the administration of consent is satisfactory managed
across the organisation.
Patient ID. The Trust has recognised the issue and has been working to design
and implement a more robust system. Currently the system has been
developed to implementation stage and the logistics around the implementation
are being completed. The system will be rolled out across the Trust over the
next few months.

I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control by the committees identified at 1.4 above, by the
Board’s monitoring of corporate and directorate performance, by the publication of
audit reports in line with their work programme by internal audit during the year, and
by the evidence of the assessment of the Trust and the capacity and capability of the
Board by Monitor in relation to its financial management, governance arrangements
and risk management systems, the Board’s self-certification to Monitor.
8

Conclusion
I am satisfied that no significant internal control issues have been identified.

Patrick Crowley – Chief Executive
4 June 2010
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Statement of the Chief Executive’s responsibilities as the accounting officer of York
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
The National Health Service Act 2006 states that the Chief Executive is the accounting officer of
the NHS foundation trust. The relevant responsibilities of accounting officer, including their
responsibility for the propriety and regularity of public finances for which they are answerable, and
for the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the accounting officers’ Memorandum issued by
the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts (“Monitor”).
Under the National Health Service Act 2006, Monitor has directed the York Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the
basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and
must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and of
its income and expenditure, total recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the financial
year.
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the requirements of
the NHS foundation trust Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to:





Observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;
Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS foundation trust
Annual Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any material
departures in the financial statements; and
Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The accounting officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS foundation trust and to enable
him/her to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned
Act. The Accounting officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the NHS foundation
trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in
Monitor’s NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum
Signed:

Date: 4 June 2010

Chief Executive

Page 130 of 164

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS OF YORK
HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST
We have audited the accounts of York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust for the year ending 31
March 2010. These comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity, Statement of Cashflows and the related
notes. These accounts have been prepared in accordance with directions issued by Monitor
through the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2009-10.
This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, as
a body, in accordance with paragraph 24(5) of Schedule 7 of the National Health Service Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Council of Governors
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Trust and the Trust’s governors as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of the Accounting Officer and auditor
The Accounting Officer's responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the accounts are set
out in the Statement of the Chief Executive's responsibilities as the accounting officer of York
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.
The Accounting Officer is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and
financial information on the Trust's website.
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of the accounts
and other information included in annual reports may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
Our responsibility is to audit the accounts in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements, the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts issued by Monitor and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
We report to you our opinion as to whether the accounts give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared in accordance with paragraph 25(2) of Schedule 7 of the National Health Service Act
2006, and in accordance with the accounting policies directed by Monitor as being relevant to NHS
Foundation Trusts. We also report whether the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the accounting policies directed by Monitor as being
relevant to NHS Foundation Trusts. We also report to you whether in our opinion the information
given in the Directors' report is consistent with the accounts.
We review the Accounting Officer's Statement on Internal Control. We report if the statement is
misleading or inconsistent with other information we are aware of from our audit of the accounts.
We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether the Accounting Officer's
Statement on Internal Control covers all risks and controls. We are also not required to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control
procedures. Our review was not performed for any purpose connected with any specific
transaction and should not be relied upon for any such purpose.
We read other information contained in the Annual Report, and consider whether it is consistent
with the audited accounts. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the accounts. Our responsibilities do not
extend to any other information.
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Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with paragraph 1 of Schedule 10 of the National Health
Service Act 2006 and the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts issued by Monitor, which
requires compliance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Accounting
Officer in the preparation of the accounts, and whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Trust’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
that:
 the accounts are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error; and
 the accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly
prepared.
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the accounts.
Opinion
In our opinion:




the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of York Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust as at 31 March 2010 and of its income and expenditure for the year
ended;
the accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with paragraph 25 of Section 7 of the National Health Service Act
2006 and the NHS Foundation Annual Reporting Manual 2009-10 issued by Monitor; and
the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the accounts.

Conclusion on arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use
of resources
Trust’s Responsibilities
The Trust is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources.
Auditor’s Responsibilities
We are required under Schedule 10 1(d) of the National Health Service Act 2006 to be satisfied
that proper arrangements have been made by the Trust for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. The Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts issued by
Monitor, the Independent Regulator for Foundation Trusts, requires us to report to you our
conclusion in relation to proper arrangements. We report if significant matters have come to our
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attention which prevent us from concluding that the Trust has made such proper arrangements.
We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are
operating effectively.
Conclusion
We have undertaken our audit in accordance with the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts and
we are satisfied that in all significant respects, York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has made
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for
the year ended 31 March 2010.
Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with requirements of
paragraph 4 of Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Audit Code for NHS
Foundation Trusts issued by Monitor.

Signature: ………………………………………..
Sarah Howard, Senior Statutory Auditor
For and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
No 1 Whitehall Riverside
Whitehall Road
Leeds
LS1 4BN
Date: 4 June 2010
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FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS
YORK HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST
These accounts for the year ended 31 March 2010 have been prepared by York Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust under paragraphs 24 and 25 of schedule 7 of the Health and Social
Care (Community Health and Standards) Act 2006 in the form which Monitor has, with the
approval of the Treasury, directed.
York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report and Accounts are presented to
Parliament pursuant to Schedule 8, paragraph 11(3) of the Health and Social Care
(Community Health and Standards) Act 2006.

Signed

Patrick Crowley – Chief Executive

Page 134 of 164

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2010
2008/09
Notes
2009/10
£000
£000
Operating income
Operating expenses
Operating Surplus Before Impairments
Impairment of receivable with PCT *
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment **
Operating (Deficit)/Surplus After Impairments
Finance Costs
Finance Income
Finance expense – financial liabilities
Finance expense – unwinding of discount
PDC Dividends Payable
Net Finance Costs

2
3

235,567
(232,310)
3,257
(4,000)
(1,414)
(2,157)

220,058
(214,117)
5,941
0
(3,466)
2,475

5
6.1

53
(16)
(17)
(3,416)
(3,396)

501
0
(18)
(4,224)
(3,741)

(5,553)

(1,266)

DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income and expense
Revaluation losses and impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment
Increase in the donated asset reserve due to
receipt of donated assets
Reduction in the donated asset reserve in respect
of depreciation of donated assets
Total Comprehensive Expense for the Year
The notes on pages 10 to 37 form part of these accounts.

(9,401)

(31,013)

276

169

(105)

(106)

(14,783)

(32,216)

All income and expenditure is derived from continuing operations.
* Included in "Operating income" for 2009/10 is the Trust's contract baseline of £176.6m with
North Yorkshire and York PCT (NY&Y PCT) and £6.2m additional income relating to activity
undertaken for NY&Y PCT over and above the baseline, under payment by results. However,
following discussions with NHS Yorkshire and the Humber (SHA) and NY&Y PCT, the Trust has
agreed to waive the payment of £4m of the additional income. The waiving of this income in
excess of the agreed contract has been disclosed as an impairment as "impairment of receivable
with PCT“. Waiving the receivable from NY&Y PCT, has resulted in the Trust incurring a deficit
for the financial year of £4m, before asset impairment costs.
** The Trust has revalued its fixed assets at the end of the year, to reflect the significant in year
reduction in building costs. This has resulted in a reduction of £10.8m in the value of the Trust’s
assets. The fall in value is mainly charged against revaluation reserve, but £1.4m is included in
exceptional costs above.
The impairment loss of £3.4m in 2008/9 was mainly due to an exceptional technical adjustment
associated with the decommissioning of property on the hospital site
The underlying performance for the current year, excluding exceptional costs, generated a net
deficit of £0.1m compared to a planned surplus of £1.3m.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 MARCH 2010
Notes

31 March
2010
£000

31 March
2009
£000

1 April
2008
£000

Non- current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Total non- current assets

8
9.1
11

787
97,350
860
98,997

359
105,325
712
106,396

449
135,872
490
136,811

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

10
11
18

3,352
9,708
4,565
17,625

3,137
15,120
4,681
22,938

3,229
10,083
22,143
35,455

12
16

(15,135)
(70)
(3,043)
0
(18,248)

(14,591)
(163)
(2,910)
(371)
(18,035)

(24,180)
(355)
(2,717)
(1,409)
(28,661)

98,374

111,299

143,605

(55)
(1,755)
(757)
(2,567)

(150)
0
(1,041)
(1,191)

(215)
0
(1,066)
(1,281)

Total Assets Employed

95,807

110,108

142,324

Financed by (Taxpayers equity)
Public Dividend Capital
Revaluation Reserve
Donated Asset Reserve
Income and expenditure reserve
Total Taxpayers equity

65,293
18,875
771
10,868
95,807

64,811
28,624
600
16,073
110,108

64,811
59,637
537
17,339
142,324

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Tax payable
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities

13

Total Assets less Current liabilities
Non current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non current liabilities

12
14
16

17

The financial statements on pages 6 to 37 were approved by the Trust Board on 4 June 2010
and signed on its behalf by:
Signed:

(Chief Executive)
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Date:4 June 2010

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

Total
£000

Public
Dividend Revaluation
Capital
Reserve

Donated
Assets
Reserve

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve

£000

£000

£000

£000

142,324

64,811

59,637

537

17,339

(1,266)

0

0

0

(1,266)

(31,013)

0

(31,013)

0

0

169

0

0

169

0

(106)

0

0

(106)

0

110,108

64,811

28,624

600

16,073

(5,553)

0

0

0

(5,553)

(9,401)

0

(9,401)

0

0

276

0

0

276

0

(105)

0

0

(105)

0

0

0

(348)

0

348

Public Dividend Capital received

482

482

0

0

0

Taxpayers’ equity at 31 March
2010

95,807

65,293

18,875

771

10,868

Taxpayers’ equity at 1 April 2008
Deficit for the year
Revaluation gains and losses and
impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment
Increase in the donated asset
reserve due to receipt of donated
assets
Reduction in the donated asset
reserve in respect of depreciation of
donated assets
Taxpayers’ equity at 1 April 2009
Deficit for the year
Revaluation gains and losses and
impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment
Increase in the donated asset
reserve due to receipt of donated
assets
Reduction in the donated asset
reserve in respect of depreciation of
donated assets
Other transfers between reserves
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2010
2009/10
£000
Cash flows from operating activities

2008/09
£000

(2,157)

2,475

5,701
1,414
(105)
5,546
(215)
330
(371)
(377)
133
(17)

6,103
3,466
(106)
(5,260)
92
(10,297)
(1,038)
(217)
193
19

9,882

(4,570)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

53
(395)
(8,184)
7
(8,519)

501
(94)
(9,087)
12
(8,668)

Cash flows from financing activities
Public dividend capital received
Loans received
Interest paid
PDC Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activities

482
1,755
(16)
(3,700)
(1,479)

0
0
0
(4,224)
(4,224)

Decrease in cash or cash equivalents

(116)

(17,462)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

4,681

22,143

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

4,565

4,681

Operating (deficit)/surplus
Non Cash Income and Expense
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairments
Transfer from the donated asset reserve
Decrease/(increase) in Trade and other Receivables
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories
Increase/(decrease) in Trade and other Payables
Decrease in Other Liabilities
Decrease in Provisions
Increase in Tax payable
Other movements in operating cash flows
NET CASH GENERATED FROM /(USED IN)
OPERATIONS
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS Foundation Trusts shall meet
the accounting requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual
which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2009/10 NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual issued by Monitor - the Independent Regulator of Foundation
Trusts. The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International Financial
Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS
Foundation Trusts. The accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing
with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1

Joint operations
Joint operations are activities which are carried on with one or more other parties but
which are not performed through a separate entity. The NHS Foundation Trust includes
within its financial statements its share of the activities, assets and liabilities.

1.2

Income
Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that,
performance occurs and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.
The main source of income for the NHS Foundation Trust is contracts with
commissioners in respect of healthcare services.
Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in the following
financial year, that income is deferred.
Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material
conditions of sale have been met, and is measured as the sums due under the sale
contract.

1.3

Expenditure on employee benefits
Short term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in
which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement
earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the
financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry-forward leave
into the following period.

1.4

Expenditure on other goods and services
Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they
have been received, and is measured at the fair value of those goods and services.
Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where it results in the creation
of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment.
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1.5

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition
Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised where:
- it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
- it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided
to, the NHS Foundation Trust;
- it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
- the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and
- individually has a cost of at least £5,000; or
- collectively has a cost of at least £5,000 and individually has a cost of more than
£250, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly
simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates
and are under single managerial control; or
- form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit
irrespective of their individual or collective cost.
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with
significantly different asset lives e.g. plant and equipment, then these components are
treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.
Valuation
Land and buildings used for the NHS Foundation Trust’s services or for administrative
purposes are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at their revalued amounts,
being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from those that
would be determined at the Statement of Financial Position date. Fair values are
determined as follows:
- Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost based on modern equivalent
assets
- Land and non specialised buildings – existing use value
- Non-operational properties (including surplus land) – existing use value
Until 31 March 2008, the depreciated replacement cost of specialised buildings has
been estimated for an exact replacement of the asset in its present location. HM
Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations
based on modern equivalent assets and, where it would meet the location requirements
of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued. The NHS Foundation
Trust has applied this basis of valuation from 1st April 2009. A full revaluation was
carried out at 31 March 2010 to reflect the reduction in building values throughout the
year.
All land and buildings are restated to current value using professional valuations in
accordance with IAS 16 every five years. Valuations are carried out on a more frequent
basis where impairment indicators exist. Valuations are carried out by professionally
qualified valuers in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS)
Appraisal and Valuation Manual.
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Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are
carried at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees but not
borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23
for assets held at fair value. Assets are revalued and depreciation commences when
they are brought into use.
Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered
to be materially different from fair value.
Increases arising on revaluation are taken to the revaluation reserve except when it
reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, in which case it is credited to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income to the extent of the decrease previously charged there. A
revaluation decrease is charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a
balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Depreciation
Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful
economic lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service
delivery benefits. Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not
depreciated.
The standard economic lives of Property, Plant and Equipment assets are as follows:
- Buildings
- Engineering and fixed plant
- Medical equipment and engineering plant and equipment
- Transport
- Mainframe information technology installations
- Furniture and Fittings
- Office and information technology equipment
- Set up costs in new buildings

20 to 60 years
5 to 50 years
5 to 15 years
3 to 7 years
5 to 8 years
5 to 10 years
3 to 5 years
10 years

Property, Plant and Equipment which has been reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ ceases to
be depreciated upon the reclassification. Assets in the course of construction and
residual interests in off-Statement of Financial Position PFI contract assets are not
depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the trust, respectively.
De-recognition
Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ once all of the following
criteria are met:
- the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
which are usual and customary for such sales;
- the sale must be highly probable i.e.
 management are committed to a plan to sell the asset;
 an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale;
 the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price;
 the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of
classification as ‘Held for Sale’; and
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the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan
will be dropped or significant changes made.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing
carrying amount and their ‘fair value less costs to sell’. Depreciation ceases to be
charged and the assets are not revalued, except where the ‘fair value less costs to sell’
falls below the carrying amount. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale
contract conditions have been met.
Property, Plant and Equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify
for recognition as ‘Held for Sale’ and instead is retained as an operational asset and
the asset’s economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when scrapping or
demolition occurs.
Donated Property, Plant and Equipment
Donated Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalised at their current value on receipt
and this value is credited to the donated asset reserve. Donated fixed assets are
valued and depreciated as described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on
revaluations are also taken to the donated asset reserve and, each year, an amount
equal to the depreciation charge on the asset is released from the donated asset
reserve to the income and expenditure account. Similarly, any impairment on donated
assets charged to the income and expenditure account is matched by a transfer from
the donated asset reserve. On sale of donated assets, the net book value of the
donated asset is transferred from the donated asset reserve to the Income and
Expenditure Reserve.
1.6

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are
capable of being sold separately from the rest of the NHS Foundation Trust’s business
or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to,
the NHS Foundation Trust and where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
They are only capitalised when they have a cost of at least £5,000. Intangible assets
acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value.
The NHS Foundation Trust does not recognise any internally generated assets,
associated expenditure is charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred.
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at amortised replacement cost
as this is not considered to be materially different from fair value.
Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful economic lives in a manner
consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.

1.7

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of
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ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.
When the NHS Foundation Trust acts as a lessee, the following applies:- Amounts held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the
lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The asset is recorded as Property, Plant and Equipment, with a matching liability for
the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
- Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability and
subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
- Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
1.8

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. This is considered
to be a reasonable approximation to current cost due to the high turnover of stocks.
Partially completed contracts for patient services are not accounted for as inventories,
but rather as receivables.

1.9

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that
mature in three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
Cash and bank balances are recorded at the current values of these balances in the
NHS Foundation Trust’s cash book. These balances exclude monies held in the NHS
Foundation Trust’s bank account belonging to patients (see “third party assets” below).
Account balances are only set off where a formal agreement has been made with the
bank to do so. In all other cases overdrafts are disclosed within creditors. Interest
earned on bank accounts and interest charged on overdrafts is recorded as,
respectively, “interest receivable” and “interest payable” in the periods to which they
relate. Bank charges are recorded as operating expenditure in the periods to which
they relate.

1.10 Provisions
The NHS Foundation Trust provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of
uncertain timing or amount at the Statement of Financial Position date on the basis of
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation. Where the effect
of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are
discounted using HM Treasury’s discount rate of 2.2% in real terms.
1.11 Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are provided for where a transfer of economic benefits is probable.
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Otherwise, they are not recognised, but are disclosed in a note unless the probability of
a transfer of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are defined as:
- Possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s
control; or
- Present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a
transfer of economic benefits will arise or for which the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
1.12 Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the
NHS Foundation Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA which in return
settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to operating expenses.
Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the
legal liability remains with the NHS Foundation Trust. The total value of clinical
negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the NHS Foundation Trust is
disclosed at note16.
1.13 Non-clinical risk pooling
The NHS Foundation Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the
Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the
NHS Foundation Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and,
in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership
contributions, and any excesses’ payable in respect of particular claims are charged to
operating expenses as and when they become due.
1.14 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. This is
determined as follows:
- the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active markets are determined with reference to quoted
market prices.
- the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.
- the fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where
such prices are not available, use is made of discounted cash flow analysis using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the instrument.
Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
- financial assets ‘at fair value through profit and loss’
- ‘held to maturity investments’
- ‘available for sale’ financial assets
- ‘loans and receivables’
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The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.
The NHS Foundation Trust's financial assets all fall under the category 'loans and
receivables'.
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market are classed as ‘loans and
receivables’. They are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any impairment, Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be
immaterial. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset.
Receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at each Statement of Financial
Position date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future case flows of the investment have been impacted. The
amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for financial assets other than trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through an allowance for irrecoverable debts, changes in which are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income to the extent that the carrying amount of the
receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified into the following categories:
- 'financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss'
- 'other financial liabilities'.
The NHS Foundation Trust's financial liabilities all fall under the category 'other
financial liabilities'.
Other financial liabilities including borrowings are initially measured at fair value, less
transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, with interest expense.
1.15 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the NHS Foundation Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in
general, output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable.
Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the
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capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is
recoverable the amounts are stated net of VAT.
1.16 Foreign currencies
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the
exchange rate ruling on the dates of the transactions. Resulting exchange gains and
losses are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. At the Statement of
Financial Position date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the Statement of Financial Position date.
1.17 Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not
recognised in the accounts since the NHS Foundation Trust has no beneficial interest
in them. Details of third party assets are given in note 23 to the accounts.
1.18 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend
Public Dividend Capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the
excess of assets over liabilities at the time of establishment of the original NHS Trust.
HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial instrument within the meaning
of IAS 32.
A charge, reflecting the forecast cost of capital utilised by the NHS Foundation Trust, is
paid over as Public Dividend Capital Dividend. The charge is calculated at the real rate
set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the NHS
Foundation Trust. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the
value of all liabilities, except for donated assets and cash held with the Government
Banking Service. Average relevant net assets are calculated as a simple average of
opening and closing relevant net assets.
1.19 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated
when it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they
are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control
procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different
categories, which govern the way each individual case is handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accruals basis, including losses which
would have been made good through insurance cover had NHS Trusts not been
bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal
revenue expenditure). However, the note on losses and special payments is compiled
directly from the losses and compensations register which is prepared on a cash basis.
1.20 Corporation Tax
The NHS Foundation Trust has determined that it has no corporation tax liability.
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1.21 Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions
Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under these provisions can be found on the
NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions
The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers,
General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of
State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would
enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and
liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution
scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to
the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.
The scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every
five years) and an accounting valuation every year. An outline of these follows:
a) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits
due under the scheme (taking into account its recent demographic experience), and to
recommend the contribution rates to be paid by employers and scheme members. The
last such valuation, which determined current contribution rates was undertaken as at
31 March 2004 and covered the period from 1 April 1999 to that date. The conclusion
from the 2004 valuation was that the scheme had accumulated a notional deficit of £3.3
billion against the notional assets as at 31 March 2004.
In order to defray the costs of benefits, employers pay contributions at 14% of pensionable pay
and most employees had up to April 2008 paid 6%, with manual staff paying 5%.
Following the full actuarial review by the Government Actuary undertaken as at 31 March 2004,
and after consideration of changes to the NHS Pension Scheme taking effect from 1 April 2008,
his Valuation report recommended that employer contributions could continue at the existing
rate of 14% of pensionable pay, from 1 April 2008, following the introduction of employee
contributions on a tiered scale from 5% up to 8.5% of their pensionable pay depending on total
earnings. On advice from the scheme actuary, scheme contributions may be varied from time
to time to reflect changes in the scheme’s liabilities.

b) Accounting valuation
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at
the end of the reporting period by updating the results of the full actuarial valuation.
Between the full actuarial valuations at a two-year midpoint, a full and detailed member
data-set is provided to the scheme actuary. At this point the assumptions regarding the
composition of the scheme membership are updated to allow the scheme liability to be
valued.
The valuation of the scheme liability at 31 March 2010, is based on detailed
membership data as at 31 March 2008 (the latest midpoint) updated to 31 March 2010
with summary global member and accounting data.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme
actuary report, which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and
Wales) Resource Account, published annually. These accounts can be viewed on the
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NHS Pensions website. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
c) Scheme provisions
In 2008-09 the NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below.
This list is an illustrative guide only, and is not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the
Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits can be obtained:
i) Annual Pensions
The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the
1995 section and of the best of the last three years pensionable pay for each year of service,
and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of membership. Members who are
practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon
total pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service.
With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for
an additional tax free lump sum, up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This
new provision is known as “pension commutation”.
ii) Pensions Indexation
Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase)
Act 1971, and are based on changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September
in the previous calendar year.
iii) Lump Sum Allowance
A lump sum is payable on retirement which is normally three times the annual pension
payment.
iv) Ill-Health Retirement
Early payment of a pension, with enhancement in certain circumstances, is available to
members of the Scheme who are permanently incapable of fulfilling their duties or regular
employment effectively through illness or infirmity.
v) Death Benefits
A death gratuity of twice their final year’s pensionable pay for death in service, and five times
their annual pension for death after retirement is payable.
vi) Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs)
Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money
purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional
Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
vii) Transfer between Funds
Scheme members have the option to transfer their pension between the NHS Pension Scheme
and another scheme when they move into or out of NHS employment.
viii) Preserved Benefits
Where a scheme member ceases NHS employment with more than two years service they can
preserve their accrued NHS pension for payment when they reach retirement age.
ix) Compensation for Early Retirement
Where a member of the Scheme is made redundant they may be entitled to early receipt of
their pension plus enhancement, at the employer’s cost.

Page 148 of 164

2. Segmental Analysis
All income and activities are for the provision of health and health related services in the UK.
2.1 Operating Income (by Classification)
Income from activities

2009/10

Elective income
Non elective income
Outpatient income
A & E income
Other NHS clinical income
Private patient income
Other non protected clinical income
Total income from activities
Other operating income
Research and development
Education and training
Charitable and other contributions to expenditure
Transfer from donated asset reserve in respect of depreciation on
donated assets
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Other
Profit on disposal of other intangible fixed assets
Total Other Operating Income
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

2.2 Private patient income

2009/10
£000
856
202,905
0.42%

Private patient income
Total patient related income
Proportion (as percentage)

2008/09

£000
38,268
69,166
33,904
6,003
53,345
856
1,363
202,905

£000
38,729
62,838
34,632
5,413
46,533
690
1,199
190,034

7,108
9,573
49

4,186
8,542
47

105

106

12,086
3,735
6
32,662

13,136
3,999
8
30,024

235,567

220,058

2008/09
£000
690
190,034
0.36%

Base
year
£000
900
113,162
0.80%

Section 15 of the 2003 Act requires that the proportion of private patient income to the total patient
related income of NHS Foundation Trusts should not exceed its proportion whilst the body was an
NHS Trust using 2002/03 as the base year.
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2.3 Operating Lease Income
Rents recognised as income in the period
Total operating lease income
Future minimum lease payments due
- Not later than one year
- Later than one year and not later than five years
- Later than five years
Total operating lease income
2.4 Operating Income (by type)
Income from activities
Primary Care Trusts
Department of Health – other
NHS Other
Non NHS: Private patients
Non NHS: Overseas patients non-reciprocal)
NHS injury scheme (was RTA)
Non NHS: Other
Total Income from activities
Other Operating Income
Research and Development
Education and training
Charitable and other contributions to expenditure
Transfer from donated asset reserve in respect of depreciation
on donated assets
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Profit on disposal of other tangible fixed assets
Other
Total other operating income
Total Operating Income
Analysis of Other Operating Income: Other
Car parking
Estates recharges
Staff accommodation rentals
Catering
Property rentals
Other
Total
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2009/10
£000
291
291

2008/09
£000
288
288

26
49
70
145

44
57
35
136

2009/10
£000

2008/09
£000

200,686
0
0
856
74
979
310
202,905

178,060
9,977
108
690
55
901
243
190,034

7,108
9,573
49

4,186
8,542
47

105

106

12,086
6
3,735
32,662
235,567

13,136
8
3,999
30,024
220,058

2009/10
£000
1,012
2
118
1,568
146
889
3,735

2008/09
£000
857
238
163
1,555
125
1,061
3,999

3.1 Operating Expenses (by type)

Services from NHS Foundation Trusts
Services from NHS Trusts
Services from other NHS Bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies
Employee expenses - Executive directors costs
Employee expenses - Non-executive directors costs
Employee expenses - Staff
Drug costs
Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drug costs)
Supplies and services - general
Establishment
Research and development
Transport
Premises
Bad Debt Expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation on intangible assets
Audit fees - statutory audit
Clinical negligence
Loss on disposal of other property, plant and equipment
Legal fees
Consultancy costs
Training, courses and conferences
Patient travel
Redundancy
Hospitality
Insurance
Losses, ex gratia & special payments
Other
Total Operating Expenses
3.2 Arrangements containing an operating lease
Minimum lease payments
Total Lease Payments
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2009/10

2008/09

£000
563
2,119
1,036
3,346
1,098
127
150,337
17,764
23,691
4,053
3,178
4,195
891
6,974
37
5,471
230
73
3,616
1
243
613
734
68
12
17
312
91
1,420
232,310

£000
247
2,247
1,439
3,190
1,051
118
138,622
15,446
22,184
3,922
2,908
2,428
805
7,906
67
5,919
184
55
2,169
45
286
300
563
48
0
12
304
92
1,560
214,117

2009/10
£000
3,069
3,069

2008/09
£000
2,765
2,765

31
March
2010
£000

31
March
2009
£000

2,989
7,211
1,315

2,698
7,007
1,858

2009/10
2009/10
Total Permanent
£000
£000
107,729
122,419
8,301
9,433

2009/10
Other
£000
14,690
1,132

2008/09
Total
£000
114,060
8,677

14,355

12,632

1,723

13,090

12
5,228
151,447

12
0
128,674

0
5,228
22,773

0
3,846
139,673

3.3 Arrangements containing an operating lease

Total future minimum lease payments due:
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years
4.1 Employee Expenses

Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Pension costs - defined contribution plans
Employers contributions to NHS Pensions
Termination benefits
Agency/contract staff
TOTAL
4.2 Average number of employees (WTE
basis)

Medical and dental
Administration and estates
Healthcare assistants and other support
staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Bank and agency staff
TOTAL
4.3 Employee benefits
Total spend on employee benefits
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2009/10

2009/10

2009/10

2008/09

Total
Number
378
904

Permanent
Number
222
868

Other
Number
156
36

Number
343
884

410

401

9

366

1,420
663
202
3,977

1,405
633

15
30
202
448

1,365
621
188
3,767

3,529

2009/10
£000
175

2008/09
£000
236

4.4 Early retirements due to ill health
This note discloses the number and additional pension costs for individuals who retired early
on ill-health grounds during the year.
During 2009/10 there were 6 early retirements (2008/09 – 6) from the NHS Foundation Trust
on the grounds of ill-health. The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health
retirements will be £314,000 (2008/09 - £276,000). These retirements represented 1.46 per
1000 active scheme members. This information has been supplied by NHS Pensions and
the cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Business Services Authority
-Pensions Division.

5. Finance income

2009/10

2008/09

£000
53

£000
501

2009/10

2008/09

£000
16

£000
0

2009/10

2008/09

£000
0
1,414
1,414

£000
2,297
1,169
3,466

Interest on loans and receivables

6.1 Finance costs - interest expense
Interest on loan from the Foundation Trust Financing Facility

6.2 Impairment of assets (PPE & intangibles)
Decommissioning of property
Changes in market price
TOTAL IMPAIRMENTS
7. Losses and special payments

Losses
Special Payments

2009/10
Number
48
115

Value
£000
39
98

163

137
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2008/09
Number
80
78

Value
£000
50
93

158

143

8. Intangible assets

Total

Gross cost at 1 April 2008
Additions - purchased
Gross cost at 31 March 2009
Amortisation at 1 April 2008
Provided during the year
Amortisation at 31 March 2009

£000
1,001
94
1,095
552
184
736

Software
licences
£000
1,001
94
1,095
552
184
736

449

449

359

359

Gross cost at 1 April 2009
Reclassifications
Additions - purchased

1,095
263
395

1,095
263
395

Gross cost at 31 March 2010
Amortisation at 1 April 2009
Provided during the year

1,753
736

1,753
736

230

230

966

966

NBV - Purchased at 1 April 2009

359

359

NBV - Purchased at 31 March 2010

787

787

Net book value
NBV - Purchased at 1 April 2008
NBV - Purchased at 31 March 2009

Amortisation at 31 March 2010
Net book value
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9.1 Property, plant and equipment
Total

Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
Construction

Plant &
Machinery

Transport
Equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture &
Fittings

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2008
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Impairments
Reclassifications
Revaluation reductions
Disposals
Cost or valuation at 31 March 2009
Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2008
Provided during the year
Impairments
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2009

155,080
9,729
169
(7,136)
0
(31,013)
(558)
126,271
19,208
5,919
(3,670)
(511)
20,946

26,060
0
0
0
400
(17,450)
0
9,010
0
0
0
0
0

91,689
7,156
132
(4,984)
3,484
(9,232)
0
88,245
440
3,548
(3,500)
0
488

6,576
0
0
(2,152)
0
(4,331)
0
93
7
163
(170)
0
0

4,714
1,126
0
0
(4,190)
0
0
1,650
0
0
0
0
0

19,990
1,284
37
0
144
0
(418)
21,037
14,709
1,386
0
(372)
15,723

525
0
0
0
0
0
(140)
385
424
33
0
(139)
318

5,509
163
0
0
162
0
0
5,834
3,617
787
0
0
4,404

17
0
0
0
0
0
0
17
11
2
0
0
13

Net book value
NBV - Owned at 1 April 2008
NBV - Donated at 1 April 2008
NBV total at 1 April 2008

135,479
393
135,872

26,060
0
26,060

91,224
25
91,249

6,569
0
6,569

4,714
0
4,714

4,920
361
5,281

101
0
101

1,886
6
1,892

5
1
6

NBV - Owned at 31 March 2009
NBV - Donated at 31 March 2009
NBV total at 1 April 2009

104,725
600
105,325

9,010
0
9,010

87,466
291
87,757

93
0
93

1,650
0
1,650

5,010
304
5,314

67
0
67

1,425
5
1,430

4
0
4
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9.1 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Total

Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
Construction

Plant &
Machinery

Transport
Equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture &
Fittings

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2009
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Impairments
Reclassifications
Revaluation reductions
Disposals
Cost or valuation at 31 March 2010
Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2009
Provided during the year
Impairments
Revaluation reductions
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2010

126,271
8,301
276
(1,985)
(263)
(12,155)
(2,514)
117,931
20,946
5,472
(571)
(2,753)
(2,513)
20,581

9,010
0
0
(88)
0
(512)
0
8,410
0
0
0
0
0
0

88,245
4,009
53
(1,897)
735
(11,652)
(414)
79,079
488
3,434
(571)
(2,751)
(414)
186

93
0
0
0
0
2
0
95
0
2
0
(2)
0
0

1,650
3,044
0
0
(1,478)
7
0
3,223
0
0
0
0
0
0

21,037
366
223
0
60
0
(1,144)
20,542
15,723
1,385
0
0
(1,143)
15,965

385
16
0
0
0
0
(38)
363
318
26
0
0
(38)
306

5,834
861
0
0
420
0
(918)
6,197
4,404
623
0
0
(918)
4,109

17
5
0
0
0
0
0
22
13
2
0
0
0
15

Net book value
NBV - Owned at 1 April 2009
NBV - Donated at 1 April 2009
NBV total at 1 April 2009

104,725
600
105,325

9,010
0
9,010

87,466
291
87,757

93
0
93

1,650
0
1,650

5,010
304
5,314

67
0
67

1,425
5
1,430

4
0
4

96,579
771
97,350

8,410
0
8,410

78,559
334
78,893

95
0
95

3,223
0
3,223

4,144
433
4,577

57
0
57

2,084
4
2,088

7
0
7

Total

Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
Construction

Plant &
Machinery

Transport
Equipment

Information
Technology

Furniture &
Fittings

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

NBV - Protected assets at 31 March 2010

80,387

5,600

74,783

4

0

0

0

0

0

NBV - Unprotected assets at 31 March 2010

16,963

2,810

4,110

91

3,223

4,577

57

2,088

7

97,350

8,410

78,893

95

3,223

4,577

57

2,088

7

NBV - Owned at 31 March 2010
NBV - Donated at 31 March 2010
NBV total at 31 March 2010
Note 9.2 Analysis of property, plant and
equipment 31 March 2010
Net book value

Total at 31 March 2010
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9.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The total at 31 March 2010 included land valued at £1,850,000 open market value. There
were no buildings or dwellings valued at open market value.
There were no assets held under Finance Leases or Hire Purchase contracts at the
Statement of Financial Position date.

31 March
2010
£000
3,352
3,352

31 March
2009
£000
3,137
3,137

1 April
2008
£000
3,229
3,229

31 March
2010
£000

31 March
2009
£000

1 April
2008
£000

Current
NHS Receivables
Provision for impaired receivables
Prepayments
Accrued income
PDC dividend receivable
Other receivables

7,068
(743)
1,029
887
284
1,183

14,174
(2,860)
1,093
457
0
2,256

8,221
(1,356)
741
748
0
1,729

Total current trade and other receivables

9,708

15,120

10,083

Non-Current
NHS Receivables
Provision for impaired receivables

953
(93)

712
0

490
0

Total non-current trade and other receivables

860

712

490

2009/10
£000
2,860
668
(2,071)
(621)

2008/09
£000
1,356
1,995
(216)
(275)

836

2,860

10. Inventories
Raw materials and consumables

11.1 Trade receivables and other receivables

11.2 Provision for impairment of receivables
At 1 April
Increase in provision
Amounts utilised
Unused amounts reversed
At 31 March
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31 March
2010
£000

31 March
2009
£000

Ageing of impaired receivables
Up to three months
In three to six months
Over six months

100
200
536

1,900
494
466

Total

836

2,860

Ageing of non-impaired receivables past their due date
Up to three months
In three to six months
Over six months

653
563
600

7,490
2,083
0

1,816

9,573

31 March
2010
£000

31 March
2009
£000

1 April
2008
£000

84
4,411
1,180
1,471
3,461
4,528

113
3,609
1,063
2,500
3,152
4,154

11,745
3,001
421
2,079
2,950
3,984

15,135

14,591

24,180

Non-current
Other payables

55

150

215

Total non-current trade and other payables

55

150

215

11.3 Analysis of impaired receivables

Total

12. Trade and other payables
Current
Receipts in advance
NHS payables
Trade payables - capital
Other trade payables
Other payables
Accruals
Total current trade and other payables

Other payables include £1,858,000 (2008/09 - £1,701,000) outstanding pensions
contributions as at 31 March 2010.
31 March
2010
£000

31 March
2009
£000

1 April
2008
£000

Current
Deferred Income

0

371

1,409

Total other current liabilities

0

371

1,409

13. Other liabilities
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31 March
2010
£000

31 March
2009
£000

1 April
2008
£000

Non-current
Loans from Foundation Trust Financing Facility

1,755

0

0

Total other non-current liabilities

1,755

0

0

14. Borrowings

15. Prudential Borrowing Limit
The Trust is required to comply with, and remain within, a total borrowing limit. This is
made up of two elements.
- the maximum cumulative amount of long term borrowing. This is set by reference to the
five ratio tests set out in Monitor's Prudential Borrowing Code.
- the amount of any working capital facility approved by Monitor
The Trust had a prudential borrowing limit of £46,600,000 in 2009/10. During this period
the Trust borrowed £1,755,000 from the FT Financing Facility to fund the first phase of the
construction of a new car parking facility.
The Trust had a £17,500,000 approved working capital facility in place although this was
unused during the year. The renewal date of this facility is September 2010.

Financial ratio
Maximum debt/capital
Minimum dividend cover
Minimum interest cover
Minimum debt service cover
Minimum debt service to revenue

Actual Approved
2009/10
2009/10
0.02
0.03
1.47
2.94
313
181
313
181
0.00
0.00

Actual
2008/09
N/A
2.98
N/A
N/A
N/A

Approved
2008/09
N/A
2.96
N/A
N/A
N/A

Total
£000
1,421
17
(252)
18
1,204
17
(411)
17

Pensions
- other
staff
£000
819
17
(56)
18
798
17
(58)
17

Agenda
for
Change
£000
305
0
(196)
0
109
0
(96)
0

Other
£000
297
0
0
0
297
0
(257)
0

827

774

13

40

16. Provisions for liabilities and
charges
At 1 April 2008
Arising during the year
Utilised during the year
Unwinding of discount
At 1 April 2009
Arising during the year
Utilised during the year
Unwinding of discount
At 31 March 2010
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Expected timing of cashflows:
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later
than five years;
- later than five years.
TOTAL

70

57

13

0

268

228

0

40

489

489

0

0

827

774

13

40

£7,666,000 (2008/09 - £6,313,000) is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation
Authority at 31 March 2010 in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of York Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust. Other provisions relates to other pay claims against the
Foundation Trust.
17. Revaluation reserve
Revaluation
Reserve
£000
59,637

Revaluation reserve at 1 April 2008
Revaluation gains/(losses) and impairment losses property, plant and
equipment
Revaluation reserve at 1 April 2009
Revaluation gains/(losses) and impairment losses property, plant and
equipment
Other transfers between reserves

(31,013)
28,624
(9,401)
(348)

Revaluation reserve at 31 March 2010

18,875

2009/10
£000
4,681
(116)

2008/09
£000
22,143
(17,462)

4,565

4,681

133
4,432

57
4,624

Cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP
Bank overdraft

4,565

4,681

0

0

Cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF

4,565

4,681

18. Cash and cash equivalents
At 1 April
Net change in year
At 31 March
Broken down into:
Cash at commercial banks and in hand
Cash with the Government Banking Service

19. Capital Commitments
Commitments under capital expenditure contracts at 31 March 2010 were £5,938,000 (31
March 2009 - £491,000)
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20. Contingent Liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities identified for this financial year.
21. Related Party Transactions
York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is a body corporate established by order of the
Secretary of State for Health
During the year none of the Board Members, members of the Board of Governors or
members of the key management staff or parties related to them has undertaken any
material transactions with York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year York
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has had a significant number of material transactions
with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as
the parent Department. These entities are listed below:
In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other government
departments and other central and local government bodies. Most of these
transactions have been in the course of the latter's business as government agencies.
The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from the York Health
Services General Charity, the Trustee for which is the NHS Foundation Trust.

Department of Health
DH Compensation Recovery Unit
East Riding of Yorkshire PCT
Harrogate & District Foundation Trust
HM Revenue & Customs
Hull & East Yorkshire Hospitals NHS
Trust
Leeds PCT
Leeds Teaching Hospital NHS Trust
National Insurance Fund
NHS Blood and Transplant Authority
NHS Litigation Authority
NHS Pension Scheme
NHS Professionals
NHS Purchasing & Supply Authority
North Lincolnshire & Goole Hospitals FT
North Yorkshire & York PCT
Prescription Pricing Authority

Balances
Receivables Payables
£000
£000
55
1,968
782
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Income Expense
£000
7,221
979
14,150
1,342

993

£000

2,131
20,233
1,464

2,099
692

3,828

1,065

185,201

1,193
17,257
1,497
3,755
21,528
2,251
5,408
498
1,951
578

Scarborough & NE Yorks NHS Trust
SHA Yorkshire & The Humber
Wakefield & District PCT
Yorkshire Ambulance Service

508
8,669
651
6,633

2,750

220,820

22. Financial Instruments
FRS 25, 26 and 29 regarding Financial Instruments, require disclosure of the role that
financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks an
entity faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider
relationship that the NHS Trust has with local Primary Care Trusts and the way those
Primary Care Trusts are financed, the NHS Foundation Trust is not exposed to the
degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also financial instruments play a
much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of the listed
companies to which FRS 25, 26 and 29 mainly apply.
Liquidity Risk
The NHS Foundation Trust's net operating costs are incurred under annual service
agreements with local Primary Care Trusts, which are financed from resources voted
annually by Parliament. York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is not generally
exposed to significant liquidity risks.
Interest Rate Risk
The NHS Foundation Trust's financial assets and financial liabilities carry nil or fixed
rates of interest. York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is not, therefore, exposed to
significant interest-rate risk.
Credit Risk
The Foundation Trust receives the majority of its income from Primary Care Trusts
and Statutory Bodies, the credit risk is therefore generally negligible.
Foreign Currency Risk
The Foundation Trust carries out a minimal amount of foreign currency trading
therefore the foreign currency risk is negligible.
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547

1,218
81,509

22.1 Financial assets by category

Loans and
receivables
£000

Assets as per SoFP
Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (at bank and in hand)
Total at 31 March 2010

9,255
4,565
13,820

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets (at 31 March
2009)
Cash and cash equivalents (at bank and in hand (at 31 March 2009)

14,739
4,681
19,420

Total at 31 March 2009

22.2 Financial liabilities by category

Other
financial
liabilities
£000

Liabilities as per SoFP
Borrowings (at 31 March 2010)
Trade and other payables excluding non financial assets (31 March 2010)
Provisions under contract (at 31 March 2010)

1,755
15,051
53

Total at 31 March 2010

16,859

Trade and other payables excluding non financial assets (31 March 2009)
Provisions under contract (at 31 March 2009)

14,478
406
14,884

Total at 31 March 2009

22.3 Fair Values
York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has carried all financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value for the year 2009/10
23. Third Party Assets
The Trust held £3,000 cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2010 (31 March 2009 £4,000) which relates to monies held by the NHS Foundation Trust on behalf of patients.
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